CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING & EXECUTIVE SESSION ‘
Held at 16770 SE 82" Dr. Clackamas, OR 97015 Clackamas River Water
This Meeting will have both an in person and remote option for attending
June 13, 2024 at 6:00pm
AGENDA
Public Comment: If a member of the public wishes to address the Board during a meeting, they are
encouraged to inform Board staff through email to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm the day of the
meeting. If a person will attend the meeting through Zoom and wishes to provide public comment, prior
notice to kholzgang@crwater.com no later than 4pm on the day of the meeting is required in order to ensure
access. The notice should include the following information: (1) Full name; (2) Address/City/ZIP; (3) Email
address or phone number to be used to access the Zoom meeting, so it can be unmuted; (4)
District/Organization/Public; and (5) Topic of your public comment and or specific agenda item you wish to
speak on.

Members of the public are welcome to speak for a maximum of three minutes during a time designated on
the agenda for public comment. The speaker must state their name, address, and if they are a customer or
not for the record. Public comment provided at the beginning of the agenda will be reserved for comment on
agenda items, special presentations, letters, and complaints. Public comment as listed at the ¢nd of the agenda
will be for the purpose of “wrapping up” any remaining concerns.

Anyone who wishes to attend the meeting remotely may do so by internet at
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81936011874 ot by calling the following number 1-253-215-8782 and join
meeting/ 81936011874#. Passcode: 516826

REGULAR BOARD MEETING @ 6:00pm

Call to Otder, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call - Sherry French, President
a. Approval of the Agenda

Public Comment (see blne box at the top of the agenda)

Consent Agenda
CA-1: Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid: May 2024

CA-2: Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report

CA-3: Consider Approval of Contract Amendment with Cascade Columbia Exceeding
the General Managers Signature Authority

Action Items

1. Resolution 06-2024: A Resolution Establishing Retail Water Rates, System
Development Charges, Miscellaneous Fees and Charges For Services — Todd Heidgerken,
General Manager

. Consider First Reading, By Title Only, of Resolution 07-2024 Updating Board Policy-
Todd Heidgerken, General Manager & C. Robert Steringer, CRW Legal Counsel

. Consider Approval of Resolution 08-2024 Approve Utility Billing Bad Debt Write-Off
for FY 2023-2024 Uncollectible Water Bills- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

. Consider Resolution 09-2024- Updating the Wholesale Water Rates Charged to North
Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

Next Page



mailto:kholzgang@crwater.com
mailto:kholzgang@crwater.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81936011874
tel:+1%20253%20215%208782

5. Consider Approval of Contract Extension with Madrone Technology for IT Support,
Equipment & Subscriptions Exceeding the General Managers Signature Authority-Todd
Heidgerken, General Manager

6. Consider Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Extension Between
CRW and Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) for or Emergency Management
Coordination Services- Todd Heidgerken, General Manager & Beth McGinnis, Emergency Manager

7. Consider Approval of Contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Services Exceeding the
General Managers Signature Authority- Todd Heidgerken, General ManagerDETETED

Informational Repotrts

8. Management Report — Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
9. Public Comment (see blue box at the top of the agenda)

Commissioner Business
10. Commissioner Reports and Reimbursements

11. Election of Board officers- CRW Board of Commissioners

Adjourn regular meeting

EXECUTIVE SESSION- will start immediately following the regular meeting

1. Discuss information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection pursuant to ORS
192.660 (2) (f) and 192.355 (9) (a) and ORS 40.225

To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to negotiate real
property transactions. 192.660 (2) (e)

To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor
negotiations ORS 192.660 (2) (d)

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for accommodations for persons
with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Adora Campbell (503) 722-9226.




Agenda Item —
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-1

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Gtross Payroll and Accounts Paid
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda items as presented
EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Acknowledge receipt of information as part of the approval of the consent
REQUESTED agenda.
DOCUMENTS 1) Eatnings Statements for Aptil 2024, Payrolls — 3 regular payrolls - $435,163
ATTACHED 2) Monthly Check History for May 2024 - $881,381 (net)

June 13, 2024 Apgenda Item CA-1 Page 1 of 1




1OL UKS/VGNTSIUUUUUULLU | 10l PagesiuuuuUuuuuu 1S - FAgE GOUNL 1100 applicdoie 101 1Repons
WEEK 18 BATCH 8252 42 PAYS

0 Employees With Overflow Statement Earnings Statement

0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement

First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000
Vouchers: 00000180001 00000180042 00000000011

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0002

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

142999.31 GROSS
90180.51 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
14051.59 FEDERAL TAX
8655.97 SOCIAL SECURITY
2024.35 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUIDI/FLIMLI TAX
8630.41 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
109636.99 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0002

NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



1OL UKS/VUITSIUUUUUUULU LI 10td) Fayges.vuuuuuuuvi o - rFdayge Count 1oL dpprcdpie 101 IReporns
WEEK 20 BATCH 8513 42 PAYS
0 Employees With Overflow Statement Earnings Statement
0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement
First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000

Vouchers: 00000204001 00000204042 00000000011

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0002

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

149524.12 GROSS
87394.57 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
15377.85 FEDERAL TAX
9065.15 SOCIAL SECURITY
2120.10 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUIDIFLUMLI TAX
9159.38 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
113801.64 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0002

NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



(IR S ITERVVIVIVVIVVIVE R 10ldl FAyes:uUUuUUULUUIED - Pdge COull NOL dppicanie 101 IRepons
WEEK 22 BATCH 8792 44 PAYS

0 Employees With Overflow Statement Earnings Statement

0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement

First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000000
Vouchers: 00000224001 00000224044 00000000013

Total Vouchers Bypassed: 00000
Total Checks Bypassed: 00000 SEAT 312 TOTAL DOCUMENT

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
LOCATION 0002

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

142639.18 GROSS
92556.37 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
14606.07 FEDERAL TAX
8838.95 SOCIAL SECURITY
2067.15 MEDICARE
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUIDI/FLI/MLI TAX
8880.97 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
108246.04 DEDUCTIONS
.00 NET CHECK

SEAT COMPANY CODE 312
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATE
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0002

NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE
NON-NEGOTIABLE -VOID - NON-NEGOTIABLE



1 :0bed

¥0°8.42 PSINNIDOW ¥2/52/¥0 1HOSTY H3ARINNS
LL'18Z  JQAIMSINODON ¥2/62/¥0 NNIT LS3M ISOUMEYd
£0°00€ Ba1avAVYd 2/52/%0 ALITLLA FHNYMTIN 2O
06'6L€  ONOLNVUOS $2/52/40 ENTL0Z64cSN LN NZINY
89'€Z€ ONVNNNOZOIN ¥2/52/¥0 ONIHO31901VIa
9€'6€E  SAIISINODOWN v2/S2/v0 L10¥ LOd=2d INOH 3HL
02°LGE  OATIMSINODOWN ¥2/S2/v0 «F2810# SIAMOT
ol'gle 1IONVOZIOH ¥2/5¢/v0 01688G99€CL20 HIV WUSVIVY
29°18€  SAIMSINODOIWN $2/52/¥0 L10¥ LOd3Q INOH 3HL
LE°00% e31gavAVYd ¥2/52/¥0 ANYAINOD FOVEHYD SYIWWIOY1O
00'vey BONVOZIOH $2/582/40 ONI 1LSv3 SANITd 139dnd
0028y UAYY $2/92/¥0 EOVONZYNPSN dLHIN NZWY
00°66% PSIATAOA $2/52/v0 £O60ZMIMI.TINIEd 92g
00°00S IAIUSINOION ¥2/92/90 31VIN QFONVAQY JLVISHILINI
LZ°evs B1131dIYL ¥2/5e/v0 SNH NODA 10SY3HSIH.S4L
09295 9SINNIDOW ¥2/52/+0 JLNLILSNI OANF TYaYEA« NI
00689 JAIMSINOOOW ¥2/SZ/¥0 40 S3OIAYIS WNIYNOV. DS
61841 H18VAVYd ¥2/52/%0 2109224008 TVHNLVYN MN
00°000°L ATASINODDOWN ¥2/62/%0 FLVYIN G3ONVAQY FLY1ISHALNI
00°0L0'L ENIMAUIADAIZH $T/52/¥0 SIN3IAT VMY
86°€EL’) 93189V AVYd ¥2/Ge/¥0 210¥22+008 TYdNLVN MN
90ZiZ'L 2103LSNMOrd ¥2/52/¥0 S3A0D ONIdINgG ALa
80°09Z'} dAVY ¥2/52/%0 OTTSNILSAS 09 OOWID
Gg'95¢e'L UMONOH $2/52/%0 NOO UNY SINIWNHLSNI @131
00°00€‘e ¥2/52/%0 SHAOINYIS Idid FHONW-O« NI MNVY SN 66610 ¥202/51/50 9663
29'619°L 29'6L9°L ¥20¢ 11ddY g 202 TddY ONITI8 INYHOHIW MNVE SN 65610 ¥202/5L/50 GGso
866561 85°656'L ¥2'10'%0 SYO 202 1ddY SVYO MNVE SN 65610 ¥202/51/50 559
590266 9°026°6 ¥20Z TV LNVHOMIW) ONISSIO0Hd LINIWAVd $20Z 11ddY ONISSIOOHd YOINO 06€¥0  ¥Z0Z/SL/ISO €559
96'$28'9€ 96'¥Z8'9E ¥2°90°%0 ‘82EE91'6.00891'8LL¥89L'L2E€89L: LINd SH3d Sd3d NOD3HO 62000 ¥202/80/50 1669
oL'ise'e oL'ige'e ¥2'€0°90 ¥d dINOD ¥3430 :NOILONAZA TT0HUAVYd AHVINNTOA NO9O3FHO 40 FLVLS - 13FHLSILIO 92200 $202/80/50 0669
$6'8¥9'T 56'8v9°'2 ¥2'€0°50 ¥d dINOD ¥3433d :NOILONAAA TIOHAYd AYY.LNNTOA ONIGE000  ¥20Z/80/S0  6¥S9
LL9GL'ET LL°961'€T ¥Z'50%0 ¥d ¥b9Z891'2041891'2050891 7668291 LINd S¥3d S¥3d NODIHO 62000  +202/80/S0  8+S9
|ejol ¥294ysn pied junowy 3210AU} uonduasaq JOPUBA ajeq #3994y
yueqde :9po2jueg
¥20c/LelG o  ve0c/ LS
19JeAN 19AY SeWERYIR|D NdLy:€ ¥202/1€/S0
| :obed Bunsi A103siH Y29yo Ajlyjuon IsiHode




Z :obey

00°06 M13gadnvD $2/52/40 YMMY SMNds TYdAYd
00°06 MN38dNYD v2/S2/¥0 YAMMY SMNdx TYdAYd
0006 97139dWvO ve/s2/y0 YMMY SMNdx TYdAYd
0026 QAVY $2/52/v0 HVANVYLS TYNOILYN NYOIHINY
62°¢6 MONOH ¥2/52/¥0 £QT5L0ZD0-SN d N NZINY
18°€6 WAINSINODIOIN ¥2/52/%0 L10v# 10430 dNCH 3HL
GL'G6 BONVYOZIOH $2/52/%0 1H0d HONNT X08 SYNITIVONI
6°66 JISNOILYYILO $2/52/¥0 L10%# 1Od3d IWOH IHL
0000} e713g8dNvYD ¥2/52/%0 VNId INFANEZAOO NODIAHO
00°60L yT13adNvO $2/52/¥0 ONI ONIHLONIMIH
6LCLL IAYY +¥2/52/%0 HAYO-HILISYINOW
66°9LL BINVNNNOGO3IM ¥2/5e/v0 NOD'AQAYAOD«HNA
66'6LL  dATIUSINODON ¥2/52/v0 00 HONVY B INHVA TVLISVYOD
L6'ccL JAVY ¥2/G2/¥0 LY ST00L LHOITFYd JOddvH
00'gc! 9AVY ¥2/92/70 NNIT LSIM FSOENEVYd
6 LEL  UATIMSINODOOWN $2/52/%0 L10v# 10d3d 3WOH 3HL
oLegt 9ONVYDZTOH $2/52/%0 18€/8699€2/.20 dIV WISYIV
91'8¢eL NF9VYAVYd $2/52/40 210¥22¥008 TYHNLYN MN
eloWA4% PaIgVYAVd $2/52/%0 NI HILVYM ALNNOD SYWYHOVTO
09’9l oLLANdIdL ¥2/52/v0 SNH WODF 108YAHSIH.SHL
L1°99} IAVY ¥2/52/¥0 L10%# L0430 INOH IHL
g1891 MONOH $2/52/%0 SAMAdNS UIAY LSAMHIHON
11691 uz1gvAvd ¥2/SZ/v0 210¥2Z¥008 TVHNLYN MN
62°LLL  AATUSINODOWN $2/52/%0 LL0v# LOd3Q INOH 3HL
8E'6.LL bAVY $2/52/v0 OTTSNTLSAS 09 ODWID
59'181 9318VAVd ¥2/52/¥0 N3 ¥3LYM ALNNOD SYWYHOVTO
00's8l a1139dNYD ¥2/52/v0 SEOr Y3 LYMILSYMWEILYM
08'v61L 13718VAVYd $2/52/v0 210%22%008 TYdNLYN MN
00661 384NV ¥2/52/%0 ANODOIAN
00661 PT13adNYO ¥2/52/%0 ANODO3N
00661 T13AdINVYD ¥2/52/%0 AODO3IN
00'0€Z  BLA3LISNAUOrg ¥2/52/40 $7133dS0
Sy’ LEC  BATIMSINOOOWN v2/S2iv0 £10¥ 1LOd3ad INOH 3HL
6L6EC AAIASINODIIOW v2/ee/v0 NNIT LS3M IS0V
1] 474 q3718VYAVYd ¥2/82/¥0 NI H3LYM ALNNOD SYWYHOVYTO
00'6v2 JLHOIATS $T/S2/v0 NOD' 103d1a1a1=3
000582 BAVYY $2/52/40 ALTIGOW INO NI 1TV
80°242  BSNOILYY3JO +2/52/%0 OO0 AlddNS SNOSYIN 6
18301 }99yd pied junowy 3210AU]| uonduasaq 1OPUBA ajeq #9949
yueqde :9po3ueg
VZ0C/velG o3 ¥C0e/Ls
19JeAN J9ALY sewe)yoR[D EA A ¥202/1€/50
Z :obed Busiq A1o3siH Yo29yd Ajyluop IsiHode



¢ :abed

JASNA MONOH ¥2/s2/v0 ANVdJINOD SST00™d LINN
£8°€C [AVY ¥2/52/%0 Ly0e# LN3 NOSNOY3d
66°€Z BNVNNNOSO3X ¥2/52/v0 EMFG6Z2N0VLSN dIMIN NZWY
00'¥2 ESNOILYYIdO ¥2/52/%0 HLIASYHO0T INOSIMYVY Y« DS
06'vC qLH9I13TS $2/52/¥0 LS6LT13EHYLSN dIMIN NZWY
1092 GAINSINODOWN +2/52/$0 SHIAUVHL SILEND
1692 PAYY +¥2/G2/%0 L10v# 1Od30 INOH FHL
14 WXA DAV ¥2/G2/%0 L10v# 10d3d INOH IHL
1882 99ONVOZIOH ¥2/52/%0 13MHYIN SNOSVIS MaN
6.°6C a1 131dIdL ¥2/92/¥0 ENHOLI8MMASN dIAIN NZINY
29l UNVYNNNOZOIA $2/52/v0 €22201-1 L1 « 138 NOZVINY
Lgee OSNOILYHIALO +¥2/52/%0 EHNOrNSINELSN dIHN NZWY
ee'ee  GLOALSNHOrE ¥2/52/v0 334 $3000 ONIdTING a1a
¥0'GE JAVYY +2/9¢/¥0 L¥0e# LN NOSNOY3d
L1°6€  PWVNNNOZO3IM ¥2/52/%0 WOD'AQAYAOO«HNG
o¥'ge USNOILYHIdO ¥2/52/%0 90G2.€0 OOVXEL
00'LE PMONOH ¥2/52/+0 HVONVH HIAEVYO
28'8¢ f319vAvd $2/52/%0 Z210¥22¥008 TVHNLYN MN
11°6€ ASNOILYHIdO +¥2/82/¥0 €LL8ATGOMKSN dIAIN NZWY
gZ'6¢g WAVYYA $2/52/¥0 061 OV10 INivd Y3 TTIN
666 AWVYNNNOGO3X ¥2/52/¥0 SIGEXAGHALSN dIN NZWY
60°S¥ LLIaNdIdL $2/52/%0 £31666090+SN dIHN NZWY
2809 PSNOLLYHAJO +2/52/¥0 EXUEAZE LNLNOCD NOZVYINY
VA4 4] IAVY ¥2/S2/¥0 L1LOV# 10430 JINOH FHL
68'vS PONVOZIOH +¢/52/%0 ANV 1NNOQ
6615 JNVYNNNOGOIN ¥2/62/%0 3900av. 3804V
02°'sS IAIMSINODOWN $2/62/40 FUYMALEVH SOV
G99 UAY ¥2/52/¥0 L10%# 1Od3d 3NOH 3FHL
v0'L9 ANOLINVHIS $2/52/%0 SAAYINDZE TSN dIAN NZINY
20°€9 IASMSINODOW ¥2/52/+0 L10v# 10d3a JNOH FHL
L9'%9 DIDNOH v2/52/P0 EIANODISNSN dIAN NZWY
88'v9 PLLITIAL ¥2/52/¥0 €ZOO0INLONASN dIMN NZWY
66°99 MONOH $v2/52/¥0 ENGLPMOINLSN dIMIN NZWY
GZ'L9 ASINNIOOW ¥2/52/¥0 WOO'Q¥VIILNIA! dS
L9V, OSNOLLYMAJO ¥2/52/¥0 LL0v# 10430 FNOH FHL
0008 B1138dINYD ¥2/52/70 O NOOIHO 40 FNOVYIT 007
1528 GONVDZI0OH ¥2/5¢/%0 140d HONNT X04d SYNITIVON!I
G6'68 ENOLINVAOS $2/52/¥0 €1990AL1T+SN dIAN NZNY
|ejol1o9yo pied junowy av10AU| uonduossg JOPUSA ajeq #29Yyn
yueqde :3podueg
v202/le/G o1 ve0el/L/S
I9JeA JBAIY Seweyoe|D Ndiv:e ¥202/1.£/50
¢ :obed Bunsi A103siH ¥29Yy9 Alyjuop 3siHyode



¢ :obed

28'66 8/9/v¥1628 1ddNS “LNIVIA ONIQTINEG - 0006¥97€6# "LOOVY
28'66 GBOSYYL62G 1ddNS "LNIVIN ONIGTING - 0006¥9¥E€6# *LOOV
2866 96v8EY 1628 IddNS "LINIVIN ONIATING - 0006¥9¥E6# "LOOY ONI STDINGES WHOAINN AUVINVHY §8200 +202/80/50 1.€96
00°6€€'9 00'Gee'9 GLPELS HSY YQOS 2ISN3AA ONI 00 1SId VIGWNTOD FAVIOSYD 9¥5L0 ¥202/€2/S0 81256
$0'S¥¥'C PO SPP'T YZ2'61L°90 dd dINOD Y3430 INOILONJIA TT10HAYd AMYLNNTOA ONI 66000 ¥202/€2/S0 £959
G6'8¥9'C G6'8¥9'C 622160 ¥dd dINOD ¥3430 :NOILONAIA TIOHAYd AHVYINNTOA ONI §6000 ¥202/€2/S0 2969
0Lise'e oLse's ¥Z'L1°60 dd dINOD Y3430 INOILONAIA TIOUAY AHVLINATOA NOOIHO 40 ILVLS - IIIUISILIO 98600 +202/22/S0 0959
12°,08'se 12°,08'GE #2120 dd 196891 7196891 7196891 '8998891: LINAD SH3Ad SH3d NOOIFHO 62000 ¥202/22/S0 8669
166186 166166 +¥202°90'¢0 dd £9/91'€296/91'89€5/.9L V605291 1 LINAD SH3d SH3d NODIHO 62000 ¥202/91/50 LGS9
08'929'52 1zzve- 9STTAOA ¥2/52/%0 I 928
66°66- BAVY $2/62/¥0 €92 ST00.L LHOIFH JOgdvH
LE°€S qLi3dIdL ¥2/52/%0 SN JdIMN NZINY
561z BLHOITTS +2/S2I0 SN d N NZWY
05Zl-  TAIMSINOOOW ¥Z/52/v0 8Nd Muvd SNINLYM
§L'S bAINSINODON v2/52/v0 Ly0g# LNI NOSNDHE3H
069 UASMSINODOWN ¥2/52/¥0 NI D4 8 133LS SYINVHOVTIO
866 BYMONOH ¥2/5zZ/70 EX0SNE8YY-SN dIMIN NZWY
666 BNVYNNNOSO3M $2/52/70 EANIOVENMLSN dIHIN NZINY
002} ESINNIDOW ¥2/52/+0 19 BDIOANI LNO¥dSZZNE
ogecL BATINSINODON ¥2/52/%0 and Jdvd SNIYLYM
6671 YONVYOZIOH ¥2/62/¥0 L600# ASHM O0LS00
286l AMONOH $2/S2/¥0 ANVAINOD SS300Hd LINN
Ge'gl PAINSINODOWN $2/52/%0 8€0 DIHLo3aTd Livd
6691 INYNNNOGO3N $2/52/v0 €dZLENIZILSN dIAIN NZINY
6691 BMONOH +2/S2/¥0 ZMYZOP0VELSN dIMIN NZINY
05°L1 OAVY $2/52/¥0 FEVMARUYH FSOUMAVYd
66'8) 4STTAON ¥2/S2I0 E€HZOLLLHNOD NOZYINY
66'61 el137dIdL $2/52/¥0 20128 L VELSN d AN NZWY
00°0¢C BSTTAOA $2/52/¥0 NOLLAIYOSANS Ld91VHD
gL'1e 1318VAVd ¥2/52/%0 110 -ALID NODZIHO 40 ALID
gele ZAIISINODION $2/52/¥0 NI 94N % 133LS SYWYAHOVIO
612 OMONOH +2/52P0 £0¥EL00S.NOD NOZYNY
9z'¢ee uLL3adidL ¥2/52/¥0 EXDGSOTEELSN d N NZINY
|BJO1 3394yd pled junowy 9210AU]| uonduossaqg JOPUBA ajeq #3994o
yueqgde :9po2ueg
v20e/LelS o3 veO0e/Ls
19BN JBARY SeWeyde|D NdLy:e $202/1€/S0
y :ebed Bunsi A1ojsiH %29yo AjYyjuo }siHpode



G :abed

95°E6L'S 89°LL8' L LB6YLEND S1¥Vd A3NYNLTY YO LIaFHD
08°02% 68Y.5T) IdVL XYM
6,602 09€85Z1 TdTY dLM HOH SHOLYNLOV ANV SIATVA ¥3L TS
00'€52'2 Bv9.L5ZL O74 #061 S¥g £ F3L SuUg
056682 199/52) ¥0-6282 SOd | B IATVAILYD 1Q.£ Od | ONI SISIdHILINT NOSNOHI4 ¥¥8L0  ¥20Z/80/S0  G8EY6
9ZoV'e 99'9z- 9vZZLEND TN OADO HYF1D
05'92 £585€5T HIVdIY 21D HO4 SONILLIS
LLze A YRATA HIYd3Y 21O ¥ SONILLIA
0Z'LS 5590€52 HIVd3Y 21D HO4 SONILLIS
8. v8 2992952 TIVLSNI LNINWNHLSNI ¥OS ONILLIS
oL/8 1520142 HIVAIY 21D YO SONILLIS
L8601 1¥£9952 SININNYLSNI MIN HO ONISNNTD
¥Z'160°€ 1-2520.¥C HIVdId 21D HO SONILLIA ONI STSIMdYIINTG NOSNOWIH ¥P8L0  ¥20Z/80/S0  ¥8BE96
00°00L'% 00°00L'Y 9e551 ¥Z Ad - T0¥1vd ANILNOY SIDIAYIS ALIMNOIS JAILNOIXI 08S¥0  PTOZ/B0/S0  £8E96
05228 05728 z86l ONINIVHL ¥AAA T3ATT AYLNT 100 SISINAYALIND 1STIN IOV L6670  +Z0Z/R0/SO  ZBEY6
529 5.9 82812¢ S1IMOVd QHvOs 40 A¥3IAINEA ONI LHOdSNYHL 103MIA 81260 $202/80/SO  L8E96
00°0¥5'S 00°0¥5'S 9080¢€€ JONYNILNIVIN ONIdYISANYT 202 TddY ONIdYOSANY1 SNITHD TWLSAUD 95820  +202/80/50  08E96
00°02¥ 00002 $2'20°60 334 4IMa WyXa 1d0
00022 ¥2'S2%0 334 1831100 LITMO0HD OIVHO 08YP0  +202/20/50  BLE96
8E¥BL' L 8ev6l'L 512061¥2) TIve ITTFHOVY [$TDINYIS HH dNZL ONI44V.LS TVIONYNIH SAILYIHO 22bE0  $202/80/S0  BLEYE
00°595°04 00'595°0} 2T A¥d QvOd ANVIaT "ONI ‘SHOAIAMNS ANV SSYAWOD v2220  $202/80/S0  LI€96
8v'020'} 00°00€ 00°0L¥5¥E NOOY diNNd ¥FMOT IHL NI ¥00a 40 divdId
8v'0Z.L 00°'8LL2Ye H00Q dVOIONVH H0 dIvd3d ONINMOHO 0Z€¥0  ¥202/80/S0  9.E£96
00'GLE'E) 00'GLEEL Z60v¢ INOS ¥ OVHLYHNA HLIM 2 LOVOXAAH OT1OVHLNIHO 86590  +202/80/S0  SLE96
vrezy'L vrezy'l S¥0E300 IAUYMAAVH LI "ONI INSWNY3AOD MO0 LLEO0  ¥202/80/S0  ¥2£96
66'69 66'69 CATA L) $1008 HOd STTOSN! ONIM T INIVO VAHSOr 665¥0  v20Z/80/S0  €.£96
00°0L0°} 00°00'} 6080020003 02100 1# 3die0al punjey OT71'vyMILYTIZE €09¥0  ¥Z0Z/B0/S0  2LE96
¥5'89Y ¥5'v8 £9895¥1625 TddNS “INIVA ONIGTINE - 0006¥9¥E6# "LODY
- PS8 2.L225%1625 ddNS "LNIYIN ONIGTING - 0006¥9PE6# "LOOY
je1ol 329yo pied junowy a210AU| uopduasaq JOPUBA ajeqg #934D
jueqgde :apodueg
¥20C/Le/S o1 ve0ce/bS
J3]JeMA JBAIY Sewe)de|D NdLYy:€ ¥202/1€/S0
G :abed Bunsi A1o3siH %29yd AJyjuon IsiHpode




9 :abey

95'69% 98697 0€082618 0052 # MONYL NO Hivd3ad YNNI LY Oldvd 80 dNOYUD HONHL HIINIHd 6£5Y0 +202/80/50 €096
6429 6L49 ¥Z'SZ'0 [9-6¥€3v208 a1 971 AlddNS O1LOFTE LIV1d 620¥0  20Z/30/S0 2096
6¥'991 6%'991 2208¥¥0 SdOSAS ® LNV1d ONI GdvO0d13d §18€0 ¥202/80/50 10¥96
00081 00081 0.82£96205 $202 AVIN €2€L18SG0L #1000V ASYIT H3IH0OD NOILYWOLNY 301440 D1410vd 86110 #202/80/G0 0096
65°GELTL 65°6ELT) ¥2°20°'50 NODIHO NI "1SND MO OL OAS HO4 SINIWAVYC 40 ALID *ALID NODIHO 87000 +20¢2/80/50 66£96
1°820°L L1°820°L #2°€0°60 dd ¥2°€0°G0 ¥d H04 S3NA NOINN FNOSHVY NODIHO £2800 #202/80/50 86£96
ZLZys'e zLzys'e ¥2'20'60 dOTIMVYO NI “LSND MY OL JAS HOd SININWAYL H1SI0 SADIAELS ¥ LVYM FDC0T HVYO 95000 ¥202/80/G0 16E96
0089¢g'cl 00'89¢'ch v120LddiN SHIVdIY AV HUILVYM 38 86241 NOSY3LLVYd IMIN €€810 202/80/50 96£96
G0'89t'9 G089¥'9 6LcllL €% 21 310A0 SAvad ANNP 0711 SH3AVIIALINW 21000 ¥202/80/50 G6E£96
zLzie's oosel ovLE MHOM LOVHLINOD
00042 A 7A% HIHOM LOVHLINOD
04°009'L ov.LIe NOLLYDINNNWOD3N3L
Zyroog'e 6ELE dNMOVE V1VA NS FHYMLHOS LI "ONI dNOHED ADOTONHOIAL INOHAVYIN 081 ¥0 +202/80/50 ¥6£96
86°62C 66'vLL +16€2800.L22 1NINNDITY 001-80
66'¥LL £16€4800.22 LNINNDITY 002-L0 ONI SHILINTO YL gYMHDS S37 €€100 +202/80/S0 £6£96
6E'¥6E v6'CLl 0LZLZ¥8SLL TIVO ADING3S - 0L6G6ZN #1SNO
[ Y44 25Y96G68GL1 TIVD ADINYTS - 0L6S62ZN #1SNO ONI INOM 22620 ¥20¢/80/50 26£96
8LLLL 8L'LLL ¥160LL SNOILYDIHIQOW A¥d Sd NYLLVH  ONI SINV.LINSNOO SMNIAMAGQINNIM 6660  +202/80/50  16E96
GL'901'L GL°90LL §09eZTd 9G620-+022 95¢0-+022 3AY HId IS £LL0L ONI NOD3HO 40 S3JINGIAS d 8 M $8220 ¥202/80/50 06£96
26°¥68'G 00°60% 01620} IWOIT VHINID
267688 116201 IVOFT TVHINID
00°009'% 606201 BV ERRERENED) Od ONOTONVHYYH 0¥Z€0  $202/80/S0  68€96
¥6°608 00'vL 2612900606 HIVday 70 €04 SONILLIA
v6°1L6L 9..50¥£506 SNId X007Qvd 9 ONI YIONIVIED L9100 $202/80/50 88€96
00°00%'22 00°00%'22 ¥E€806¥1 00-0099 SOd 002 ONI O1410Vd Tvd3INAD 22£20 ¥202/80/50 L8E96
6£°.82 6€°L8C £Z9LZANI H3LIN MOTH 00-M DOYINOHJ (1) STOHINOD ¥ SLINIWNHLSNI d131d 622€0 ¥202/80/50 98€96
{ejol 3oayo pied junowy a210AU] uopduoasaqg JOPUBA ajeqg #294D
jueqde :apodueg
¥20e/1elS o va0e/LlSs
I9JBN JBALY seweyde[D Ndiv:e ¥202/1.€/50
g :abed Bunsi A1oisiH 32ayo Ajyjuop IsiHyode



] :abed

¥9'602 LYy 2126152 IATVA NIVIN MG 1Sd HO4 SSvug
6L'GL 169152 SONILLIA OAdD
106 8vzLL52 SLi4 3LYO0T3Y YANIVHLS S13NSva ONI SISIMAYIINT NOSNOYTS ¥P8L0  bZOZ/LLISO  LZb96
¥5'889'8 98'982'c £9£8521 143 dIM HO4 SHOLYNLOY ANV SIATVA ¥ LTI
89'109'S 6v6.52) SLM  ALFAVS Ol44vaiL ONI SISIUAYTINT NOSNOYTS $¥8L0 +Z0Z/LLSO  0Zv96
¥6'529'vZ ¥6'529'%2 10 SHOM HIVd3d I0arg aNzs NOLLONHLSNOD SNOS B AMINI €760  $20Z/LLSO  6L¥96
00°SELL 00°SELL 9201 SHIV4TY YOIMALNI ONIGTING NINAY SUIVAT ® SHHOM HOINILNI OSD 095%0  $20Z/LLISO  8LY96
000£L'Z 000822 Le65EE HIVdTY YT ININGS INTWLYIEL ONIdVOSANY] SNITUO TVLSAND 95820  $20Z/LLSO  LLY96
19°€SE 19°€5e LZ65050298€6.L /3 ‘NOILONA3A TIOUAYd AHYLNNTOA ¥20Z AV 341 VINOTOD 61600 $202/L/SO  9L¥96
¥0'98L'L $098L') NI-ZE£9950 013 WVINOIY AIAYIINN VO 008 ONINISNILSINHO L18E0  ¥20Z/LLSO  G¥96
181282 181282 82606 JOVISOd OL Qarlddy LIa3dd OT1°SIDIAYIS ONIIVIA ON3E L08¥0  vZ0T/LLISO  ¥1+96
890201 89°0.0'} L££920 202 AVIN 1ONAIA TIOMAYd “TOA - EXNX0 200V JONVMNSSY 3411 ATIAYS NYORISNY 20000 #20Z/Z4S0  €L¥96
00'051' 00°054'2 ANL LINSNOD LIGNY/ZONYNIA OT1ONILTNSNOD I41OMELSPO  $202/80/S0 21496
g5'se 5g'se 8£S0L JI3HM ONIONVS SNId HOLIH JUVMANYH 9 0334 VLHOIM 89100 $20Z/80/50 L1496
00°geL'e 00°GeL'S vi8¥E SMIMANY SIAVHL 40 STOIAYIS IYEOTOSM S8PH0  $202/80/S0  OLb96
0029 00'LS 0S8.S¥H-ANI SWOOHLSTY T1V.LHOd 40 ONINVITO
00'1S 65L15¥¥-ANI SWOOYLSTY T19V.LHOd
00081 CLEPYEEL-PLL V.LNIY SIWOOMLSTY T18V.LHOd 40 ONINYITO
00°09€ ZLYEVEEL-PLL JAISHIAIY SWOOMLSTY T18V.LHOd 40 ONINVITO ONI SIOIANIS ILIS GILINN 20100 $202/80/S0 60¥96
00'shz 0021l 8095909 TiddY L00E0.} # 1SND -¥a NYONYIA IS 0016
00'L€) £490Z19vY IAM3S TOUINOD LS3d THdV- LL0S0LL #1SND ONI TYNOLLYNYILNI XININGIL 28200  $202/80/50  80¥96
5v'119'82 5v'219'8Z 898.7 w0 NOVNYIN IS 0016 NOILOIJSNI LINVA ANVAINOD DIM10313 WYIL Y6660  ¥20Z/80/S0  LOV96
gzevs's gzeve'e AR L Y2/E2I%0-91/70 0 NOSVO Lbb8 ONI TY.INIWNOHIANT ALID MIAIM 87660 ¥202/80/S0  90+96
19752 IR £.££22801 0L/%0 61626.8-9/21201# SIAOD TYNOILIAQY
98'802 268512801 Z4/v0 §6657.£-9/21201# STIJOD TYNOLLIAAY "ONI 'VSA HODIN 62200  ¥202/80/S0  SOb96
50'981'G1 5098161 £1856 ONULSNOD B NDISTA LOFFOHd TVHNLONALS dIM ONI ONINIINIONT ZHY 96660 ¥202/80/S0  #0¥96
1e10] o3yo pred junowy 8310AU] uonduosag I0pUSA ajeq #Mo9uD
jueqde :apo2diueg
v202/18/S o1 ¥20c/L/S
19JBAN IDAIY Sewe)de|)d iNdLY-€ ¥202/1L£/S0
1 :obed Bunsi A103siH Y29Yy9d A[yjuop IsiHyode




g :abed

00012 82£€3 STADIAYIS ONIJIIMS LOT AV
00522 g8/ee3 STOIAHIS ONIJIIMS LOT AV ONIJIIMS TILNYD ¥0£00  ¥20Z/%2/S0  8v96
00°0¢ 0008 1850} SNId HOLIH Z) JYVMAUVYH 3 0334 VLHOIM 89100 $202/LL/SO  LEV96
00°08 0008 ¥2'20'50 202 Y4V 334 NINQY dHIN ONI AONTOV IONVHNSNI VHM 24220 $20Z/LL/SO  9E¥96
00°SLY'LL 00°0LL'% 6667 SMIHANY SIAVHL 40 SIOIAYIS
005029 ¥60SE SMIUANY SIAVRL 40 STOIANIS IWYEOIOSMG8YP0  bZO0Z/LLISO  SEV96
8922 8922 0825708966 SAOUVHO INOHd T13D 10000-680LESTHI# DOV SSTTIYIM NOZINAA ¥6820  vZ0Z/LLISO  ¥EV9B
Shop Svop L9629v7-ANI SWOOYLSTY T1aV.LIOd 40 ONINVITD ONI SIOIAMIS TLIS GILINN L0400 ¥ZO0Z/LLSO  SE¥96
00°009'91 00°009'91 V3 Live ~95207422 ONI ‘SHOLOVMINOD Z-S €8080  +20Z/LLISO  ZEW9B
02'520°G 0Z°'€06'L 02£2¥5E9 TIOHAVd - NOILISOd ASYHOJINAL
00ZLL'E £8EE15E9 TIOHAYd - NOILISOd A¥YHOdINIL OT1 41vH 1¥390H 0LEV0  $20Z/LLISO  LEVY6
00°002'L 00°002'} 9£852.25¢€ 00S0-v0Z2 ~3AV ¥4 IS LL0L ONI TVINIIWNOMIANG ALID ¥IAIM 8¥SE0  +20Z/LLISO  0EH96
11086°T 6v'c8 6920699 STOOH ¥V3D Nivy
99'998'2 5892899 Q3ZINVATYO FATTTS INNOW HOO14 OT1 ALTAVS ZLIM GHOE0  $Z02/LLISO 6296
09'sSY 09°€5h ¥25010% $334 ONNO “ONI SLdIONOD TI¥D INO 62000  ¥20Z/LLISO 82796
00'569'2 0000} z8.g JUVMAUVH LI
00'sEl 65.8 FHOM LOVHLINOD
05202 L8 SHOM LOVHLINOD
00022 85.¢ IHOM LOVHINOD
00°00€ L2SE TUYMAUYH LI
05268 £l5¢ WHOM LOVHINOD
00°08€'} z90g SIHOM LOVHINOD  "ONI dNOYD ADOTONHOTL INOHAVN 08L¥0  $ZOZ/LLISO  LZ96
88'8zL 88'8TL ¥96950128 1417 dLM FONYNILNIVIN ATHILEYAD ONIINOM 22620 ¥20Z/LLISO  92v96
8249 8Z'%9 pZ’€0'60  TONIUILNOO THL LV ¥3EN ¥O4 LININISHNGNIZY NIMHIOQIIH OOL ¥OL¥0  ¥20Z/LLISO  SZTV96
2oL 29°2L £101L05¥606 HOSNIS ¥3LVA ONEYILYM ONI HIONIVYO L9100 ¥202T/LLSO  HTh96
¥z ez SS188P-29vF SYANVITO ININNIO SLMVd OLNY VAYN VEd 28880 $20Z/LLISO €296
vZ'£88 vZ2'c88 Z159 3130 IHOWS ORILOTTIOLOHd 40 NOILYTIVLSNI "ONI ISNOJSTY LS¥I4 €000 $20Z/LLISO 22996
{ej01 }o3yo pled junowy 9210AU] uonduasaq Jopuap ajeg #398UD
yueqde :9podueg
#20¢/LE/G o1 Y20Z/L/S
18]\ JBALY seuweqoe|D NdLY-€ ¥202/1€/S0
g :abed Bunsi A103siH %29y Ajyjuo }siHyOode




g :abed

80'66 80'66 LLELOZ) SLHVd SSVYE &L $Od Tb ONI STSINAYILINT NOSNONTA ¥P8L0  ¥20Z/b2/S0  65+96
6928 6928 9510200040 186¥P0#1SD PUnaY N MOOMETOH §0Y 40 ILVASTELOY0  $Z0T/HZISO  BG96
16'18) 16'18) LS€10200048Y S£Z9Z0# 150 PuUnjey N NOSTOH O }ONHO 40 ILVISI 8090  $20ZHZ/SO 15596
£6°€5LT £8€SL'T 60288} NVNILNIVA ONY ONRHOLINOIN WILSAS ALMNOIS JUNOISWVOI 61¥0  ¥202HZISO 95596
LUYS LLbS oL9zze S13Y0Vd auvOa 40 A¥IAINAA ONI LHOdSNYYL LOTFHIA8LZE0  $20Z/h2/SO 596
6vave 6v8ve 59210200040 ZIGSPO#1SOPUNRY EN  INTWAOTIAIA ALNNOD SYNVMOVIO ¥IO¥0  $Z0Z/WZ/S0  ¥5¥96
00°009'} 00°009'} 820} 3Qvy9dN VIHY 3AISLNO NINGY SHIVATY ? SHMOM MORITLNI DS 09550  $20Z/be/S0  €S+96
00'062 00062 evL6gE SINTWIOVITY QVIH YT DINRAS ONIdVOSONY'T SNITNO TVLSANO 96820 $20Z/¥2/S0  25%96
1582 15°8L 09€ 10200050 ZPGOL0# 150 PUNRY 8N ~AGSOND INNVIT bLOK0  $2Z0T/HTSO 1596
8r69Y' | 8y'69%'} ZLZ0L4bTL TIvE ITIIHOVY [STOIALIS ¥H dNTL ONIZHVLS TYIONVNIA SAILVINO ZLVE0  ¥20Z/%2/S0  05v96
81866 81866 265¥5EN 30HS TYOILYIA 26-N Od | JINIVIN® IHOD £L000  ¥202/WZ/SO  6vb96
02'260'% 02'260'F 5059690 00-0.89 40 SOd ¥} JTNIVA® IHOO L1000  +202/b2/S0  8¥H96
00'598'% 00'598'F V-2V HOEL9LZZM 'z ISVH ¥ ANZE - STOIAYIS ONIIINIONT VOIMINY HLMON HOSNOD 86280 ¥20Z/be/s0  Lbb96
$8'952 58'952 " ezLe602 LINYTLNI T18YO ATHLNOW LSYOINOD 1SVONOD §S520  ¥202/%2/S0  9vb96
000} 00°€0} ¥202-90821829 /20 ANY1LHOd 40 ALID - ONIN3HO 13THLS HO ALTMNS YNO GE9E0  $T0Z/HTISO  Svb96
02'0LE 0Z'0LE 9e9€1T O ¥3SN ¥3d I3 HISN ATHLNOW / E5L0-SWHO INTNIOVNVIN SQHOOTH ANOTO L6SE0  +Z0Z/H2/S0  b¥b96
00’82} 00'82} ¥2'8060 O 3SYHd ¥ ANVIAZY INSWISY3 40 ONIQHOO3Y ALNNOD SYINVHOVIO 00200  #202/42/S0 £¥b96
LZET L bLZET L £61000S€0ILS S3ddNS/dvOS/EIdVd $20Z TIHdY SNOILNTOS ALIIOVA SAIM ALIO 95260 $202/v2/S0  2vb96
85'L0¥ 85'1L0Y ¥2'¥0'50 VIN STOIAYIS INOHd 8169 §200-50Z-€08 #00Y WNITANNLINTO 9100 +202/%2/S0  L¥b96
zZ0'e6L zZ0'g6L LLiZSrY JHYMLAOS ® STVYTHINId ¥ILNAINOD "ONI INSWNYIAOD MAD LIE00  $202/42/S0  Ovb96
L0082 52'80¢ 259688 31140 THOOAH NNIAOS - VISNNT0D 3AVISYO

z0zLy'L 01e688 QIov DIgHO0SY ONI 00 1SId VIGNNTOD JAVOSYO 9vSL0  20Z/42/S0  6+96
00'829 00°€6} 69.£53 SIOINYTS ONIGIIMS 1O AV
[ej01 ¥93yo pled junowy 3910AU] uonduosaqg 10pUap sl #399YsH
yueqde :8podueg
V20eIlelG o1 ¥e0e/L/S
I9]JBM\ 19AIY seweqoe[d INdLy:€ ¥202/LE/S0
6 :9beg Bunsi A10)siH ¥22yo Ajyuop IsiHyode



0l :abey

00004 00°00} £€806 100- WYX3 TVOISAH  HLTvEH TYNOILYANOO0 IONIAINOY 16100 $20Z/42/S0 61496
oviLL orLLL 69€102000J0Y ¥61Lp0# 15O puUnjay €0 (dIV) SIDOTONA 8LO¥0  ¥20242ISO 8996
82'129'6 82'119'6 ¥202 AV 221 801 #D0V ‘AL18 08AY ‘Il 202 AV dNOXHO TYIONYNIH TVAIONINd 98620 v20Z/v2/S0 21496
B LSE'LE £2'651'E ¥20Z TiadY NINGY ¥202 Tddv NINGY

69'282'8 ¥20Z ddV dLM 202 TddY LNVTd INSWLYIHL H3LYM
16'606'ST NOILVLS diNNd 202 ddY  NOILYLS diNNd 394 12000 2024TS0  9Lv96
9229 9,29 95€10200040Y 060€1L0# 150 Puney €n DIV IINNOS B SINNIA L09V0  +202/b2/S0 §L596
62686 62686 ¥2'L1°50 ¥d ¥2'21°50 ¥d ¥O4 S3NA NOINN JINOSHY NOOTMO ££800  +20Z/%2/S0  $Lv96
19'E29'P0} 19'€29'70} €09y Z ISVHd INIMYILYM ANYIATY ONIONNTANSS0¥0  $202/b2/SO €196
£7'5E0'} £7'5E0'} £6600/ANI STvHE ANV SFOIANIS HLIM INIWNOITY 40 ALID ‘TNVMTINGEL00  $202/42/S0  2Lb96
Zro0e's Zroos'e 86.e dMYOVE VIVA 8NS TUVMLAOS 11 "ONI dNOYD ADOTONHOIL INOHAVIN 08170 $20Z2/S0  LLY96
A Al 1598800.22 HOSNIS SN L/LNINNDITY 004-02 ONI SHILNIO JuIL GVMHOS STTEEL00  $202b2/SO 0496
9,921 9192} 89€102000J0Y BEOGHO#ISD PUNISY BN sud] ALTYIY 3SVET 1IN WVIONINNOD LL9Y0  $20Z/42/S0 69796
£9'126'0L 281982 216111 SNOILVOIAIGON A¥d Sd NYLLYH  # %SV.L
LS S0'PL 12611} AQNLS YZIMOd ADNIONINT ALMIOVA Sd  ONI SINVLTNSNOD SHNIMAQINNIN 66460 ¥20Z42/S0  89v96
Z5ovr'z 05156 zZsie2TI8 0060-+022-3AV Hid 3S 202
20'6%'} gzsezTIg 00505022 NOS¥Y 3S 178 ONINODINO 40 STOINYIS A8 X #8220 ¥20T/HZISO  L9Y96
¥1'289'} ¥2'289'} 85€102000J0x SEOVE0# 1SO pUnieY €N XOS IHLNIMOVF 60950 $20Z/b2/S0 9996
€449 €149 £92102000J0Y 055¥P0# 150 Puney €N OVOH ITIFINVA 60550 v20Z/h2/S0  S9v96
2082 Ze05'2 06610291 90-009. L4 8% ONI OO MTMO4 QHPZI00  v20Z/be/SO  $9v96
005922 00'59'L £00€ 5100z TIVLSNI TIN4 &'} OT1ONILYAVOX3 1D 92vE0  $202/2/S0  E9¥96
9655 9655 19210200040 LLL0V0#150 punjey &n ~LNVHO THINSSSE0  b20Z/HTSO 2996
67Zve ores 692090116 138 T3SIHD @109
68'892 S/G1S5EL06 3SVIMO JAVHO 004 B LNOMO0T F1avD rav ONIMTONIVHD L9100 $202/¥2/S0  L9¥96
95'E6 956 SPPBZANI ONINOISSINNOD 00F M OVINOYd STOMLINOD ® SINTWNYLSNI Q1314 SLLE0  ¥202/H2/S0  09v96
|1ejol ¥o8yH pled junowy 3210AU[ uonduosag 10pUaA a)eg #3998y
jueqde :8po2ueg
¥20¢/LE/S o1 $2C0Z/LIS
19]BAA JOAIY Sewie)}oe|D Nd LY € Y202/1€/50
01 :obed Bunsi A103sIH %29Yyd Ajyjuop IsiHyOde



L1 :ebed

6168 6168 ¥2'91°50 202 AVIN 296 0029-62.-608 #0OOV YNITAMNINGO $9L00  v202/62/S0  L6+96
oLl 0LELL 65£10200040Y LE6YE0#1SD PUNRY AN ASHNVA NHOP 0190 $202/b2/S0  96+96
00°055°0L 00°055°01 ¥92001-€ SY3AAYT SSIOOV ¥IAITIA ANV 3LYOIdavH 977 ONIMNLOVANNYIN LHOIMM 60880 ¥202/42/S0 56596
£961L°Z 60255 G-4/G1-02/2056 G # 1SN0 - NYONVIN-SIOIANIS TYAONIY HSVHL

¥5I01'T L¥1G1-69/20G6 - aVd JAISYIAR-SIOINYTS TYAONTH HSVL NOOTHO 40 INIWAOVNYIN ALSYM 0SL00  p20T/v2ISO  ¥6+96
G6'L8 s6'Le 19102000534 ¥G/G0# 15O PUNRY AN (W) SNICHIVM MM 9L9¥0  ¥202/b2/S0 €696
00°688 00685 goLge SMIMANY SIAVHL 40 SIDIANIS TVEOTIOEMSePP0  $Z02/¥2/S0  Z6V96
Y1 YOV'T 96'G6¢ 6656085966 SIOUYHO INOHd TI30 20000-2225 L LZ20# D0V
82'800'2 86£608£966 STIOUYHO INOHA T130 10000-2225 4422 DOV SSTTIYIM NOZINIA ¥5820  v20ZHZISO  L6+96
00'beE 00'vEE EYZL6V-ANI HSYMANVH HLIM TYLNIY dOHS ONI SIDIANIS IS GALINN L0100 +202/#2/S0  06%96
00'102°8L 00'10L'82 ZVOYG00-€0 NVH90Yd SLIFANIE HLITVIH AV NODIHO D0SSY SLORMLSIA WIOAdS 22600  ¥202/42/S0 6896
€251 €251 99€10200042% 1Z/S0# 15D pUNIaY N JUVS VANOLGLOV0  ¥20Z/b2/SO  88Y96
00'ZLL'E 00'2LL'E G/60.5€9 TIOHAYd - NOILISOd AMYHOJWAL OT1 4TVH L3908 0LE¥0  +202/¥2/S0 L8%96
00'Z2L'E 00'Z2L'E 8125859 TIOMAVd - NOILLISOd AMVHOJINAL OV 4TVH 1NIG0H 0LEY0  +202/h2/S0 98596
89'888'} 89'888'L £50£8£55€ 9820-702Z QNYTYIAO IS 0S0Z ONI TVANIWNONIANT ALID MIAIM 86680 $202/b2/S0 S8¥96
00'80€'S 09'199 82rv699 walsAS [BABLISY PUE UORS}0Ld [fed
ov'ore'T 9zrP699 WaISAS fensjey pue uoRoslold e OTIALIAVS ZLIM Y980  ¥20Z/¥2/S0  #8¥96
ov'es ov's6 29€10200042Y 92985 0# 150 Punjey gn STYINIY VIAYYIN B NOWIWVO ZLOP0  v20T/H2/SO  £8Y96
159 1559 $5£102000)0Y LELL0# 1S PURaY AN SSDINIY 1HIGOH 00990 ¥20Z/42ISO  28Y96
95°082 LeL L¥GPEE6908 LO/0 61626.8-9221201# S3I40D TYNOILIAAY
556 £2.10¥6908 LO/Y0 61626.8-9/2120L# STAOD TYNOILIAAY
e GZ0V8E6905 0£/P0 S66GFLE-0221201# STIAOD TYNOILLIAAY "ONI 'VSN HOOIM 62200 +20Z/¥72/S0  18%96
00000°€ 00°008 06¥ QIVd $Z Ad - INVHO - LTNSNOD W3
00°000't g8y QIVd $2 Ad - INVHO - LTNSNOD W3
00'005'L 68v QIVd %2 Ad - INVHO - 1INSNOD W3 OT1LSAMHLNON AQYIN €8VP0  $20T/H2/SO 08¥96
[ejol 3y93yn pled junowy @210AU| uonduasag 10pusp ajleq #3%98yD
jueqde :apodueg
VZOC/LEIS o1 ¥20e/L/S
J9JBAA 19AIY Sewe)oe|D NdLy-¢ ¥202/1L¢/S0
L1 :obed Bunsi AioysiH 399yo Ajlyjuop IsiHyOde




2| :ebed

00629 00649 9616¢€ SMIUCANY SIAVYL 40 SFDIAYIS IVEOTOEM 5840 ¥Z02/62/50 L1696
00°16S 001G L816LGP-ANI SWOOH1STH YOOHIANNNS =S 1016
0008} 9z5198¢1¥L L SWOOULSTYH Muvd IAISHIAIY
00°09¢ 698098EL-¥LL SWOOYLSTY Maivd FAISHINY ONI SFDINYZS JLIS QI LINN L0100 ¥Z02/62/50 91596
0025¢'¢ 00°009't £7018£5G€E 96207022 1S ALLO IS 666/
00°26L'L S0L0GEYSE 8£20-¥022 IAY AISNVD IS 60.8 ONI TV.ANIWNOHIANG ALID H3AI 87GE0 ¥202/62/50 51596
98802 98802 058162901 S0/90 §66G+/£-9.21Z0L# SHIIOD TYNOILIAGY "ONI “YSN HODIY 62200 ¥202/62/50  +1596
1952 SL'GY 296/20€801 01/50 616.6/8-9/Z1Z0L# SAIHOD TYNOILIAAY
98802 8v8162801 LISO -¥LL€LE-9/Z1Z0L# SAOVINI TYNOLLIGAY “ONI 'YSN HODY 62200 ¥202/62/50  £1596
00°00¢ 00°00€ ¥2'82°60 9 IOIAYIS HO SUVIA HOL HOaV1 B STVIHILYN Avd NTT© 166€0 yZ02/62/S0  2LG96
GTLLG'L STATAR S AVIN-8120-006-008 ¥Z AVIN 334 IOVHIAC ANV TII43Y F9VLSOd 71 OAS NI4 V01O S3MOE AINLId 81000 ¥202/62/S0 L1596
80°¢/6 80°€/6 000-6£€v6Y 33dS HOIH 0L 3INA YOLYHANIO 04 TIv0 AIS OT1 dNOUD YIMOd D1310Vd 0220 ¥202/62/50 01596
z9'96¢ 28'96¢ 9PEYIZ ~SIOVNI TYNOLIAAY ATHILEYND NOILYWOLNY F31440 D14I0Vd 86410 ¥202/62/S0 60596
00099t 00'099'% 1611 SYTLIN ZE ONILSAL HILAN HIOEYT € HILYM B MV HILIN NOOFHO 68€40 ¥202/62/50 80596
86°'86%'G BV BYLC V898 MIOVE HUIM INFWIOV 1d3d MOve HIAYIS vavos
BY67LT 8/9¢ MMOVE HLIM INTWIOVIdIN MOVY ¥FANIS VAYOS  “ONI dNOHD ADOTONHOIL INOUAVIN 08170 ¥20Z/62/50  L0G96
00°6€6'L 00°5E6°t L8YE0L-ANI SIDIAYIAS TYNOISSIHOHd ONI SHIMSNY dH £Z£00 ¥202/62/50 90596
y6vEY v6 ey ¥2'12'S0 INIAT FFAOTINT dLM MONOH NIAILS 96540 ¥Z02/62/50 0596
19'728'e L9v2e'e ovzLL 001-€Z OL HIvd3d SHHOMNYIHA GOYLOH 209%0 $202/62/50  $0596
0Z Lyl 0T L¥L 891187991 SONILLIA HLIM JSOH 331421 SOd 8 ONI 00 ¥3IMO4 O H #2100 $202/62/50  £0596
00°96 00°96 S0LLL ONIdNNG STHOLS 40 avO13NO O7T1803¥8 MOTIFA00D LL¥i0 ¥202/62/S0 20996
00°006'¢ 00°006'¢ 95961 $Z Ad - 10¥LVd 3NILNOY SHOIAYIS ALIMNDIS FAILONDIXI 08EH0 ¥Z02Z/62/50  L0S96
00'981 00°981 ¥T€T'50 334 1S3L NOILYOIAILETD ANV NOILYOddY 0L13dad ATHL 18¥70 $202/62/50 00596
0¥'Z0L' L 0¥'Z0L'L §98856N 90-1282 303Id | d7 NIVIN R FHOD £1000 ¥202/62/50  66¥96
0£208'12 0£'20¢°12 P-LY HOELOLZZM 1D ‘SONISSOND 5021 SADIAYIS ONIYIINIONT VOIRYINY HLHON ¥OSNOD 8£2€0 ¥202/62/S0  86¥96
[ejo 3osyon pied junowy ad10AU| uonduosag JOpuap ajeq #309YD
yueqde :apodjueg
vC0C/LelG o1 ¥e0e/L/G
191BAN JOATY Seweyoe|D INd L€ ¥202/1LE/S0
Z1 :abed Bunsi A103siH Y29y9 Alyjuo IsiHyOde




¢l :abed

90°18¢°188 S)o8YQ [ejoL Hodal siyl Ul sHo8Yd L9l
90°18¢°188 llejo jueqde
jejoL yo9yo pled junowy 9210AU| uonduossaqg 10pUBA ajeq #284D
Mueqde :9pod)ueg
Y20C/LE/S o1 ¥20ce/i/S
193BAN JOAIY sewe)oe|D NdLy:¢ v202/1€/S0
¢} :abeg Bunsit A103siH X29yo Alyjuon IsiHyode



Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-2
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report
DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the consent agenda
EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Apptrove the consent agenda items.
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND
Clackamas River Water
Cash & Investment Ending Balances by Month
FY 2024
US Bank LGIP LGIP
General interest Interest
Checking LGIP Total Earnings Rate
July $ 7,003,421 $ 19,201,790 $ 26,205,211 $ 66,723 4.11%
Aug $ 7,229,010 $ 19,273,810  $ 26,502,820 $ 72,020 4.42%
Sept $ 8,455,698 $ 19,347,156  $ 27,802,854 $ 73,346 4.63%
Oct S 3,076,682 $ 24,445,249 S 27,521,931 S 98,094 4.90%
Nov S 3,664,569 $ 24,545,709 S 28,210,278 $ 100,400 5.00%
Dec S 1,834,249 $ 26,656,520 S 28,490,769 $ 110,811 5.00%
Jan S 1,893,738 $ 26,769,394 S 28,663,132 $ 112,874 5.00%
Feb S 1,826,691 $ 26,879,690 $ 28,706,381 $ 110,296 5.20%
Mar $ 2,110,418 $ 26,998,078 S 29,108,496 $ 118,388 5.20%
Apr S 707,639 $ 27,113,152 $ 27,820,791 $ 115,074 5.20%
May S 1,024,726 $ 27,232,568 S 28,257,294 $ 119,416 5.20%
June 13, 2024 Agenda Iren CA-2 Page 7 of 1




Agenda Item —

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CA-3
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Contract Amendment with Cascade Columbia
Exceeding the General Managers Signature Authority
DRAFT MOTION I move to approve the contract amendment with Cascade Columbia for the
Not To Exceed Amount of $115,000; and authotize the General Manager
to sign the completed contract.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFE
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Boatd is requested to approve the contract amendment with Cascade
REQUESTED Columbia for water treatment chemicals for the not to exceed amount of
$115,000.
DOCUMENTS None
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The existing contract with Cascade Columbia was entered into effective
August 1, 2023. Cascade Columbia Distributing supplies necessaty chemicals
to CRW fot watet treatment. Since the commencement of the cutrent
contract term there has been an increase in the cost of chemical supplies due
to market demand. ‘
Cascade Columbia has been a reliable supplier of the necessaty water
ANALYSIS treatment chemicals and has been timely in their delivery and provided a
quality product that meets the needs of CRW.
Approve the amendment of the contract with a Not-to-Exceed amount
STAFF of $115,000 for water treatment chemicals with Cascade Columbia
RECOMMENDATION Distributing.

June 13, 2024

Agenda Item CA-3 Page 1 of 1




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 1

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT

Resolution No. 06-2024 — A Resolution Establishing Retail Water Rates,
System Development Charges, Miscellaneous Fees and Charges For
Services

DRAFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution No. 06-2024 updating Clackamas River Water
Rates, SDCs, Fees, and Charges
EFFECTIVE DATE July 1, 2024, unless otherwise noted in the Rates, Fees, and Chatges
Document
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consider Resolution No. 6-2024 updating Clackamas River Water Rates,
REQUESTED SDCs, Fees, and Charges
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A - Resolution No. 06-2024 that includes the “Rates, Fees and
ATTACHED Charges” document that is refetenced as Exhibit A in the Resolution
Exhibit B — Compatison of fees and charges that are proposed for change.
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND The District updates its Rates, Fees, and Charges document annually and posts

June 13, 2024

it to the CRW website. This Resolution No. 06-2024 updates the document
effective July 1, 2024, unless otherwise noted.

On May 15, 2024, the Board of Commissioners conducted a rate hearing
ptoposing a two-year rate plan, with an increase of 5.5% in each year, effective
September 1% of 2024 and 2025. Those rates are included in Resolution 06-
2024.

System Development Chatges (SDCs) are updated annually to reflect increases
in the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI). The
updated Rates, Fees, and Charges document updates the SDCs based on the
ENR CCIL

Other Miscellaneous Fees and Chatges for Setvices are reviewed annually to
establish the fees or charges associated with other services or fees that the
District administers. New vehicles are added, and sutplus vehicles are deleted
from the list.

Agenda Item 1 Page 1 of 1



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION 06-2024
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING RETAIL WATER RATES,
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES,
MISCELLANEOUS FEES, AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES

WHEREAS, the CRW Board of Commissioners is responsible for setting water rates for CRW'’s
customers, and

WHEREAS, Ordinance 01-2021 provides that the rates for direct retail water service shall be
updated annually as reflected in a Rates, Fees, and Charges document approved by the
Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners (the “Board”); and

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Resolution 12-2023 on May 11, 2023, which adopted a Rates,
Fees, and Charges document establishing CRW's direct retail water rates, updated system
development charges, and schedule of fees and charges for various services the district
provides; and

WHEREAS, the Board previously adopted Ordinance 03-2021 establishing system
development charges ("SDCs") and providing for them to be modified annually consistent
with the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI); and

WHEREAS, a public hearing and presentation of proposed rate increase for direct retail water
service was held May 15, 2024; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 264.312, notice of said public hearing and the
purpose thereof was given by mailing a notice of hearing to the patrons of the District in
accordance with the requirement of said statute.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners
that:

1. The “Rates, Fees, and Charges” document attached as Exhibit A to this resolution is
approved. The effective dates of specific rates, fees, and charges are as set out in the
adopted “Rates, SDCs, Fees, and Charges” document.

2. The rates, fees, and charges adopted by Resolution 12-2023 shall remain in effect until
the effective dates for such rates, fees, and charges set forth in the “Rates, SDCs, Fees, and
Charges” document attached as Exhibit A and adopted by this resolution.

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners on this 13" day of June
2024.

Sherry French, President

Tessah Danel, Secretary

04272816-1



EXHIBIT A

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES

Clackamas River Water

Effective: July 1, 2024
(unless otherwise noted)



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES
Water Rates Effective Date: 9/1/2024

Fee Variance and Waiver Statement

Based upon an unusual circumstance or event, demonstrated hardship, or public benefit, the General Manager
is authorized to waive or decrease a fee(s) or charge(s) in a particular matter or establish a fee not yet
authorized in this document. When a new fee is established by the General Manager it may be incorporated
into the Ordinance. It shall be communicated to the Board of Commissioners in writing to allow opportunity
for comment.

Any request for a waiver or reduction must be in writing.

Water Rates

The billing cycle for water customers in Cycle 1, 2 and 3 shall be for a two-month period billed at the end of
the even months (February, April, June, August, October, and December), due and payable on the 15th of the
odd months (January, March, May, July, September, and November), and delinquent on the 25th of that
month.

The billing cycle for water customers in Cycle 4 (commercial & industrial accounts, North of river) shall be for
a two-month period billed at the end of the odd months (January, March, May, July, September and
November), due and payable on the 15th of the even months (February, April, June, August, October and
December) and delinquent on the 25th of that month.

Cycle 1 and 2, in general, are residential customers North of the Clackamas River. Cycle 3 are customers
South of the Clackamas River. Cycle 4, in general, are commercial or industrial customers North of the
Clackamas River.

A late charge of $5 or 5% of balances greater than $100 will be assessed after the 25th of the month due.
The late fee becomes part of the total user charge due for the water utility.

Deposit: A $40 deposit may be charged for accounts on the shut off list, with an additional $10 charged for
each subsequent delinquency up to a maximum of $300 for residential customers and up to a maximum of
$400 for commercial customers. Accounts with property in foreclosure may be charged a higher initial deposit
at the District's discretion.



L9Y $
VL€ $

ey
R

Z901d
} dolg

$ P
$ 0

5Z/1/6 91y pasodoid

feLsnpul g [e10JswWwoD ‘Ajwed-Hnin

v2/li6 o1ed pasodoid

awinjoA
feLysnpu| g [BI0JOWWOY ‘Ajlwe-HniA

142,
Y0y
8c'€
Go'€

& N O N

GZ/116 21y pasodoid

ableyn Apowwio) [eyuapisey

/8 $ dn g gz ¥ 300|g
€8¢ $ ¥Z-6 € ooig
A $ 8-6G Z>ooig
68°C $ y-1 L %oo|d
VZ/1/6 91y vowoao._n_ QWIN|OA

1994 JanD 00} Jed (swnjop) abieyd Alpowwlo) [epuapisey

9/.'/8L'1L ce¥SLe

¢.L296 0¥'Z0L'e

61209 ¥2'G/6'L

ol'ley ¥6°¢/8

G9'Lye 0€99¥

$9'1LG1 [AR %0

99901 98°'¢6l

€568 8G90Vl

G8'v.L 8¢€°86

a8'v/. $ 191L $
99IMI2S sebieyd

ali4 Alypuow-ig

a91M19g dnsawoq Alyuopn-ig

qroz/1/6

vgGTlL'L 19'865'¢ zl
€GCL6 ov'S¥6'C oL
08°0.S 1TZ/8'L 8
Z.'66¢ 8878 9
60’622 66 LY 4
€LEYL 2£'182 €
oL'L0L G/e8l z
98'¥8 gz'eel zi L
G6°0. GZ'€6 L
G6'0. ¢ 8149 $ /€ 1IN4
9JIAISS wwm._wr_o 9JIAIOS Awmr_o:: 9Z1S I9)I9IN
all4 Alypuow-ig osawod AjyjuoN-ig
| veoz/1/6

GZ02/1/6 :91ed SAIOSYT Ssley Jelem
soley 42]ep\ [Ielay 10alId
191\ J9AIY sewede|)

¥Z202/1/6 ©1eQ SA0S4T Sejey ISk
sojey 191 |IB1ay 103.1d
191\ 19AIY seweoe|d




Clackamas River Water

System Development Charge Calculation Table

Effective July 1, 2024

ENR Factor 1.003905
Ordinance 01-2022 (1)
Meter MCE 2024 2024 Total
Size Weighting SDC SDC SDC
(Inches) Factor Reimbursement Improvement Charges
Full 3/4 1.00 4,313 6,327 10,639
1 1.67 7,190 10,545 17,735
11/2 3.33 14,380 21,093 35,473
2 5.33 23,008 33,744 56,752
3 10.60 46,015 67,489 113,504
4 16.67 71,900 105,450 177,350
6 33.33 143,798 210,901 354,700
8 53.33 230,078 337,442 567,520
10 76.67 330,738 485,072 815,810
12 112.50 485,321 711,792 1,197,113
1 Originating Ordinance updating methodology 02-2021, supersedes Ordinance 1-97
2 SDCs calculated on most recent Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index for Seattle.
ENR CClI Calculation: Index Factor
Seattle WA December 2022 15115.33 1.000000
Seattle WA December 2023 15174.36 1.003905

Engineering News Records (ENR)
Construction Cost Index (CCl)
Meter Capacity Equivalents (MCE)




i
|
:
|
i
E
!

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
Miscellaneous Fees and Charges

Domestic Service Installation:

7/1/2024
Water Rates Effective Date: 9/1/2024

Meter Drop-in (Existing Service Assembly)

3/4" or 1" Standard Meter $350
3/4" or 1" Meter w/Automatic Meter Reader (AMR) $600
1-1/2" or 2" Meter $1,300
Full Service Install T™O
Service Relocation T™O
Service Upgrade T™MO
Service Abandonment T™MO
Engineering Services:
Fire Service Review
Fire Hydrant T™O
Relocate Fire Hydrant T™O
Fire Service T™MO
Specification (CRW projects) TMO
Plan Check/Inspection (deposit required based on cost estimat: TMO
Field Flow Testing T™MO
General Hydraulic Modeling T™MO

Meter Test (If results are within AWWA standards)

TMO with $150 Minimum

Water Quality Test T™O

Bacterial Test:

Other water provider Per IGA/MOU
Other requests T™MO

Public Records:

Minimum Charge for Labor $25.00
Copies (per page) $0.10
Electronic Records CD or DVD readily available $10
Other Requested Services T™MO
Document Charges TMO

Annual Finanical Report (CAFR)* $25
Budget Document® $25

* Available at www.crwater.com
Waivers, reductions, exemptions
Per General Manager discretion

Cross Connection

must be written request

Late compliance test reporting
Disconnect penalty
Non-compliance penalty

$25
$100
up to $500/day



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
Miscellaneous Fees and Charges

Utility fees and penalties

7/1/2024
Water Rates Effective Date: 9/1/2024

Penalty Fee

Disconnect Fee

NSF Fee

After Hours (Non-emergency) Call Out

$5 or 5% of balance in excess of $100
$50

$35

TMO with $340 minimum

Removing, Obstructing Access, or Tampering / Interfering with the Meter or Distribution System:
(meter, fire hydrant, vault, valve, or any other part of the CRW water system)

Broken/Tampered Lock

Removing, Obstructing Access, or Tampering

with the Meter or Distribution System:
Deposit for Delinquent Account:

Residential

Commercial

Right-of-Way Usage Fee:

$200

TMO with $300 minimum

$300/ maximum
$400/ maximum

City of Oregon City
Resolution No. 13-26 11/15/2013 www.orcity.org
City of Happy Valley
Resolution No.16-13 7/1/2016 www.happyvalleyor.gov

Fire Hydrant Use - Unauthorized:

$0.25/2-month billing period

$0.07/2-month billing period

Unauthorized Fire Hydrant & Other Equipment Use $1,000
Non-approved Tank/Truck Use $1,000
Use of Water without a Permit $600
Fire Hydrant Use - Authorized:
Fire Hydrant Water Usage Permit:
Permit Fee (1 day) $150
Permit Fee (up to 4 months) annual $200
Permit Renewal Fee (up to 4 months) $25
- 2 renewals maximum
Security/Damage Deposit $2,400
Meter Fee (annual) $100
Usage (Reporting Required, $15 monthly minimum) Commercial Block 2 rate, $15 monthly minimum billing
Non-Reporting Penalty $ 50/Month

Late Exchange Fee (Hydrant meter)

Temporary Service

$ 150/Month

Standard Temporary Service (up to 120 days)

Standard Irrigation Service for Stormwater Facilities (per permit
or up to 3 years)

Temporary Service Extension (up to 120 days for standard, 1
year for Irrigation Services)

Other Fees & Charges:

$500 + Service Install + Estimated Abandonment Fee
$500 + Service Install + Estimated Abandonment Fee

$200 + Adjusted Abandonment Fee

Damaged Service/Property

Research

TMO

TMO



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Equipment and Vehicle Rates for Job Costing Effective Date: July 1, 2024
Equipment/Vehicle Current
Year Number Hourly Rate
Trailer
Trailmax T-12-UR Vehicle Hauler 2001 300 $ 15.75
Trailmax 20 ton-Trailer 2001 400 $ 42.00
Trailmax 20 ton-Trailer 1992 201 $ 42.00
Eagerbeaver Shoring Trailer 1991 202 $ 36.75
Trailmax GEMST Service Trailer T-16-T 2017 500 $ 21.00
Port-A-Potty Trailer #1 1999 205 $15.75
Port-A-Potty Trailer #2 1999 206 $15.75
Port-A-Potty w/ Hand Wash Trailer #3 2022 207 $21.00
Generator
Multi-quip Generator and Trailer 40KW 1989 927 $ 60.00
Onan Diesel Generator 250KW 1994 931 §$ 100.00
Miller Generator/Welder 1990 933 § 20.00
Onan Diesel Generator 250KW 1998 934 $ 100.00
Multi-quip Generator and Trailer 40KW 1990 928 §$ 60.00
Miscellaneous Tools
Yanmar Excavator - Mini/Attachments 2006 07-E1000 $ 52.50
Speed Shoring Shield Box 8 X 8 1994 950 $ 21.00
Speed Shoring Shield Box 8 X 8 1992 951 $ 21.00
Asphalt/Concrete Saw 2018 18-003 $ 52.50
Toyota Fork Lift 2019 F19 $ 36.75
John Deere 410L Backhoe 2020 20-1000 $ 68.25
Vac-Trailer Valve Box Cleaner 2022 1470 $ 68.25
John Deere 344L Front End Loader 2022 22-1000 $ 68.25
Dump Truck
5YD. GMC. 1994 2200 $ 57.75
10 YD. Freightliner 1996 2300 $ 73.50
5 YD Frieghtliner 2020 2400 $ 57.75
12 YD Freightliner 2021 2500 $ 73.50
Van
Ford Transit Van 350 2020 20-100 $ 26.25



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Equipment and Vehicle Rates for Job Costing Effective Date: July 1, 2024
Equipment/Vehicle Current
Year Number Hourly Rate
Pickup
Toyota T-100 4 X 4 1998 1001 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2006 07-200 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2015 15-100 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2015 15-200 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2015 15-300 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2015 15-400 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2015 15-500 $ 26.25
Toyota Tacoma 4X4 2021 21-200 $ 26.25
Ford F-150 4X4 2018 18-100 § 26.25
Ford F-150 4X4 2020 20-200 $ 26.25
Service Truck
Ford F-350 4-Wheel/Clubcab 2007 07-300 $ 36.75
Freightliner M2 106 2016 15-600 $ 68.25
Ford F550 Valve Maintenance 2018 18-200 $ 52.50
Ford F550 2 yard dump bed 2022 21-300 $ 52.50
Ford F550 Hydrant Maintenance 2023 23-100 $ 52.50
Automobiles
Ford Explorer 2015 15-700 $ 26.25
Misc. Equipment
Plunge Saw w/ Pump and Accessories (Hyd) 2013 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency $ 36.75
Plunge Saw and Accessories (Gas) 2013 Emergency T™O
Non-Emergency $ 26.25
Hurricane Water Purification System 2013 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency TMO
Overland Pipe System (E-600) 2014 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency T™MO
Water Treatment Trailer (E-200) 2014 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency TMO
Water Distribution Trailer (E-100) 2012 Emergency T™MO
Non-Emergency TMO
Variable Message System Trailer (E-400) 2017 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency $ 15.75
Variable Message System Trailer (E-500) 2017 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency $ 15.75
TEREX Genie Light Plant 2019 Emergency TMO
Non-Emergency $ 26.25



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER Fees and Charges: Notes

AWWA - American Water Works Association

CCI - Construction Cost Index

ENR - Engineering News Record

ERU - Equivalent Residential Unit

NSF - Non-sufficient funds

SDC - System Development Charges

TMO - Time, Materials and Overhead

Minimum charge for non-emergency after hours calls - $340

Time - Employee labor including overhead - straight time if during
regular business hours and time and a half if after hours.

Materials are charged at actual cost.

Overhead is 39.3% of labor charged.

Example:
Old Rates
CRW Position $  66.26 hourly rate $ 67.53
$  99.39 overtime rate $ 101.30
39.3% overhead rate 38.2%
Straight time plus overhead $ 9227 $ 93.35
After hours rate plus overhead $  138.490 $ 140.02



~ Clackamas River Water
Direct Retail Water Rates

The Equipment and Vehicle rate was increased by 5% from the previous hourly rate (see sample below).

=
i

EXHIBIT B

Equipment and Vehicle Rates for Job Costing

Equipment and Vehicle Rate

Effective Date

Equipment/Vehicle Current

Misc. Fees and Charges remained the same except for the following:

July 1, 2023 2024 Proposed

Year Number Hourly Rate 2024 Proposed

Trailer

Trailmax T-12-UR Vehicle Hauler 2001 300 $ 15.00 $ 15.75
Trailmax 20 ton-Trailer 2001 400 $ 40.00 § 42.00
Trailmax 20 ton-Trailer 1992 201 $ 40.00 $ 42.00
Eagerbeaver Shoring Trailer 1991 202 $ 3500 $ 36.75
Trailmax GEMST Service Trailer T-16-T 2017 500 $ 20.00 $ 21,00
Port-A-Polty Trailer #1 1999 205 $15.00 $ 15.75
Port-A-Potty Trailer #2 1999 206 $15.00 § 15.75
Port-A-Potly w/ Hand Wash Trailer #3 2022 207 $20.00 $ 21.00

Misc. Fees and Charges
Miscelaneous Fees and Charges 172023 2024 Proposed

Utiiity fees and penalties

After Hours (Non-emergency) Call Out

Fire Hydrant Use - Authorized

TMO with $325 minimum  TMO with $340 minimum

Security/Damage Deposit
Temporary Senvice

$1.400

Standard Temporary Service (up to 120 days)
Standard Irrigation Service for Stormwater Faciities (per
pemiit or up to 3 years)

Temporary Service Extension {up to 120 days for standard,

year for lrrigation Services)

$500 + Service Instak + Estimated Abandonment Fee
$500 + Service Instal + Estimated Abandonment Fee

$200 + Adjusted Abandonment Fee

$240

Effective Date: 9/1/2023 Proposed 9/1/2024 Proposed 9/1/2025
Bi-Monthly
Domestic Service Bi-montlhly Fire Bi-Monthly Domestic Bi-montlhly Fire Bi-Monthly Domestic Bi-montlhly Fire
Meter Size (Inches) Charges Service Service Charges Service Service Charges Service
Full 3/4 $ 6425 § 67.25 $ 6778 $ 70.95 $ 7151 § 74.85
1 88.39 67.25 93.25 70.95 98.38 74.85
1172 126.30 80.44 133.25 84.86 140.58 89.53
2 17417 95.83 183.75 101.10 193.86 106.66
3 272.34 136.24 287.32 143.73 303.12 151.64
4 418.95 217.11 441.99 229.05 466.30 241.65
6 785.19 378.88 828.38 399.72 873.94 421.70
8 1,774.66 541.04 1,872.27 570.80 1,975.24 602.19
10 2,791.85 864.96 2,945.40 912.53 3,107.40 962.72
12 3,373.09 1,067.15 3,558.61 1,125.84 3,754.33 1,187.76
Residential Commodity Charge Residential Commodity Charge
Volume Rate 9/1/23 Proposed Rate 9/1/24 Proposed Rate 9/1/25
Block 1 1-4 $ 274 $ 2.89 $
Block 2 5-8 $ 3.04 $ 3.21 $ 3.38
Block 3 9-24 $ 3.63 $ 3.83 $ 4.04
Block 4 258&up $ 4.62 $ 4.87 $ 5.14
Multi-Family, Commercial & Industrial
Volume Rate 9/1/23 Proposed Rate 9/1/24 Proposed Rate 9/1/25
Block 1 c $ 3.36 $ 3.54 $ 374
Block 2 d $ 4.20 $ 4.43 $ 4.67
R e System Development Charge $
Meter MCE 2023 2023 Total 2024 2024 Total
Size Weighting sDC sDC sDC SDC sDC sDC
| (Inches) Factor Reimt it | it Charges Reimbursement Imp t Charges
Full 3/4 1.00 4,296 6,302 10,698 4,313 6,327 10,639
1 1.67 7,162 10,504 17,666 7,190 10,545 174,735
112 3.33 14,324 21,011 35,335 14,380 21,093 35473
2 533 22,918 33,613 56,531 23,008 33,744 56,752
3 10.60 45,836 67,226 113,062 46,015 67,489 113,504
4 16.67 71,620 105,040 176,660 71,900 105450 177,350
6 3333 143,239 210,081 353,320 143,798 210,901 354,700
8 53.33 229,183 336,129 565,312 230,078 337442 567,520
10 76.67 329,451 483,185 812,636 330,738 485,072 815,810
12 112.50 483,433 709,023 1.192,456 485321 711,792 1,197,113
§ Overhead Rate
Old Rates
CRVY Position 66,26 hourly rate 3 67.53 Minlmum charge tor non-emergency atter hours calls - $340
99,39 overtime rate s 101,30
Time - Employee labor including overhead - straight time if during
39.3% overhead rate 38.2% regular business hours and time and a half if after hours.
Strofoht tnie plus overhead iRt 2 e Materials are charged at actual cost.
After hours rate plus overhead $ 13840 5 140,02



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 2

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Consider First Reading, By Title Only, of Resolution 07-2024, Amending

Board Policy
DRAFT MOTION Move the Board Conduct a first reading by title only of Resolution 07-2024
Amending Board Policies
EFFECTIVE DATE

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

PERSON C. Robett Stetinget, CRW General Counsel

BOARD ACTION The Board will be asked to conduct a first reading by title only of Resolution

REQUESTED 07-2024

DOCUMENTS Resolution 7-2024

ATTACHED CRW Boatd Policy -Redline Version

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND CRW Board Policies were last fully updated in 2013. Since that adoption
there have been updates to sections of the rules, but a full review and
update has not occurred since 2013. Legal Counsel provided the General
Manager and Executive Assistant with an initial update to review and
discuss. Edits and comments wete incotpotated in the draft and then the
draft was discussed and reviewed with the Agenda Setting Committee. The
draft was discussed with the full Boatd at the April 22, 2024, and May 28,
2024, Board Wotk Sessions. Legal Counsel incorporated comments
obtained from the Board Work Sessions into the attached draft for final
approval by the Board.

STAFF Conduct a first reading by title only of Resolution 07-2024 amending Board

RECOMMENDATION Policy

June 13, 2024

Agenda Item 2 Page 1 of 1




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION 07-2024
A RESOLUTION AMENDING CRW BOARD POLICIES

WHEREAS, Regular Meetings were called by the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas River
Water (District) on June 13, 2024, and July 18, 2024; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of ORS 192.640, notice of said regular meetings and the
purpose thereof was given in accordance with the requirements of said statute; and

WHEREAS, this resolution was given aa first reading by title only at the Board of
Commissioners’ meeting on June 13, 2024; and

WHEREAS, after consideration the Board of Commissioners finds that the Clackamas River
Water Board Policies should be substantially revised and restated to account for changes in
applicable laws, to account for changes in Board and District practices, to improve the policies,
and to clarify existing policies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER THAT:
1. Clackamas River Water’s Board Policies are revised and restated as set out in Exhibit 1
to this resolution.

2. The Board of Commissioners authorizes District staff, in consultation with the District’s
General Counsel, to correct any formatting or typographical errors subsequently
discovered in the Board Policies as adopted.

ADOPTED THIS DAY OF 2024 BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER.

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BY:

Sherry French, Board President

BY:

Tessah Danel, Board Secretary

{04272793-1} 07/18/2024
Pagelofl



EXHIBIT 1

Clackamas River Water

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

Complete Revisions

July 2024

{04273027-2 } 1

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION DEFINITIONS
SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD
SECTION 3 BUDGET & FINANCE
SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS
SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER’S ROLE
SECTION 6 PURCHASING / CONTRACTING
SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS
SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE & SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

{04273027-2 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION
1.1 Definitions
1.2 Powers of the Board
1.3 Functions of the Board
1.4 Orientation
1.5 Board Educational Development
1.6 Compensation for Services & Reimbursement for Expenses
1.7 Formulation of Policies
1.8 Public Meetings
1.9 Agenda Preparation
1.10 Preparation for Board Meetings
1.11 Procedures during Board Meetings
1.12 Computer Policy

(04273027-2 ) 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.1  Definitions
As used in these sections, unless the context requires otherwise:

A. “Board of Commissioners” or “Board” means the governing body of Clackamas
River Water.

B. “CRW?” means Clackamas River Water or properties owned by Clackamas River
Water.

C. “General Manager” means the appointed Administrator of Clackamas River
Water.

Section 1.2 Powers of the Board

A. The powers of the Board are outlined in Chapter 264 and Chapter 198 of the
Oregon Revised Statutes relating to domestic water districts and special districts.
The Board has the following general responsibilities, consistent with those
statutes:

1. Identify and adopt strategic priorities for CRW
2. Hire, evaluate, and dismiss the General Manager
3. Adopt the annual budget for CRW
4. Adopt the Rates, Fees, and Charges schedule for CRW
B. The Board may authorize ad-hoc advisory committees as it sees fit.

1. The Board President or designee will outline the duties and responsibilities of
each committee at the time of appointment.

2. A Commissioner may serve as an ex-officio member.

3. Advisory committees shall comply with Oregon Public Meetings Law and are
responsible for providing any written records to District staff so they may be
made available to the public if requested.

{04273027-2 } 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.3

A.

Functions of the Board

Policy Making

1.

The Board will establish strategic policy reserving to itself all authority and
responsibility not otherwise assigned to the General Manager or others.

2. The Board is CRW’s Local Contract Review Board pursuant to ORS

279A.060.

Oversight

1.

The primary responsibility of the Board is to make policy-level decisions for
CRW, and to hire, evaluate and manage CRW’s General Manager, who will
serve as CRW’s chief executive officer. Administrative authority for the daily
operations of CRW and the management of all CRW personnel is delegated to
the General Manager to the extent reasonably possible.

No individual Commissioner may direct or order a staff member on any
matter that relates to the daily operations or administrative activities of CRW
unless expressly authorized by the Board. No individual Commissioner may
order, direct, or conduct any review of personnel records of any staff member
or any other record that is exempt under the Oregon Public Records Law
unless expressly authorized by the Board.

If any Commissioner should be delegated by the Board to exercise any
administrative authority for CRW, that direction shall be in writing and shall
state the express purpose for which authority is being granted and for what
duration, and any such appointment shall be agreed upon between the Board
and the General Manager.

The Board will provide the financial means to implement Board policies in
order to accomplish organizational goals and objectives as adopted by the
Board of Commissioners.

Planning/Vision

L.

The Board is committed to long-term planning as an essential activity to
assure the viability of water service to water users in the region.

The Board will develop functional philosophies in the form of vision, mission,
and/or values statements that provide guidance to the Board in the execution
of its responsibilities and to the staff and others involved in the operations.
These are to be reviewed periodically to assure their continued applicability.

Priorities will be established by the Board and be consistent with long-term
planning. Areas to be considered for priority status will be balanced between
community needs, District requirements, regulatory requirements, and
recommendations of the General Manager.

4, The Board will conduct a periodic review of rates and charges.

{04273027-2 } 5

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



D. Commissioner Assignments

1.

At least annually, the Board will review the various organizations with which
CRW has relationships and decide which organizations should have a Board
representative assigned to them. The Board President will assign a CRW
representative to any organization the Board determines should have a
representative from the Board, unless a different assignment process is
required by agreement or law.

A Commissioner’s attendance at another organization’s meeting is in the
Commissioner’s individual capacity, not in an official capacity, unless the
Commissioner is assigned as an organizational representative pursuant to this
section or the attendance is otherwise approved by the Board.

If a Commissioner appears before another governmental agency or
organization to give a statement on an issue relevant to CRW, that
Commissioner must state whether the statement reflects personal opinion, is
the official position of CRW, or both. Additionally, if the Commissioner is
representing CRW, the Commissioner must support and advocate for the
official CRW position on the issue as established by vote of the Board.

Section 1.4  Orientation

A. Cooperating with Board Candidates

The Board, through the General Manager, shall cooperate with candidates for the
Board on an equal basis and will provide them with information about Board
policies and other aspects of the operation of CRW upon request.

B. Orienting New Commissioners

The Board and the General Manager shall assist each new member-elect to
understand the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. If possible,
orientation will be provided before the member-elect takes office. The General
Manager will provide information including:

1.

2.

A copy of Board policies, including Local Contract Review Board Rules.
A copy of the law relating to the operation of water districts.
A copy of the Attorney General’s “Public Records and Meetings Manual.”

A copy of the Oregon Government Ethics Commission publication “Guide for
Public Officials.”

$04273027:2 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 1.5 Commissioner Conduct

The following Code of Conduct applies to Commissioners whenever they are acting in
their official capacity, both in and outside of Board meetings.

A. The Board shall not, to the extent possible, involve itself in the day-to-day
operations of the District. Without prior approval of the Board, no Commissioner
may interfere with or engage in District operations, including programs,
maintenance, personnel management, administration, enforcement of facility
rules, planning, training, or other daily operations and responsibilities of the
General Manager. If the Board sees a need for an exception and asks a
Commissioner to become involved in District operations, the Board will clearly
state in writing the Commissioner’s operational duties/functions, and the Board
President and General Manager shall agree to said arrangement prior to the
Commissioner commencing involvement.

B. Commissioners will assist the Board President in preserving order and decorum
during Board meetings and will not delay or interrupt proceedings.
Commissioners will comply with any ruling of the President or Board, and the
following rules will be observed to maintain order and decorum during meetings:

1. Commissioners will review necessary information, including the agenda
and meeting materials, before meetings, and will come to meetings
prepared.

2. Any Commissioner desiring to be heard will request to the President to be

heard. Commissioners will be given an opportunity to speak at least once
on any pending motion or agenda item. Once recognized, the speaker will
confine their remarks to the subject under consideration.

3. When speaking on behalf of the Board or District, Commissioners will
represent the Board’s official position, not their own personal opinion.

4. Commissioners will be open and candid and should be succinct in stating
their views. Commissioners should focus on a single issue or topic at any
one time and allow one another to finish speaking without interruption.

5. Board discussions are to focus on CRW issues; Commissioners should
avoid raising non-District issues not relevant to the current discussion.

6. Commissioners should keep discussions moving and adhere to established
time limits on discussions.

7. Commissioners will refrain from criticizing or berating each other, staff,
or members of the public.

C. The Board will respect the separation between policymaking and administration
(Board and General Manager functions respectively) as outlined in these Board
Policies by observing the following communication policies with respect to CRW
staff:

(042730272 } 7

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



The Board will work with CRW staff as a team in the spirit of mutual
respect and support.

Outside of Board meetings, Commissioners will not attempt to influence a
CRW employee or the General Manager, or advocate for a certain
outcome in regard to personnel matters, purchasing issues, the award of
contracts or the selection of consultants. However, Commissioners
discussing these matters with the General Manager outside of Board
meetings in a non-coercive manner is appropriate.

Commissioners will, wherever possible, limit individual contact with
CRW staff to the General Manager, management staff, and designated
staff for requests that concern the relevant matter or matters, so as not to
influence staff decisions or recommendations, interfere with their work
performance, undermine management authority or prevent the Board as a
whole from receiving information. The General Manager will determine
the most effective way to respond to Board requests.

When expressing criticism to staff, either at a public meeting or through
other communication, Commissioners will be professional and mindful of
the role and responsibility of staff members.

Any written materials or information requested of staff by Commissioners
will be submitted to the entire Board and include a notation stating who
requested the information.

The Board President will refer comments or questions regarding CRW
personnel or administration to the General Manager. The General
Manager may, at their discretion, reply to the inquiry directly or instruct
the appropriate staff member to do so.

D. Commissioners will protect the confidentiality of CRW information as follows:

1.

Commissioners will keep all written materials provided to them on matters
that are confidential under law in complete confidence to ensure that the
District position is not compromised. No mention of the information read
or heard should be made to anyone other than the Commissioners, General
Manager, or legal counsel.

All public statements, information or media releases relating to a
confidential matter will be handled by the General Manager, legal counsel,
or designated Commissioner.

Unless required by law, no Commissioner may make public the
discussions or information obtained in executive session. The Board may
censure a Commissioner who discloses confidential information or
otherwise violates this policy.

Commissioners will comply with the Oregon Public Records Law by
retaining all documents they create that relate to the business of CRW,

042730272 } 8

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 1.6

A.

Section 1.7

A.

including their notes on documents, for the minimum period of time
established by CRW’s public records retention policy and any other
applicable law. Commissioners may comply with this requirement by
providing records to the employee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board for retention. This obligation continues
after a Commissioner leaves office.

Board Educational Development

The General Manager will inform and make available information on
conferences, meetings and publications which may be useful and informative.

Compensation for Services and Reimbursement for Expenses

Commissioners will be compensated $50 for any water-related meeting or
conference attended on behalf of CRW. The stipend is limited to $50 per day

If a Commissioner wants reimbursement for attendance at a meeting that has not
been authorized by the Board, prior Board approval is required.

There is no reimbursement for mileage to and from CRW for meetings.

Commissioners are not entitled to compensation for expenses that are included in
the cost of an event registration.

Commissioners shall request supplies they use for CRW business from designated
CRW staff. CRW staff often can buy supplies at a lower cost than if the
Commissioners makes the purchase on their own.

Additional Provisions Regarding Attendance at Meetings or Events:

1. To qualify for compensation or reimbursement, a meeting or event must be
related to CRW’s mission. Examples are meetings of other public or private
entities, such as Chamber of Commerce meetings, SDAO or like events, city
or county meetings, monthly agenda preparation meetings, or any other
meeting where there is a prior expense authorization by the CRW Board or the
Board President. In no event shall Commissioners receive compensation for
meetings attended with staff at their own request.

2. The Commissioner is encouraged to provide orally, or in writing, a summary
of the meeting or event at the next regular Board meeting to the extent that it
relates to CRW’s operations, planning, or policies.

3. All requests for expense reimbursement must be submitted within 60 days of
expense incurrence. In the case of extenuating circumstances, exceptions may
be made with approval from the Board President. The reimbursement form
must be signed and include the dates and times for the meetings attended.
Commissioners will not be compensated for time or mileage if a request is not

{04273027-2 } 9

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



timely submitted.

4. While Commissioners may attend meetings or events, Commissioners shall
not make statements on behalf of the District or Board without prior approval
of the content by the Board, unless it is already published and attributable to
the District. In all other circumstances, the Commissioner must be clear that
statements are the individual position of the Commissioner and not the Board
or District.

G. Commissioners will submit expense reports for reimbursement to the employee
designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board, who will
review the report to verify that the expenses are in compliance with Board Policy.
If the report includes expenses that are questionable or outside policy, the
employee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board
shall review the expense request with the Chief Financial Officer. If the Chief
Financial Officer is unable to confirm that an expense request complies with
Board Policy, the General Manager will return the expense request to the
Commissioner with direction that if the Commissioner wishes to be reimbursed,
the Commissioner may submit their expense reimbursement directly to the Board
for consideration. The Board’s vote is the final resolution.

H. The Board adopts CRW Policy 1-2.10.003 (Travel Expense Policy) for itself and
will follow it.

L. If a Commissioner uses a personal vehicle to travel, the District will reimburse for
travel at the then-existing IRS mileage rate. However, no reimbursement will be
paid for travel to and from CRW property.

J. No reimbursement shall be allowed for expenses incurred by or for spouses,
guests or relatives of Commissioners. No reimbursement shall be allowed for
alcoholic beverages.

K. If CRW is reimbursing the member for the expenses and costs of travel, the time
spent traveling shall not be considered a meeting or event for which compensation
for services can be claimed.

L. Travel and Credit Card Perks — CRW will book all travel and lodging for
authorized travel by Commissioners. Commissioners traveling on CRW-related
business may pay for incidental travel expenses using personal credit cards, debit
cards, and other payment methods that accrue “points” or other promotional
benefits.

M. The Board and individual Commissioners will comply with Oregon government
ethics requirements in connection with any compensation or reimbursement issues
decided by the Board. Generally, a Commissioner making a request for
compensation or reimbursement has a direct conflict of interest that must be
declared by the requesting Commissioner, and the Commissioner may not
participate in the deliberation or decision on the request.

{04273027-2 } 1 O
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.8

A.

Section 1.9

A.

Formulation of Policies

Proposed District policy amendments will be drafted by or at the direction of the
General Manager for Board review.

Adoption of new District policies, amendments of existing District policies, or
repeal of existing District policies shall be made by resolution of the Board
pursuant to a two-step procedure separated by no less than 28 days:

1. Inclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with introduction,
discussion, and deliberation at one meeting.

2. Inclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with further deliberation
and a vote to be held at a second meeting.

3. The Board may, by unanimous vote, waive the requirement of two readings
and take action on a District policy in a single meeting.

Board Policies

1. The Board may temporarily suspend Board policies by majority vote if the
motion has been provided to all Commissioners in writing or by unanimous
vote when no such written motion has been provided.

2. Policies specific to Board governance, including these Board Policies, do not
require a second reading or a 28-day passing period.

Public Meetings (See ORS 192.610 - 192.693)

The Board shall hold meetings at such time and place within the District as it may
determine. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month on a
day to be fixed by it and may hold special meetings under such rules as it may
make.

The Board has established the regular meeting date of record as the second
Thursday of each month.

The Board shall make every reasonable effort to commence all public meetings no
later than five (5) minutes after the start time published in the meeting notice
unless a delay in the start time is announced to the public at the scheduled start
time.

No publicly attended Board meeting shall extend beyond 10:00 p.m. or for a
period of time longer than three hours unless the Board approves a motion to
extend the meeting for a specified additional time period.

No Executive Session held following a public meeting shall extend beyond 10:30
p.m. unless the Board approves a motion in public session to extend the meeting
for a specified additional time period.

{04273027-2 } 1 1

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



F. The Board adopts the definitions relating to public meetings as set forth in ORS
192.610.

G. The Board reserves the right to change the place, time, and date of such regular
Board meetings and to call and hold such additional or special meetings, as shall
be deemed necessary, as provided by law. The Board President or two
Commissioners may call special meetings. If the date of a regular scheduled
meeting is to be changed, the public must be given at least 14 days’ notice except
in the event of an emergency.

H. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding public
meeting notices, including without limitation ORS 192.640. The Board may
require posting or publication of additional notices as it deems necessary to
provide notice to the public.

L The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding the
location of meetings, access to meetings, accommodation for persons with
disabilities, and the availability of interpreters as required by Oregon law,
including without limitation ORS 192.630.

J. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding minutes
and record keeping of meetings, including without limitation ORS 192.650. The
full recordings of open meetings are deemed to be the official minutes of such
meetings.

K. The Board will comply with Oregon law regarding executive sessions, including
without limitation ORS 192.660.

L. The Board, through staff, will comply with Oregon law requiring remote access to
meetings open to the public to the extent reasonably possible, including without
limitation ORS 192.670. The District may take actions necessary to exclude
malicious disruptions of meetings, including requiring persons to notify the
District in advance if they wish to provide public testimony in a meeting so access
permissions may be granted.

M. Commissioners will comply with the requirements of ORS 192.630, including
those provisions prohibiting three or more Commissioners from meeting outside a
properly noticed public meeting for the purpose of deciding on or deliberating
toward a decision on any matter that will or may be decided by the Board, except
as otherwise provided by ORS 192.610 to 192.705. For purposes of this policy,
“meeting” includes (1) gathering in a physical location; (2) using electronic, video
or telephonic technology to be able to communicate contemporaneously among
participants; (3) using serial electronic written communication among
participants; or (4) using an intermediary to communicate among participants.

N. The Board and each Commissioner will comply with ORS 192.700, requiring
annual training on compliance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law. The Board
directs the General Manager to arrange for Board training through a method that
complies with ORS 192.700.

{04273027-2 } 12
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.10

A.

Section 1.11
A.

Any Commissioner who has a question about compliance with Oregon Public
Meetings Law may direct the question to the General Manager. The General
Manager, may, but is not required to, direct the question to the District’s General
Counsel.

The District will use the Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual
as a guidance document.

Agenda Preparation

The General Manager will draft a proposed agenda for Board meetings and
present the draft to the Board President and Secretary for review approximately
two weeks prior to the meeting in question. The Board President and Secretary
will approve the Board meeting agenda with any revisions they might make to the
draft agenda.

Any Commissioner may request that an item be placed on the agenda for a Board
meeting. All items must be submitted to the employee designated by the General
Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board no later than 17 days before the
scheduled meeting. The Board President and Secretary will decide whether the
matter is placed on the agenda.

The Board President can add, edit or delete emergency items up to the time of the
Board Meeting.

The Board may add or review agenda items by majority vote at the time the
agenda is approved by the Board.

Preparation for Board Meetings

The employee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the
Board shall prepare, distribute, and post all public notices.

The agenda serves as the public notice of the time and place of the meeting and
will be distributed to the Board and interested persons, including news media,
who have requested notice. The agenda will be posted at the CRW administration
building, the CRW web page, and other locations as designated by the Board.

Commissioners will receive a Board packet.

Other interested persons may request a packet, in writing, from the employee
designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board. CRW
may charge for paper copies of the Board packet per CRW’s public records
policies.

{04273027-2 } 1 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 1.12 Procedures during Board Meetings

A. These Board Policies, as supplemented by Robert’s Rules of Order (Revised),
shall guide the Board in its deliberations except as otherwise required by state
law. Rules may be amended at any meeting by majority vote. The order of
business may be suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of those present.

B. Public Participation

1. The Board will provide a time at each regular meeting for public comment on
non-agenda items. The employee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board will provide a process for those wanting to
make public comment. All remarks should be addressed to the Board as a
body. Each person is allowed a maximum of three minutes unless allocated
additional time by the Board. Time may not be yielded or allocated by one
person to another.

2. Meeting Conduct — Persons attending and making statements shall do so ina
courteous, professional manner; common respect will be maintained among
all participants. The Board President has inherent authority to keep order and
to impose any reasonable restrictions necessary for the efficient and orderly
conduct of the meeting. The President may regulate the order and length of
appearances and limit appearances to presentations of relevant points and to
limit repetitive and redundant comment. Only Commissioners or the General
Manager may ask questions of a person, staff member, or attendee making a
presentation or giving testimony. Questions from the audience to staff
members or guests will not be allowed. The President is authorized to stop
interruptions of Board deliberations or attempts to debate with staff, other
meeting attendees, or Commissioners. The President may, to the extent
allowed by law, exclude a person for not complying with meeting policy or
causing a disturbance.

| C. Votes will be recorded. Any Commissioner may request a vote be changed if
such request is made prior to consideration of the next order of business.

D. Three Commissioners shall constitute a quorum. Commissioners may appear by
telephonic or electronic means. Commissioners appearing remotely shall be
counted for purposes of establishing a quorum so long as all Commissioners can
speak to and hear each other. If only a quorum is present, a unanimous vote is
required to approve a motion.

E. The Board generally makes decisions by roll-call vote. In the event that a vote is
not taken by roll call, any Commissioner may require that a roll-call vote be
conducted if the request is stated promptly after the vote occurs.

F. Members may append to the record, at the time of voting, a statement indicating
the reason for the vote or the reason for abstaining.

{04273027-2 } 1 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.13 Computer Policy

Objective: To establish the respective responsibilities of CRW and the Commissioners in
regard to District-approved devices purchased by the District for use by the
Commissioners to conduct District-related business. All electronic devices and related
equipment are and will remain property of the District.

A. The District will provide an electronic device to each Commissioner for their use.

B. Commissioners will sign the District’s IT Asset Acknowledgement Form when issued
any device. The Commissioner will acknowledge agreement to the District’s IT
policies.

C. The District will provide basic training in the use of the electronic devices and will
provide technical support for the care and maintenance of the device. The electronic
devices will be the sole property of CRW.

D. CRW shall be responsible for the cost of the maintenance and/or replacement of any
defective equipment and/or software.

E. At the end of the term of the Commissioner’s service on the Board, the Commissioner
will return all District property to the District immediately upon vacating office.

F. CRW will provide the capability to interface with the connections of CRW.

G. If the electronic device is damaged because of a negligent or intentional act, or other
act for which the commissioner is responsible, the Commissioner will be responsible
for its replacement costs.

H. Information received on or maintained on the portable electronic communication
devices is a public record and may be subject to disclosure under ORS Chapter 192.
All such information must be preserved indefinitely unless a complete copy is
provided to the General Manager for the District to preserve. Commissioners shall
not communicate via portable electronic communication devices in a manner that
violates the public meetings law under ORS Chapter 192.

I. Commissioners are encouraged to use District-approved devices for communications
related to District business in order to support District retention of public records and
to reduce the likelihood that a Commissioner’s personal devices must be searched for
public records.

(042730272 ) 15
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD
2.1 Number of Positions and Terms
2.2 Officers
23 Duties of the President
2.4 Duties of the Secretary
2.5 Duties of the Treasurer
2.6 Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board
2.7 Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel
2.8 Selection and Duties of the Auditor
2.9 Minutes
| 2.10 Budget Hearing
(04273027:2 ) 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies , Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 2.1

A.

Section 2.2

A.

Section 2.3

A.

Number of Positions and Terms

Unless appointed, the Board shall consist of five members serving four (4) year
terms, elected by CRW voters pursuant to ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264.

No person, elected or appointed, shall be sworn in unless the qualifications set
forth in ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264 are met. If an eligibility question arises,
the Board will obtain an opinion from legal counsel prior to swearing in.

Unless filling a vacancy, terms start officially on July 1. A new member must
qualify by taking an oath of office before assuming the duties of the position.

Should a vacancy occur on the Board, that vacancy will be advertised and the
Board will select an individual from among those indicating their interest. ORS
198.320 will be followed in fulfilling this procedure.

Officers

The officers of the Board shall consist of:
1. President

2. Secretary

3. Treasurer

At the first meeting in July of each year, the Board shall elect from its members
the officers for the ensuing year effective upon their election. In the event that
there will be no change in the Board’s membership on July 1 of a given year, the
Board may in its discretion elect officers during a regular meeting in June of that
year, effective at the beginning of the first meeting in July.

The term of office for the officers shall be for one (1) year.

The Board shall require a bond or an irrevocable letter of credit of any
Commissioner or any officer or employee of the district who is charged with
possession and control of district funds and properties as set out in ORS 198.220.

Duties of the President

The President shall preside at all meetings, shall have the right to make motions,
discuss questions and vote on any issue.

The President shall sign, on behalf of the Board, contracts, deeds and other similar
documents as may require representative signature.

The President shall appoint all committees except the Budget Committee, subject

042730272 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 2.4

A.

Section 2.5

A.

Section 2.6

to approval of a majority of the Board, and perform all other duties as set forth in
Board policies and rules.

The President shall appoint, in the absence of the Secretary, a Commissioner to
temporarily act in that capacity, subject to the approval of the Board.

The President, in addition to the Treasurer, shall sign short-term debt notes unless
otherwise directed by the Board.

Duties of the Secretary

In the absence of the President, the Secretary shall perform the duties and have
the rights and obligations of the President.

In the absence of the Treasurer, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
Treasurer.

Compile the agenda as described by Board policy.

Duties of the Treasurer

In the absence of both the President and Secretary, the Treasurer shall perform the
duties and have the rights and obligations of the President.

The Treasurer, in addition to the President, shall sign short-term debt notes.

Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board

It shall be the duty of the General Manager to perform the following functions as Clerk of
the Board:

A.

Section 2.7

A.

Handle correspondence of special interest to the Board as follows:
1. Ensure appropriate preparations have been made for Board Meetings
2. Attend all Board meetings

3. Ensure records are taken to record Board decisions.

Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel

The Board shall select a General Counsel for CRW and negotiate the terms and
conditions of the General Counsel’s duties. The General Counsel will be
authorized, in coordination with the General Manager, to engage special legal
counsel for matters the General Counsel cannot perform directly.

{04273027-2 } 4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 2.8

A.

General Counsel shall advise the Board on specific legal problems submitted by
the Board or the General Manager and recommend a course of action.

The General Manager, or authorized staff, has authority to seek legal counsel
from CRW’s General Counsel as deemed advisable by the General Manager on
matters relating to legal issues. The General Manager shall immediately advise
the Board of the engagement of special counsel.

With the approval of the Board, Commissioners may seek clarification from
CRW’s legal counsel on matters that affect or could affect CRW. All such
requests from individual Commissioners, except for requests dealing with the
hiring, termination or performance issues of the General Manager, shall be
submitted to counsel through the General Manager and shall be in writing with
copy to the entire Board. All requests to counsel relating to the hiring,
termination, or performance issues of the General Manager shall be in writing
with copy to the entire Board.

Legal counsel shall advise the Board of any action, or proposed action of the
Board or CRW, that is not in compliance with the law.

Legal counsel shall not take action on any matter unless directed to do so by the
Board or the General Manager.

When a non-represented employee of the CRW is called to testify or otherwise
required to provide information on legal matters arising out of the scope of their
employment with CRW, and to which they are not a named party or the subject of
disciplinary action, the General Manager may authorize legal representation
during such testimony to protect the interest of CRW. A Commissioner may
request and obtain legal representation, if authorized by the Board in advance,
under similar circumstances.

General Counsel shall be the designated the registered agent of CRW, pursuant to
ORS 198.340, unless otherwise designated by the Board.

Selection and Duties of the Auditor

The Board shall select the auditor for CRW. This selection will be done in a
manner to allow timely preparation of the audit and cover audit services for a
period of three (3) years. No contract shall be extended or renewed for more than
two (2) terms without Board approval. This shall not prevent an incumbent
service provider from responding to a Request for Proposal (RFP).

The auditor shall:

1. Examine the accounts of CRW at the close of every fiscal year in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and laws.

2. Include such tests of the accounting records and other such auditing
procedures as are necessary in the circumstances.

{04273027-2 } 5

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 2.9

A.

3. Render an opinion on the financial statements prepared at the close of the

fiscal year.

4. Support staff in preparing financial statements for publication as required
by law.

5. Make recommendations to the Board concerning CRW accounting

records, procedures and related activities.
6. Perform such other related services as requested by the Board.

7. Review the written accounting policies, practices, and procedures and
render an opinion for the Board.

Minutes

The Board shall keep minutes of all its meetings in accordance with the
requirements of ORS chapter 192. Recordings of meetings, when created, shall
serve as the official minutes of the meetings.

Board meeting minutes, including recordings constituting official minutes, will be
preserved permanently. Recordings not constituting official minutes will be kept
for a minimum of one (1) year after minutes are prepared and approved. All other
meeting materials will be kept for a minimum of five (5) years. The District will
follow Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division public record retention rules
with respect to minutes and meeting materials. Recordings shall be available to
the public within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Executive sessions will be recorded.

According to ORS 192.660, CRW has determined that any information discussed
during Executive Session is confidential and non-disclosable unless specifically
authorized by the Board or as required or as excluded by law.

042730272 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 3 BUDGET AND FINANCE
3.1 Formulation of Budget Document
3.2 Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities
33 Budget Administration
3.4 Banking Services
3.5 Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property
3.6 Investment of Funds
3.7 Borrowing
3.8 Acknowledgement of Payments
3.9 Accounting Policy
3.10 Audit

(042730272 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 3.1  Formulation of Budget Documents

A. The adopted budget document shall serve as the financial plan for operation and
provide guidelines for carrying out the goals and objectives of CRW.

B. Within the budget process the Board shall appoint the Budget Committee
membership, appoint the CRW Budget Officer, and adopt the budget.

C. The CRW budget shall be prepared and adopted in full compliance with State of
Oregon Local Budget Law.

Legal References ORS 294.305 to 294.520, ORS 294.565

Section 3.2  Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities

A. The Budget Committee shall consist of the five (5) members of the Board of
Commissioners and five (5) community members. The Board shall establish a
process for appointment of community members to the Budget Committee.
Community members of the Budget Committee will serve for a four (4) year term.

B. At the Budget Committee’s first meeting, the Board President shall open the
budget meeting. The Budget Committee shall select a chairperson and vice-chair.

C. The responsibilities of the Budget Committee are:

1. Approve the level of expenditures and set the corresponding tax levy
requirements, if necessary, to balance each fund.

2. Review and, if necessary, revise the proposed budget.

3. Be aware of the legal constraints imposed upon CRW.

4. Be familiar with the Budget Document and what it means.
5. Approve the budget.

6. Be involved in the supplemental budget activity as required by local budget
law.

D. The hearing on the budget shall be held after the budget is approved by the
Budget Committee and at the time and place designated in the notice of the
meeting required by ORS 294.438 - 294.453.

E. The Board shall adopt the budget, make appropriations, and determine the tax
levies, if necessary, to finance the programs approved to meet CRW goals and
objectives.

Legal References ORS 294.414, ORS 294.428, ORS 294.456

{04273027-2 } 2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 3.3

A.

Budget Administration

The adopted budget is the financial plan developed to carry out the programs
supporting CRW's goals and objectives.

The General Manager is authorized to approve expenditures up to the amount
appropriated by the budget and in accordance with Local Contract Review Board
Rules and any resolutions of the Board.

The budget may be amended to reflect changes in budget categories.

The Board will be provided financial reports, on a regularly scheduled basis, in
which actual revenues and expenditures will be compared with budget.

Legal References ORS 294.456

Section 3.4

A.

B.

Banking Services

The General Manager through the Chief Financial Officer will recommend, and
the Board will approve, the selection of the banking entity utilized by CRW.

Staff will advise the Board of any changes to the status of banking signatories.

Legal References ORS chapter 264

Section 3.5

A.

Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property

The purchase, receipt by donation, lease, exchange, sale, or gift of all real
property or real property interest by CRW must have the approval of the Board,
provided that any acquisition or disposition of real property or real property
interest having a fair market value of $75,000 or less, and any disposition of a
public utility easement, may be made by the General Manager, as delegated
authority, in accordance with this policy. As used in this policy, “disposition”
shall mean the sale, exchange, or other transfer of title or other interest in real

property.

Any donation or gifting of CRW property, regardless of value, shall be donated in
accordance with the following guidelines:

1. The method of donating or gifting of CRW property should be based on
the type of property, the value of the property, administrative costs, and
other factors to determine which method represents the greatest benefit to
the public. To federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental
entities

{04273027-2 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



2. CRW may donate or gift property to governmental or quasi-governmental
entities, private utility companies having the ability to reuse the property
for the benefit of District customers, on non-profit entities.

3. The General Manager shall comply with applicable requirements and
conditions imposed as part of any funding agreement or grant. Any
disposition of property or property interests in excess of $75,000 shall
comply with applicable law and the appraisal requirements of this policy
as stated below.

The General Manager shall project site needs in advance and the Board, with
advice and counsel of the General Manager, shall select sites prior to immediate
need. Such sites shall be chosen with a view to best serve the residents and
properties of the whole District and will be based on demographic data, growth
projections, availability, and cost of land. Any proposed acquisition of real
property or real property interests in which a District employee or Commissioner
has an interest shall be disclosed to the entire Board in a public meeting and any
action taken on such acquisition shall be in accordance with ORS Chapter 244.

Sites that have a fair market value of $75,000 or more and become surplus to
CRW's needs shall be declared such by Resolution of the Board and shall be
considered for sale, exchange, gift or lease pursuant to State statute and this
policy.

Acquisition or disposition of real property or real property interests shall be
accomplished pursuant to ORS 264.210, these Board Policies, and, in the event
the exercise of eminent domain is necessary, ORS Chapter 35. All fair market
value estimates, market studies, or appraisals as specified and detailed below shall
be obtained from a real estate broker or appraiser having all necessary
certifications and licenses in the State of Oregon and having knowledge of the
real estate market in the location and type of property being acquired or disposed.

1. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of $75,000 or less, the General Manager shall
obtain a market survey from an independent real estate broker. Upon
confirmation of the estimated fair market value, the General Manager shall
have delegated authority to acquire or dispose of the property in
accordance with this policy.

2. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $75,000 but not more than
$250,000, the General Manager shall obtain a market study from a real
estate broker prior to consideration by the Board.

3. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $250,000 the General Manager
shall obtain an appraisal from a real estate appraiser prior to consideration
by the Board.

{04273027-2 } 4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



F. For acquisition of property for which CRW receives or uses federal financial
assistance in any part of the project, the General Manager shall comply with the
provisions of the Uniform Real Property Relocation and Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970, as amended.

G. All appraisal reports shall comply with the standards for appraisals as published in
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) in effect at
the time of the appraisal. The appraisal and level of documentation will depend
on the complexity of the appraisal problem. All appraisals must contain sufficient
documentation, including valuation data and the appraiser’s analysis of that data,
to support the opinion of value.

H. The General Manager may release any interest CRW might have in a public
utility easement if the encumbered property is not served by CRW, the
encumbered property is within the limits of a city, and the General Manager
determines that CRW is unlikely to serve the encumbered property in the future.
No appraisal is necessary for the release of a public utility easement under this
subsection.

Legal References ORS 264.210, 49 CFR Part 24

Section 3.6 Investment of Funds

A. CRW’s policy is to invest a maximum of surplus-available funds as is reasonably
prudent, while having available cash on hand to meet daily operating needs.

B. The Investment Officer for CRW will be designated in the CRW Investment
Policy adopted by the Board.

C. The Investment Officer shall adhere to the rules set forth in ORS 294.035, ORS
294.040, and the CRW Investment Policy adopted by the Board.

D. Diversification of investments will be in accordance with the CRW Investment
Policy.
E. The Investment Officer will provide the Board with a register of outstanding

investments on at least a quarterly basis. This report will include the name of the
financial institution, issue date, maturity date, principal invested, and the interest
rate, if applicable.

Legal References ORS 294.805 to 294.885, ORS 295.002 to ORS 295.093

Section 3.7 Borrowing

A. Staff shall recommend, and the Board shall approve, the total amount of short-
term loans when borrowing is necessary.

{04273027-2 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




B. CRW is authorized to contract for short-term loans for the purpose of meeting
current expense. These notes shall be signed by the Board President and
Treasurer.

C. CRW has authority to issue Revenue Bonds by resolution in accordance with
Oregon State Law.

Legal References ORS 287A.180, 287A.150

Section 3.8  Acknowledgement of Payments

Staff shall provide the Board with a monthly report of all expenditures. The Board will
review and acknowledge the expenditure report at its regular meeting in the month that is
two months after the month of the report.

Section 3.9  Accounting Policy

CRW’s financial and accounting procedures, records and reporting will be in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Government
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative guidance.

Section 3.10 Audit

The General Manager, or designee, will work with the auditor selected pursuant to
Section 2.8 of these Board Policies each year to accomplish the objective of the annual
audit.

Legal Reference ORS 297.405 et. seq.

{04273027-2 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS
4.1 Personnel
4.2 Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies
4.3 Employment Classification of Commissioners
4.4 Safeguarding Assets
4.5 Use of CRW Property
4.6. Risk Management and Insurance Program
4.7 Insurance Agent of Record
4.8 Property Appraisal
4.9 Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property
4,10 Pension Plan
4.11 Records Management
4.12 Annexation, Merger, Consolidation

(042730272 } i
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 4.1 Personnel

CRW is committed to equal employment opportunity. Management is required to recruit,
employ, train, transfer, promote, pay, discipline, lay off, and terminate employees solely
on the basis of individual qualifications and merit and/or according to the standards and
policies outlined in its personnel and related policies. Decisions involving any aspect of
the employment relationship must be made without regard to an employee's race, color,
creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, marital status, physical or mental handicaps that
with reasonable accommodation do not prevent performance of the work involved, or any
other status or characteristic protected under any applicable federal or state law.

Discrimination or harassment based on any of those factors is totally inconsistent with the
Board's philosophy and will not be tolerated at any time.

Section 4.2  Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies

The General Manager shall prepare and modify personnel and employment policies in
compliance with state and federal law and general CRW Board policy applicable to
personnel. The General Manager shall provide copies of any personnel manual or policy
and modifications to such manual or policies to a Commissioner upon request.

Section 4.3 Employment Classification of Commissioners

The District’s Commissioners, whether elected or appointed, are employees for tax
withholding purposes only. Commissioners are not entitled to any employment related
benefits as required by law or as otherwise provided in CRW’s personnel policies or
manual.

Section 4.4  Safeguarding Assets

The CRW Board of Commissioners fully supports a structure of policies and procedures
that systematically provide reasonable assurance that management will achieve its basic
objectives (operations, financial reporting, and compliance). This policy includes the
following five components:

1. Provide a favorable control environment;

2. Provide a periodic risk assessment,

{04273027-2 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




3. Provide for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective control
activities;

4. Provide for effective information and communication; and

5. Provide for ongoing monitoring of the effectiveness of control-related policies
and procedures, as well as the resolution of any potential problems identified.

Source: Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting (GAAFR),
Stephen J. Gauthier. Copyright 2012 by the Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada, Chicago, IL, (p. 736)

Section 4.5

A.

Section 4.6

A.

{04273027-2 }

Use of CRW Property

Board Use of CRW Property: Commissioners are required to comply with
Oregon Government Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.047) in the use of CRW
property in the execution of their duties as a Commissioner.

1. Commissioners are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval
of the Board.

2. Ttis the policy of CRW to loan equipment to other special districts or
governmental agencies when it does not adversely impact operations. The
General Manager will determine methods of remunerations and charges as
defined in miscellaneous fee schedule.

Employee Use of CRW Property: CRW employees are required to comply with
Oregon Government Ethics Law (ORS 244.010 to 244.047) as well as Operations
and Personnel Policies of CRW. The General Manager will administer all
policies related to acquisition, use, and disposition of CRW property.

1. Employees are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval of the
General Manager.

2. CRW property is defined as all tools, equipment, material, and facilities -
regardless of cost - owned or leased by CRW.

3. In the event of an emergency, employees are permitted to loan equipment to
other governmental agencies and then report to the General Manager
following the emergency.

Risk Management and Insurance Program

The Board shall provide a program of risk management consistent with legal
requirements pertaining thereto and with the ability of CRW to finance the same.

3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



{04273027-2 }

The General Manager and the Insurance Agent of Record will recommend, and
the Board will review and approve, the purchase of necessary insurance or a self-
insurance program sufficient to meet minimum statutory requirements and
provide for adequate insurance for all activities. Any self-insurance program
adopted by CRW shall provide for reasonably adequate reserves. Coverage shall
be adequate to protect:

1. Itself as a corporate body

2. Its Board of Commissioners
3. Its appointed officers

4. Its employees

The above entities and individuals are to be insured against financial loss to the
extent required or authorized by law where the loss arises out of a claim, suit or
judgment by reason of negligence or other acts resulting in accidental injury to a
person or damage to property within or without CRW while the above named
insured are acting in the discharge of their duties within the scope of their
obligations as Commissioners or as employees carrying our their duties.
Normally, Commissioners will not be held personally liable for the consequences
of their actions and decisions in fulfilling Board responsibilities. However,
Commissioners will be held personally liable in the event they have acted outside
the scope of their duties (as defined in Section 1 of Board Policy) or their conduct
is not required to, or cannot be, indemnified by CRW.

The District shall purchase insurance to cover or self insure:
1. All real and personal property of CRW.
2. Losses due to employee dishonesty, injury or death.

3. A program of benefits for employees to the limits established from time to
time by the Board.

The General Manager shall develop and maintain procedures and regulations to
carry out this policy and may designate CRW employees to administer and
supervise the program.

1. The person(s) so designated shall be guided by the reasonable person rule
and shall:

i.  Identify and measure those risks.
ii.  Evaluate physical properties owned or leased by CRW.

iii.  Establish risk management records to reflect values of such property.

4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



iv.  Establish procedures to maintain property and designate security
personnel to protect property.

v.  Establish procedures for good housekeeping, safe environmental
conditions for employees and members of the public.

vi.  Establish procedures for handling of risk management funds and
record keeping.

vii.  Utilizing the services of the CRW's insurance consultant and/or Broker
to determine which risks can normally be assumed as a proper
business risk and which risks shall be ceded to professional risk
bearers considering:

1. Frequency and magnitude of loss; and

2. The ability of the CRW to replace damaged property.

Section 4.7 Insurance Agent of Record

A. CRW will retain an insurance agent of record for casualty and property insurance,
bonds, and workers’ compensation.

B. Any appointment shall comply with CRW’s Local Contract Review Board Rules.

C. The agent shall be responsible for assisting CRW with the development of a
sound risk management program and for writing and servicing all necessary
policies and statutory bonds.

Section 4.8  Property Valuation for Insurance Purposes

A. CRW shall maintain an up-to-date valuation of all buildings, including
improvements, fixtures, and fixed contents, as necessary to inform decisions on
property and casualty insurance.

B. A valuation may be performed by CRW's insurance agent of record.

Section 4.9  Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property

A. CRW shall dispose of surplus or unusable property in accordance with Oregon
statutes and Local Contract Review Board Rules adopted by the Board.

(042730272 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 4.10 Pension Plan
A. CRW is a Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) participating agency.

B. CRW also authorizes participation in qualified 457-type retirement plans.

Section 4.11 Records Management

A. The Board directs the General Manager to develop policies that conform to the
Secretary of State Archives Division public records retention schedule applicable
to special districts.

B. Compliance with the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.311 through
192.478), including proper filing and retention of records in accordance with
these statutes, Oregon Administrative Rules 166-150-0005 to 166-150-0215 as
applicable, and CRW’s Record Management Policy, shall be required of all
employees and Commissioners.

{04273027-2 ) 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER ROLE
5.1 General Manager as Administrator of CRW
52 General Manager Appointment and Terms of Employment

{04273027-2 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 5.1  General Manager as Administrator of CRW

A. In accordance with the policies adopted by the Board, all administrative and
operational functions are delegated to the General Manager.

B. The General Manager shall create and maintain an organizational structure such
that staff is arranged for efficient and effective operation of CRW.

C. In all areas, the General Manager is delegated to develop and maintain the water
system at levels necessary to maintain CRW’s investments.

Section 5.2  Appointment and Terms of Employment - General Manager
A. The General Manager shall be appointed and work at the pleasure of the Board.

B. The terms of employment shall be agreed upon by the Board and the General
Manager and be reduced to writing in the form of an employment contract
between CRW and the General Manager.

C. The Board shall review the position, the person, and the terms of employment
annually. The results of the review shall be contained in an annual evaluation.

D. The terms of employment shall include, without limitation: responsibilities of the
General Manager, demonstrable skills, and salary and benefit considerations.

{04273027-2 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 6 PURCHASING/CONTRACTING
6.1 General
6.2 Responsibility, Authority, Standardization
6.3 Sales to Outside Agencies

(042730272 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 6.1 General

CRW recognizes that effective purchasing policies can result in significant
savings. In accordance with ORS 279A.060, CRW has adopted Local Contract
Review Board Rules. Clackamas River Water’s Board of Commissioners is the
Local Contract Review Board and acts as such.

Section 6.2  Responsibility, Authority, Standardization

A.

The General Manager is responsible for the procurement of all goods and services
and for establishing procedures to sell goods and services.

Standardization of supplies, materials and equipment is to be achieved whenever
possible.

Only persons designated by the General Manager are authorized to order or
otherwise commit CRW for materials, equipment, supplies and services.

Commissioners may not contact vendors, consultants or other parties having an
existing contractual relationship with CRW related to current agency business or
relationships without first being authorized for such contact by a maj ority vote of
the CRW Board.

Section 6.3  Intergovernmental Cooperation

A.

{04273027-2 }

Whenever feasible, CRW will attempt to develop cooperative agreements with
federal, state, or local governmental agencies to promote the efficient use of
resources by sharing facilities and avoiding duplication of services. Charges for
goods or services sold to participating governmental agencies will be limited to
their direct and indirect costs.

All agreements with other government agencies will be in writing and any

agreement will be submitted to the Board for approval unless the Board has
delegated applicable contracting authority to the General Manager.

2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies

complete revision XX/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS
7.1 Communication with the Public and News Media
7.2 Gifts and Donations
7.3 Public Records
7.4 Participation in Community Affairs
{04273027-2 } 1

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 7.1 Communications with the Public

Public involvement with CRW is encouraged. In order to foster that involvement, the
General Manager shall keep the public informed of relevant polices and directives.

A. Nothing in this section shall prevent CRW employees from taking an active part
in community affairs.

B. Employees are entitled to enter into political activity provided it is in
conformance with ORS 260.432.

Section 7.2  Gifts and Donations

A. CRW may accept gifts, grants, donations, and title to property from parties
desiring to convey property to CRW. Upon receipt, CRW shall have sole and
complete control of same. The Board may recognize the receipt of gifts and
donations.

B. The Board shall recognize presentations of memorials or other awards without
such recognition being considered as a testimonial or endorsement by CRW.

Section 7.3  Public Records

A. Public records are to be created, maintained, retained and destroyed pursuant to
the definitions and requirements of ORS chapter 192.

B. CRW shall comply with the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.31 1-192.478.
Access to public records will be provided pursuant to a Public Records Policy
adopted by the General Manager and made available to the public.

C. The Board designates the General Manager as CRW’s records custodian. The
General Manager may delegate records custodian functions to CRW staff.

D. Notwithstanding CRW’s Public Records Policy, the Board, from time to time,
may set policy and grant a waiver of fees with respect to public records requests
by Commissioners relating to agenda items under current discussion by the Board.

E. Authorization Required for Removal of Original Records

1. An original record of CRW shall not be removed from CRW's files or the
place at which the record is regularly maintained, except upon authorization of
the Board.

F. Unauthorized Alteration, Removal or Destruction of Originals

{04273027-2 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




1. If any person attempts to alter, remove, or destroy any CRW record, the CRW
representative shall immediately terminate such person's review, and the
person shall be removed from CRW premises. Nothing in this Board Policy
shall prevent the destruction of public records as is allowed by Oregon law
relating to public record retention and destruction.

{04273027-2 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES
SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE AND SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
8.1 Billing and Collection
8.2 Water Loss Policy
8.3 Meter and Service Installation Charges
8.4 Water Critical Customers
8.5 Service to Other Entities
8.6 Availability of Service
8.7 System Safety and Water Quality
8.8 Local Improvement District (L.I.D.)
8.9 Metering
8.10 Developer Installed Systems
(042730272 ) 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 8.1  Billing and Collection

It is the policy of CRW that all customers pay for the costs of providing water to their
premises. The Board will adopt rules and regulations, water rate structures, and other
resolutions and ordinances that provide details on the conditions and costs for those
services. These will be reviewed periodically and updated by the General Manager and
submitted to the Board for consideration and adoption.

Section 8.2  Water Loss Policy
Recognizing the possibility of water leakage within the customer-owned system, leakage

is generally non-disputable and at the customer’s expense. If any adjustment is to be
made it will be consistent with the CRW Leak Adjustment Policy.

Section 8.3 Meter and Service Installation Fees

A. The fees for meter and service installation will be set by the Board and reviewed
annually.
B. When the meter is purchased, the customer will pay the balance due, plus a

system development charge (SDC) as applicable.

Section 8.4 Water Critical Customers [deleted]

Section 8.5  Service to Other Entities

CRW may sell surplus water to other governmental entities upon Board approval and in
accordance with the requirements of ORS Chapter 264.

Section 8.6 Availability of Service

The Board directs the General Manager to establish policies to provide CRW’s customers
with uninterrupted service.

Section 8.7 System Safety & Water Quality

The Board directs the General Manager to ensure there are appropriate policies and
procedures to comply with State and Federal mandates for location and protection of
underground facilities for the installation and maintenance of backflow devices.

{04273027-2 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 8.8  Local Improvement District (L.I1.D.)

Upon petition by CRW customers, the Board authorizes the General Manager to begin
the procedure to establish a Local Improvement CRW (L.I.D.) under provisions of ORS
264.362.

Section 8.9 Metering

A. Clackamas River Water reserves the right to determine the proper meter size and
configuration to be used to supply its customers.

B. Metering devices are to be installed in accordance with CRW rules and
regulations. Any exceptions are to be approved by the Board.

Section 8.10 Developer Installed Systems

All new water mains will be installed in accordance with CRW’s water extension
procedures and CRW’s water system standard specifications.

(042730272 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
BOARD POLICIES RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

[ am a duly elected Commissioner of the board of Clackamas River Water and hereby acknowledge
that I have been provided a copy of the Board Policies, and that it contains important information
regarding my role as a Commissioner. I have read and understand the policies contained in the
Board Policies and have asked the currently presiding board president or the general manager for
clarification of any information that I did not understand or had further questions regarding.

N
By my signature below, I agree to observe and comply with all policies and guidelines contained in
the Board Policies.

Commissioner’s Name (Print)

Commissioner’s Signature Date

04273027-2 )}



Clackamas River Water

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

Complete Revisions

Oeteber XX July 201234

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION DEFINITIONS

SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD

SECTION 3 BUDGET & FINANCE

SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS

SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER’S ROLE

SECTION 6 PURCHASING / CONTRACTING

SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS

SECTION 8 COST OF WATER SERVICE & SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 1 BOARD OPERATION

11 Definitions

1.2 Powers of the Board

1.3 Functions of the Board

1.4 Orientation

15 Board Educational Development
1.6 Compensation for Services & Reimbursement for Expenses
1.7 Formulation of Policies

1.8 Public Meetings

1.9 Agenda Preparation

1.10 Preparation for Board Meetings
1.11 Procedures during Board Meetings
1.12 Computer Policy

{04244875-8 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.1

Definitions

As used in these sections, unless the context requires otherwise:

A.

Section 1.2

A.

“Board of Commissioners” or “Board” means the governing body of Clackamas
River Water.

“CRW” means Clackamas River Water or properties owned by Clackamas River
Water.

“General Manager” means the appointed Administrator of Clackamas River
Water.

Powers of the Board

The powers of the Board are outlined in Chapter 264 and Chapter 198 of the
Oregon Revised Statutes relating to domestic water districts and special districts.
The Board has these-the following general responsibilities, consistent with the
afore-statedthose statutes:

1. Identify and adopt strategic pelicies-priorities for CRW
2. Hire, evaluate, and dismiss the General Manager
3. Adopt the annual budget for CRW

4. Adopt the Rates, Fees, and Charges schedule for CRW

The Board may authorize ad-hoc advisory committees as it sees fit.

1. The Board President or designee will outline the duties and responsibilities of
each committee at the time of appointment.

2. A board-memberCommissioner may serve as an ex-officio member.

3. Advisory committees shall comply with Oregon Public Meetings Law and are
responsible for keeping-providing any written records to District staff so they

may beand-ensuring-they-are made available to the public if requested.

{04244875-8 } 4

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Section 1.3

A.

Functions of the Board

Policy Making

1.

The Board will establish strategic policy reserving to itself all authority and
responsibility not otherwise assigned to the General Manager or others.

The Board is CRW’s Local Contract Review Board pursuant to ORS
279A.060.

Oversight

1.

The primary responsibility of the Board is to make policy-level decisions for

CRW, and to hire, evaluate and manage CRW’s General Manager, who will
serve as CRW’s chief executive officer. Administrative authority for the daily
operations of CRW and the management of all CRW personnel is delegated to
the General Manager to the extent reasonably possible.

No individual Commissioner may direct or order a staff member on any

matter that relates to the daily operations or administrative activities of CRW
unless expressly authorized by the Board. No individual Commissioner may
order, direct, or conduct any review of personnel records of any staff member
or any other record that is exempt under the Oregon Public Records Law
unless expressly authorized by the Board.

1.3.1f any Commissioner should be delegated by the Board to exercise any

administrative authority for CRW, that direction shall be in writing and shall
state the express purpose for which authority is being granted and for what

duration, and any such appointment shall be agreed upon between the Board
and the General Manager. Fhe-Beard-will-selecta-generabmanagerand

2:4.The Board will provide the financial means to implement Board policies in

order to accomplish organizational goals and objectives as adopted by the
Board of Commissioners.

Planning/Vision

1.

The Board is committed to long-term planning as an essential activity to
assure the viability of water service to water users in the region.

The Board will develop functional philosophies in the form of vision, mission,
and/or values statements that provide guidance to the Board in the execution
of its responsibilities and to the staff and others involved in the operations.
These are to be reviewed periodically to assure their continued applicability.

{04244875-8 } 5

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



4.3.Annual-pPriorities will be established by the Board and be consistent with
long-term planning. Areas to be considered for priority status will be
balanced between community needs, District requirements, regulatory
requirements, and recommendations of the General Manager.

5.4.Cenduct-The Board will conduct a periodic review of rates and charges.

D. Commissioner Assignments

1. At least annually, Cemmissieners-the Board will review the various
organizations with which CRW has relationships_ and decide which
organizations should have a Board representative assigned to them.

ofinterest-ortThe Board President may-will assign a CRW representative to
any organization the Board determines should have a representative from the
Board, unless a different assignment process is required by agreement or
lawmake-the-assignments.

2. A Commissioner’s attendance at another organization’s meeting is in the
Commissioner’s individual capacity, not in an official capacity, unless the
Commissioner is assigned as an organizational representative pursuant to this
section or the attendance is otherwise approved by the Board.

1.3.1f a Commissioner appears before another governmental agency or
organization to give a statement on an issue relevant to CRW, that
Commissioner must state whether the statement reflects personal opinion, is
the official position of CRW, or both. Additionally, if the Commissioner is
representing CRW, the Commissioner must support and advocate for the
official CRW position on the issue as established by vote of the Board.

{04244875-8 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.4

A.

Section 1.5

Orientation
Cooperating with Board Candidates

The Board, through the General Manager, shall cooperate with candidates for the
Board on an equal basis and will provide them with information about Board
policies and other aspects of the operation of CRW _upon request.

Orienting New Beard-MemberCommissioners

The Board and the General Manager shall assist each new member-elect to
understand the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. If possible
orientation will be provided before the member-elect takes office. The General
Manager will provide aH-apprepriate-information including:

1. A copy of Board policies, including Local Contract Review Board Rules.

2. A copy of the law relating to the operation of water districts.
3. A copy of the Attorney General’s “Public Records and Meetings Manual.”

3:4.A copy of the Oregon Government Ethics Commission publication “Guide for
Public Officials.”

Commissioner Conduct

The following Code of Conduct applies to Commissioners whenever they are acting in

their official capacity, both in and outside of Board meetings.

A.

The Board shall not, to the extent possible, involve itself in the day-to-day

operations of the District. Without prior approval of the Board, no Commissioner
may interfere with or engage in District operations, including programs,
maintenance, personnel management, administration, enforcement of facility
rules, planning, training, or other daily operations and responsibilities of the
General Manager. |If the Board sees a need for an exception and asks a
Commissioner to become involved in District operations, the Board will clearly
state in writing the Commissioner’s operational duties/functions, and the Board
President and General Manager shall agree to said arrangement prior to the
Commissioner commencing involvement.

Commissioners will assist the Board President in preserving order and decorum

during Board meetings and will not delay or interrupt proceedings.
Commissioners will comply with any ruling of the President or Board, and the
following rules will be observed to maintain order and decorum during meetings:

{04244875-8 } 7

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



1. Commissioners will review necessary information, including the agenda
and meeting materials, before meetings, and will come to meetings

prepared.

2. Any Commissioner desiring to be heard will request to the President to be
heard. Commissioners will be given an opportunity to speak at least once
on any pending motion or agenda item. Once recognized, the speaker will
confine their remarks to the subject under consideration.

3. When speaking on behalf of the Board or District, Commissioners will
represent the Board’s official position, not their own personal opinion.

4, Commissioners will be open and candid and should be succinct in stating
their views. Commissioners should focus on a single issue or topic at any
one time and allow one another to finish speaking without interruption.

5. Board discussions are to focus on CRW issues; Commissioners should
avoid raising non-District issues not relevant to the current discussion.

6. Commissioners should keep discussions moving and adhere to established
time limits on discussions.

7. Commissioners will refrain from criticizing or berating each other, staff,
or members of the public.

C. The Board will respect the separation between policymaking and administration
(Board and General Manager functions respectively) as outlined in these Board
Policies by observing the following communication policies with respect to CRW
staff:

1. The Board will work with CRW staff as a team in the spirit of mutual
respect and support.

2. Outside of Board meetings, Commissioners will not attempt to influence a
CRW employee or the General Manager, or advocate for a certain
outcome in regard to personnel matters, purchasing issues, the award of
contracts or the selection of consultants. However, Commissioners
discussing these matters with the General Manager outside of Board
meetings in a non-coercive manner is appropriate.

3. Commissioners will, wherever possible, limit individual contact with
CRW staff to the General Manager, management staff, and designated
staff for requests that concern the relevant matter or matters, so as not to
influence staff decisions or recommendations, interfere with their work
performance, undermine management authority or prevent the Board as a
whole from receiving information. The General Manager will determine
the most effective way to respond to Board requests.

{04244875-8 } 8
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




4. When expressing criticism to staff, either at a public meeting or through
other communication, Commissioners will be professional and mindful of
the role and responsibility of staff members.

5. Any written materials or information requested of staff by Commissioners
will be submitted to the entire Board and include a notation stating who
requested the information.

6. The Board President will refer comments or questions regarding CRW
personnel or administration to the General Manager. The General
Manager may, at their discretion, reply to the inquiry directly or instruct
the appropriate staff member to do so.

D. Commissioners will protect the confidentiality of CRW information as follows:

1. Commissioners will keep all written materials provided to them on matters
that are confidential under law in complete confidence to ensure that the
District position is not compromised. No mention of the information read
or heard should be made to anyone other than the Commissioners, General
Manager, or legal counsel.

2. All public statements, information or media releases relating to a
confidential matter will be handled by the General Manager, legal counsel,
or designated Commissioner.

3. Unless required by law, no Commissioner may make public the
discussions or information obtained in executive session. The Board may
censure a Commissioner who discloses confidential information or
otherwise violates this policy.

4, Commissioners will comply with the Oregon Public Records Law by
retaining all documents they create that relate to the business of CRW,
including their notes on documents, for the minimum period of time
established by CRW’s public records retention policy and any other
applicable law. Commissioners may comply with this requirement by
providing records to the employee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board for retention. This obligation continues
after a Commissioner leaves office.

Section 1.56 Board Educational Development

A The General Manager will inform and make available information on
conferences, meetings and publications which may be useful and informative.

Section 1.67 Compensation for Services and Reimbursement for Expenses

{04244875-8 } 9
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Commissioners will be compensated $50 for any water-related meeting or

B-C.

GD.

B-E.

EF._ .

conference attended on behalf of CRW. The stipend is limited to $50 per day

ad&ﬂenakmeeﬂag&a#ea&ended—m%he—sam&da%epﬁ—y%ka Commlssmner wants

reimbursement for attendance at a meeting that has not been authorized by the

Boardnen-autherized-meetings, thea-prior Board approval is required.

There is no reimbursement for mileage to and from CRW for meetings.

Commissioners are not entitled to compensation for expenses that are included in
the cost of an event registration.

Commissioners_shall request -are-enceuraged-to-notify-CRW-prior-to-purchasing
supplies they use for CRW business_from designated CRW staff. CRW staff

often can buy supplies at a lower cost than if the Commissioners makes the
purchase on their own.

Additional Criteria-for-Compensation-or-ReimbursementProvisions Regarding
Attendance at Meetings or Events:—-erder-to-gualify-for-compensation-the
celmdmesans oo

1. To qualify for compensation or reimbursement, a meeting or event must be —
must-be-a-public-meeting-or-eventthatisrelated to CRW’s mission.
Examples are meetings by-of other Publie-public or Private-private
Entitiesentities, such as Chamber of Commerce meetings, SDAO or like
Eventsevents, City-city or Ceunty-county meetings, monthly agenda
preparation meetings, or any other meeting where there is a prior expense
authorization by the CRW Board or the Board President. Butiln no event
shall Beard-MembersCommissioners receive compensation for meetings
attended with staff at their own request.

2. The Beard-memberCommissioner is encouraged to provide orally, or in
writing, a summary of the meeting or event at the next regular Board meeting

to the extent that it relates to CRW’s operations, planning, or policies.

3. All requests for expense reimbursement must be submitted within 60 days of
expense incurrence. In the case of extenuating circumstances, exceptions may
be made with approval from the Board President. The decument
reimbursement form must be signed and detailed-withinclude the dates and
times for the meetings attended. Commissioners will not be compensated for
time or mileage if a request is not timely submitted.

4. While Boeard-membersCommissioners may attend meetings or events, Beard
memberCommissioners shall not make statements on behalf of the District or

{04244875-8 } 1 0

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



Board without prior approval of the content by the Board, unless it is already
published and attributable to the District. In all other circumstances, the
Beard-memberCommissioner must be clear that statements are the individual
position of the Beard-memberCommissioner and not the Board or District.

F-G. Commissioners will submit expense reports for reimbursement to the
cFOemployee designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the

Board, who-and-the-GFO will then-review thatreimbursementthe report to verify
that the expenses are in compliance with Board Policy. If therearethe report
includes expenses that are questionable or outside policy, the SFS-employee
designated by the General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board shall
review the expense request with the Genera-ManagerChief Financial Officer. If
the Chief Financial Officer is unable to confirm that an expense request complies
with Board Policy, the General Manager will return the expense request to the
Commissioner with direction that there-is-stit-disagreement-the-doeument-shal-be
returned-to-the-Commissionerand-if they-the Commissioner wishes to be
reimbursed, stithwantreimbursement-the Commissioner may submit their expense

relmbursement dlrectly to the Board for con5|derat|on lheLFequster—mHst

submﬁsmn—The Board ’s vote is the flnal resolutlon

G:H. The Board will-foHow-and-does-adopts the-CRW Policy 1-2.10.003 (Travel
Expense Policy)statfpelicies for itself and will follow it.

H:l.  If a Beard-memberCommissioner uses histhera personal vehicle to travel, the
District will reimburse for travel at the then--existing IRS mileage rate. However,
no reimbursement will be paid for travel to and from CRW property.

£ -No reimbursement shall be allowed for expenses incurred by or for spouses,
guests or relatives of Beard-membersCommissioners. No reimbursement shall be
allowed for alcoholic beverages.

&K. If CRW is reimbursing the member for the expenses and costs of travel, the time
spent traveling shall not be considered a meeting or event for which compensation
for services can be claimed.

L. -FrequentFhrerMilesTravel and Credit Card Perks -— CRW will book all travel
and lodging for authorized travel by Commissioners. Beard
memberCommissioners traveling on CRW-related business may pay for
incidental travel expenses using personal credit cards, debit cards, and other
payment methods that accrue “pomts” or other promotlonal benefitsnot—acerue

L-M. The Board and individual Commissioners will comply with Oregon government
ethics requirements in connection with any compensation or reimbursement issues

{04244875-8 } 1 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




decided by the Board. Generally, a Commissioner making a request for
compensation or reimbursement has

where-a direct conflict of interest that must be declared by the requesting
Commissioner, and the Commissioner may not participate in the deliberation or

decrsron on the request e*rsts—the—Beard—must—ﬁrsPdeel&re&eenﬂwPef—mterest

B-A.

GB.

Proposed District policy amendments will be drafted by or at the direction of the
General Manager for Board review.

Adoption of new District policies, amendments of existing District policies, or
repeal of existing District policies shaII be made by resolution of the Board

pursuant to :
require-a two-step procedure separated by no less than 28 days:

1. Ineluded-Inclusion of the proposed action #-on the public agenda with
introduction, discussion, and deliberation at one meeting.

2. ineluded-ininclusion of the proposed action on the public agenda with further
deliberation and a vote to be held at a second meeting.

2.3.The Board may, by unanimous vote, waive the requirement of two readings
and take action on a District policy in a single meeting.

EC.

SuspensienBoard Policies

1. The Board may temporarily suspend Board policies may-be-suspended-by a
majorlty vote if the motion has been provrded to all Commrssroners in wrrtlnq

mwrmﬂg—or by unanimous vote e#au-membersrwhen no such wrltten netree
motion has been givenprovided.

{04244875-8 } 12

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



3-2.Policies specific to beard-Board gevernmentgovernance, including these
Board Policies, do not require a second reading or a 28-day passing period.

Section 1.8-9 Public Meetings (See ORS 192.610 — 192.666695)

A. The Board shall hold meetings at such time and place within the District as it may
determine. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month on a
day to be fixed by it and may hold special meetings under such rules as it may
make.

B. The Board has established the reqular meeting date of record as the second
Thursday of each month.

A:C. The Board shall make every reasonable effort to commence all public meetings no
later than five (5) minutes after the start time published in the meeting notice
unless a delay in the start time is announced to the public at the scheduled start
time.

B:D. No publicly attended Board meeting shall extend beyond 10:00 p.m._or for a
period of time longer than three hours unless the Board approves a motion to

extend the exeeptthat-such-a-meeting may-extend-for a specified additional time
period-approved by the Board.

C.E. Any-No Executive Session held following a public meeting shall ast-extend
beyond 10:30 p.m. unless the Board approves a motion in public session to extend
exeeptthat-sueh-athe meeting may-extend-for a specified additional time period
crpanneb i Pand

DB:F.  The Board adopts the definitions relating to public meetings as set forth in ORS

192.610.

E.G. The Board reserves the right to change the place, time, and date of such regular
Board meetings and to call and hold such additional or special meetings, as shall
be deemed necessary, as provided by law. The Board President or two Beard
membersCommissioners may call special meetings. If the date of a regular

scheduled meeting is to be changed, retwithstanding-an-emergeney-the public

{04244875-8 } 13
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




must be given at least 36-14 days’ notice except in the event of an emergency.

H. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding public
meeting notices, |nclud|nq W|thout Ilmltatlon ORS 192 640 Exeept—m—theeaseef

law—The Board #em%me%eﬁmemay requwe postlng or publlcatlon of
additional notices as it deems necessary to provide notice to the public.

1. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding the
location of meetings, access to meetings, accommodation for persons with
disabilities, and the availability of interpreters as required by Oregon law,
including without limitation ORS 192.630.

J. The Board, through District staff, will comply with Oregon law regarding minutes
and record keeping of meetings, including without limitation ORS 192.650. The
full recordings of open meetings are deemed to be the official minutes of such
meetings.

K. The Board will comply with Oregon law regarding executive sessions, including
without limitation ORS 192.660.

L. The Board, through staff, will comply with Oregon law requiring remote access to
meetings open to the public to the extent reasonably possible, including without
limitation ORS 192.670. The District may take actions necessary to exclude
malicious disruptions of meetings, including requiring persons to notify the
District in advance if they wish to provide public testimony in a meeting so access
permissions may be granted.

M. Commissioners will comply with the requirements of ORS 192.630, including
those provisions prohibiting three or more Commissioners from meeting outside a
properly noticed public meeting for the purpose of deciding on or deliberating
toward a decision on any matter that will or may be decided by the Board, except
as otherwise provided by ORS 192.610 to 192.705. For purposes of this policy,
“meeting” includes (1) gathering in a physical location; (2) using electronic, video
or telephonic technology to be able to communicate contemporaneously among
participants; (3) using serial electronic written communication among
participants; or (4) using an intermediary to communicate among participants.

N. The Board and each Commissioner will comply with ORS 192.700, requiring
annual training on compliance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law. The Board
directs the General Manager to arrange for Board training through a method that
complies with ORS 192.700.

EO. Any Commissioner who has a question about compliance with Oregon Public
Meetings Law may direct the question to the General Manager. The General
Manager, may, but is not required to, direct the question to the District’s General
Counsel.

{042448758 } 14
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




G-P.__ The District will use the Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual
as a guidance document.

Section 1.910 Agenda Preparation

A. The General Manager will draft a proposed agenda for Board meetings and
present the draft to the Board President and Secretary for review approximately
two weeks prior to the meeting in question. The Board President and Secretary
will approve the Board meeting agenda with any revisions they might make to the

draft agenda.

AB. Any Commlssmner may request that an |tem be placed on the agenda for a Board

must be submltted to the emplovee desmnated by the General Manaqer as

Executive Assistant to the Board no later than 17_days before the scheduled
meeting._The Board President and Secretary will decide whether the matter is
placed on the agenda.

up to

the»agendaﬁThe Board PreS|dent can add edlt or delete emergency |tem
the time of the Board Meeting.

w

C.D. The Board President-may add or review agenda items te-the-agendaby majority
vote at the time the agenda is approved by the Board;at-any-timeathisther
iseretion.

Section 1.1011 Preparation for Board Meetings
A. The Ageney’s-Executive-Assistantemployee designated by the General Manager

as Executive Assistant to the Board shall prepare, distribute, and post all public
notices.

B. The agenda serves as the public notice of the time and place of the meeting and
will be distributed to the Board; and interested persons, including news media,
which-who have requested notice. The agenda will be posted at the CRW
administration building, the CRW web page, and other locations as designated by
the Board.

C. Board-memberCommissioners will receive a Board packet.

D. Other interested persons may request a packet, in writing, to-from ERW-s-the
Executive-Assistant-to-the-Boardemployee designated by the General Manager as
Executive Assistant to the Board. CRW may charge for paper copies of the Board
packet per CRW’s public records policies.

{04244875-8 } 15
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 1.4+-12 Procedures during Board Meetings

A Exeeptas-otherwise-provided-by-state-law-These Board pehieyPolicies, as
supplemented by -and/orBeard Metion—Robert’s Rules of Order” (Revised),
shall guide the Board in its deliberations_except as otherwise required by state
law. Rules may be amended at any meeting by majority vote. The order of
business may be suspended at any meeting by a majority vote of those present.

B. Public Participation

1. The Board will provide a time at each regular meeting for public comment on
non-agenda items. The Executive-Assistant-employee designated by the
General Manager as Executive Assistant to the Board will provide a process
for those wanting to make public comment. All remarks should be addressed
to the Board as a body. Each person is allowed a maximum of three minutes
unless allocated additional time by the Board. Time may not be yielded or
allocated by one person to another.

2. Meeting Conduct — Persons attending and making statements shall do so in a
courteous, professional manner; common respect will be maintained among
all participants. The Board President has inherent authority to keep order and
to impose any reasonable restrictions necessary for the efficient and orderly
conduct of the meeting. The President may regulate the order and length of
appearances and limit appearances to presentations of relevant points and to
limit repetitive and redundant comment. Only Beard-memberCommissioners
or the General Manager may ask questions of a person, staff member, or
attendee making a presentation or giving testimony. Questions from the
audience to staff members or guests will not be allowed. The President is
authorized to stop interruptions of Board deliberations or attempts to debate
with staff, other meeting attendees, or Beard-memberCommissioners. The
President may, to the extent allowed by law, exclude a person for not
complying with meeting policy or causing a disturbance.

C. Votes will be recorded. Any member-Commissioner may request a vote be
changed if such request is made prior to consideration of the next order of
business.

D. Three members-Commissioners shall constitute a quorum._Commissioners may

appear by telephonic or electronic means. Commissioners appearing remotely
shall be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum- so long as all
Commissioners can speak to and hear each other. If only a quorum is present, a
unanimous vote is required to approve a motion.

E. The Board generally makes decisions byMembers-may-reguesta roll-call vote._In

{04244875-8 } 1 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




the event that a vote is not taken by roll call, any Commissioner may require that
a roll-call vote be conducted if the request is stated promptly after the vote occurs.

F. Members may append to the record, at the time of voting, a statement indicating
the reason for the vote or the reason for abstaining.

Section 1.2213 Computer Policy

Obijective: To establish the respective responsibilities of CRW and the Commissioners in

regard to District-approved pertable-electronic-communication-devices purchased by the
Dlstrlct for use by the Commlssmners to conduct Dlstrlct related busmess Asrused

electromc deV|ces and related equmment are and WI|| remain propertv of the Dlstrlct

A. The District will provide an pertable-electronic eemmunication-device to each
Commissioner for histhertheir use.

B. Commissioners will sign the District’s IT Asset Acknowledgement Form when issued
any device. The Commissioner will acknowledge agreement to the District’s IT

policies.

B.C. The District will provide basic training in the use of the portable-electronic
communication-devices and will provide technical support for the care and
maintenance of the hardware-and-seftwaredevice. The pertable-electronic
communication-devices will be the sole property of CRW.

&.D. CRW shall be responsible for the cost of the maintenance and/or replacement of
any defective equipment and/or software;-the-cost-of connection-to-the-Internetand
the-castaiuse-athe-tnternet-io D ist epuraeses.

D:E. At the end of the term of the Commissioner’s service on the Board-orresighation
from-the-Board, the Commissioner will return i-all District property to the District

within-thirty-{30)-days-efimmediately upon vacating office.

E-F.  CRW will provide the capability to interface with the connections of CRW.

FG.  If the pertable-electronic eommunication-device is damaged because of a
negligent or intentional act, or other act for which the commissioner is responsible,
the Commissioner will be responsible for its replacement costs.

H. Information received on or maintained on the portable electronic communication
devices is a public record and may be subject to disclosure under ORS Chapter 192.

{04244875-8 } 1 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




All such information must be preserved indefinitely unless a complete copy is
provided to the General Manager for the District to preserve. Commissioners shall
not cGommunicatiene via the-portable electronic communication devices in a manner
that shatt-retviolates the public meetings law under ORS Chapter 192.

G:l.  Commissioners are encouraged to use District-approved devices for

communications related to District business in order to support District retention of

public records and to reduce the likelihood that a Commissioner’s personal devices
must be searched for public records. Public-meetingstaw-under ORS-Chapter-192.

{04244875-8 } 18
Clackamas River Water Board Policies

Complete Revision 07/2024



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 2 BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD

21 Number of Positions and Terms

2.2 Officers

2.3 Duties of the President

2.4 Duties of the Secretary

25 Duties of the Treasurer

2.6 Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board
2.7 Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel
2.8 Selection and Duties of the Auditor

29 Minutes

2.10 Budget Hearing

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 2.1

A.

Section 2.2

A.

Section 2.3

A.

Number of Positions and Terms

Unless appointed, the Board shall consist of five members serving four (4) year
terms, elected by CRW voters pursuant to ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264.

No person, elected or appointed, shall be sworn in unless the qualifications set
forth in ORS chapters 198, 255, and 264 are met. If an eligibility question arises,
the Board will obtain an opinion from legal counsel prior to swearing in.

Unless filling a vacancy, terms start officially on July 1. A new member must
qualify by taking an oath of office before assuming the duties of the position.

Should a vacancy occur on the Board, that vacancy will be advertised and the
Board will select an individual from among those indicating their interest. ORS
198.320 will be followed in fulfilling this procedure.

Officers

The officers of the Board shall consist of:
1. President

2. Secretary

3. Treasurer

At the first meeting in July of each year, the Board shall elect from its members
the officers for the ensuing year effective upon their election. In the event that
there will be no change in the Board’s membership on July 1 of a given year, the
Board may in its discretion elect officers during a regular meeting in June of that
year, effective at the beginning of the first meeting in July.

The term of office for the officers shall be for one (1) year-asprovided-in-ORS

shall require a bond or an irrevocable letter of credit of any Commissioner or any

officer or employee of the district who is charged with possession and control of
district funds and properties as set out in ORS 198.220.

Duties of the President

The President shall preside at all meetings, shall have the right to make motions,
discuss questions and vote on any issue.

{04244875-8 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



B. The President shall sign, on behalf of the Board, contracts, deeds and other similar
documents as may require representative signature.

C. The President shall appoint all committees except the Budget Committee, subject
to approval of a majority of the Board, and perform all other duties as set forth in
Board policies and rules.

D. The President shall appoint, in the absence of the Secretary, a Beard
memberCommissioner to temporarily act in that capacity, subject to the approval
of the Board.

E. The President, in addition to the Treasurer, shall sign short-term debt notes_unless
otherwise directed by the Board.

Section 2.4 Duties of the Secretary

A. In the absence of the President, the Secretary shall perform the duties and have
the rights and obligations of the President.

B. In the absence of the Treasurer, the Secretary shall perform the duties of the
Treasurer.

C. Compile the agenda as described by Board policy.

Section 2.5 Duties of the Treasurer

A In the absence of both the President and Secretary, the Treasurer shall perform the
duties and have the rights and obligations of the President.

B. The Treasurer, in addition to the President, shall sign short-term debt notes.

Section 2.6  Duties of the General Manager as Clerk of the Board

It shall be the duty of the General Manager to perform the following functions as Clerk of
the Board:

A Handle correspondence of special interest to the Board as follows:
1. Ensure appropriate preparations have been made for Board Meetings
2. Attend all Board meetings

3. Ensure records are taken to record Board decisions.

{04244875-8 } 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 2.7

A.

B.

C.

Selection and Duties of the Legal Counsel

The Board shall select a general-General er-oether-tegal-cCounsel for CRW and
negotiate the terms and conditions of the General Ceounsel’s duties._The General
Counsel will be authorized, in coordination with the General Manager, to engage
special legal counsel for matters the General Counsel cannot perform directly.

General fegal-eCounsel shall advise the Board on specific legal problems
submitted by the Board or the General Manager and recommend a course of
action.

The General Manager, or authorized staff, has authority to seek legal counsel
from CRW’s eeunsel-General Counsel as deemed advisable by the General

Manager on matters relating to legal issues. Upon-engagerment-ofspecial-counsel;
tThe General Manager shall immediately advise the Board of such-the

engagement_of special counsel.

G.D.  With Upen+eceivingsuch-the approval ereonsensus-of the Board, Beard

B-E.

EF.

membersCommissioners may seek clarification from CRW’s legal counsel on
matters that affect or efcurrent-litigationaffecting- CRW-ora-matterthat-could
affect CRW. All such requests from individual Beard-memberCommissioners,
except for requests dealing with the hiring, termination or performance issues of
the General Manager, shall be submitted to counsel through the General Manager
and shall be in writing with copy to the entire Board. All requests to counsel
relating to the hiring, termination, or performance issues of the General Manager
shall be in writing with copy to the entire Board.

Legal counsel shall advise the Board of any action, or proposed action of the
Board or CRW, that is not in compliance with the law.

Legal counsel shall not take action on any matter unless directed to do so by the
Board or the General Manager.

EG. When a non-represented employee of the CRW is called to testify or otherwise

G-H.

required to provide information on legal matters arising out of the scope of his-or
hertheir employment with CRW, and to which he-er-she-isthey are not a named
party or the subject of disciplinary action, the General Manager may authorize
legal representation during such testimony to protect the interest of CRW. - A
Commissioner may request and obtain legal representation, if authorized by the
Board in advance, under similar circumstances.

LegaleGeneral Counsel shall be the designated the registered agent of CRW,

Section 2.8

A.

pursuant to ORS 198.340, unless otherwise designated by the Board.

Selection and Duties of the Auditor

The Board shall select the auditor for CRW. This selection will be done in a

{04244875-8 } 5

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



B.

Section 2.9

A.

AB.

manner to allow timely preparation of the audit and cover audit services for a
period of three (3) years. No contract shall be extended or renewed for more than
two (2) terms without Board approval. This shall not prevent an incumbent
service provider from responding to a Request for Proposal (RFP).

The auditor shall:

1. Examine the accounts of CRW at the close of every fiscal year in
accordance with applicable Aaccounting Standards-standards and laws.

2. Include such tests of the accounting records and other such auditing
procedures as are necessary in the circumstances.

3. Render an opinion on the financial statements prepared at the close of the
fiscal year.

4. Support staff in preparing financial statements for publication as required
by law.

5. Make recommendations to the Board concerning CRW accounting

records, procedures and related activities.
6. Perform such other related services as requested by the Board.

7. Review the written accounting policies, practices, and procedures and
render an opinion for the Board.

Minutes

The Board shall keep minutes of all its meetings in accordance with the
requirements of ORS Cchapter 192._Recordings of meetings, when created, shall
serve as the official minutes of the meetings.

Board meeting minutes, including recordings constituting official minutes, will be
preserved permanently. Rrecordings not constituting official minutes will be kept
for a minimum of twe-one (21) year after minutes are prepared and approved. All
other meeting materials will be kept for a minimum of five (5) years. The District
will follow Oregon Secretary of State Archives Division public record retention
rules with respect to minutes and meeting materials.s-ir-accerdance-with-the
reguirements-of ORS-Chapter-192. Recordings shall be available to the public

within a reasonable time after the meeting.

B-C. Executive sessions will be recorded.

S.D. According to ORS 192.660, CRW has determined that any information discussed

{04244875-8 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



during Executive Session is confidential and non-disclosable unless specifically
authorized by the Board or as required or as excluded by law.

{04244875-8 } 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 3 BUDGET AND FINANCE

3.1 Formulation of Budget Document

3.2 Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities
3.3 Budget Administration

3.4 Banking Services

35 Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property
3.6 Investment of Funds

3.7 Borrowing

3.8 Acknowledgement of Payments

3.9 Accounting Policy

3.10 Audit

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




Section 3.1

A.

Formulation of Budget Documents

The adopted budget document shall serve as the financial plan for operation and
provide guidelines for carrying out the goals and objectives of CRW.

Within the budget process the Board shall appoint the Budget Committee
membership, appoint the CRW Budget Officer, and adopt the budget.

The CRW budget shall be prepared and adopted in full compliance with State of
Oregon Local Budget Law.

Legal References ORS 294.305 FO-to 294.520, ORS 294.565

Section 3.2

A.

Budget Committee - Membership and Responsibilities

The Budget Committee shall consist of the five (5) members of the Board of
Commissioners and five (5) community members. The Board shall establish a
process for appointment of community members to the Budget Committee.

At the Budget Committee’s first meeting, the Board President shall open the
budget meeting. The Budget Committee shall select a chairperson and vice-chair.

The responsibilities of the Budget Committee are:

1. Approve the level of expenditures and set the corresponding tax levy
requirements, if necessary, to balance each fund.

2. Review and, if necessary, revise the proposed budget.

3. Be aware of the legal constraints imposed upon CRW.

4. Be familiar with the Budget Document and what it means.
5. Approve the budget.

6. Be involved in the supplemental budget activity as required by local budget
law.

{04244875-8 } 2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



The hearing on the budget shall be held after the budget is approved by the

B-E.

Budget Committee and at the time and place designated in the notice of the
meeting required by ORS 294.438 - 294.453.

The Board ef-Cemmissioners-shall adopt the budget, make appropriations, and
determine the tax levies, if necessary, to finance the programs approved to meet

CRW goals and objectives.

Legal References ORS 294.414, ORS 294.428, ORS 294.456  Seet:3-2-Updated-2/15

Section 3.3

A

Budget Administration

The adopted budget is the financial plan developed to carry out the programs
supporting CRW's goals and objectives.

The General Manager is authorized to approve expenditures up to the amount
appropriated by the budget and in accordance with Local Contract Review Board

Rules and any resolutions of the Board.

The budget may be amended to reflect changes in budget categories.

The Board will be provided financial reports, on a regularly scheduled basis, in
which actual revenues and expenditures will be compared with budget.

Legal References ORS 294.456

Section 3.4

A.

Banking Services

The General Manager through the Chief Financial Officer will recommend, and
the Board will approve, the selection of the banking entity utilized by CRW.

Annuathy-sStaff will advise the Board of any changes to the status of banking
signatories.

Legal References ORS chapter 264

Section 3.5

Purchase, Acquisition by Donation and Disposition of Real Property

{04244875-8 } 3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies

Complete Revision 07/2024



A. The purchase, receipt ef-real-property-or-properhy-interests-by donation, lease,
exchange, sale, or gift of all real property or real property interest by CRW must
have the approval of the Board, provided that any acquisition or disposition of
real property or real property interest having a fair market value of $2675,000 or
less, and any disposition of a public utility easement, may be made by the
General Manager, as delegated authority, in accordance with this policy. As used
in this policy, “disposition” shall mean the sale, exchange, or other transfer of title
or other interest in real property.

B. Any donation or gifting of CRW property, regardless of value, shall be donated in
accordance with the following erder-efpriorityguidelines:

1. The method of donating or gifting of CRW property should be based on
the type of property, the value of the property, administrative costs, and
other factors to determine which method represents the greatest benefit to
the public. To federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental
entities

2. CRW may donate or gift property to governmental or quasi-governmental
entities, private utility companies having the ability to reuse the property
for the benefit of District customers, on non-profit entities.

2:3. The General Manager shall comply with applicable requirements
and conditions imposed as part of any funding agreement or grant. Any
disposition of property or property interests in excess of $75,000 shall
comply with applicable law and the appraisal requirements of this policy

as stated helow Fe-pespretitentitecsopringnidesopetumanitaindhe

. . . . : L o
beundaries:

042448758} 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




C. The General Manager shall project site needs in advance and the Board, with
advice and counsel of the General Manager, shall select sites prior to immediate
need. Such sites shall be chosen with a view to best serve the residents and
properties of the whole District and will be based on demographic data, growth
projections, availability, and cost of land. Any proposed acquisition of real
property or real property interests in which a District employee or Board
memberCommissioner has an interest shall be disclosed to the entire Board in a
public meeting and any action taken on such acquisition shall be in accordance
with ORS Chapter 244.

E.D. _Sites that have a fair market value of $2075,000 or more and become surplus to
CRW's needs shall be declared such by Resolution of the Board and shall be
considered for sale, exchange, gift or lease pursuant to State statute and this

policy.

accomplished pursuant to ORS 264.210, this-pehieythese Board Policies, and, in
the event the exercise of eminent domain is necessary, ORS Chapter 35. All fair
market value estimates, market studies, or appraisals as specified and detailed
below shall be obtained from a real estate broker or appraiser having all necessary
certifications and licenses in the State of Oregon and having knowledge of the
real estate market in the location and type of property being acquired or disposed.

EE.  Acquisition or disposition of real property or real property interests shall be

1—For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of $2075,000 or less, the General Manager
shall obtain a market survey from an independent real estate broker. Upon
confirmation of the estimated fair market value, the General Manager shall
have delegated authority to acquire or dispose of the property in
accordance with this policy.

2. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $2075,000 but not more than
$150250,000, the General Manager shall obtain a market study from a real
estate broker prior to consideration by the Board.

3. For real property or property interests estimated by the General Manager
to have a fair market value of more than $150250,000 the General
Manager shall obtain an appraisal from a real estate appraiser prior to
consideration by the Board.

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




F. For acquisition of property for which CRW receives or uses federal
financial assistance in any part of the project, the General Manager shall comply
with the provisions of the Uniform Real Property Relocation and Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970, as amended.

All appraisal reports shall comply with the standards for appraisals as published in
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) in effect at
the time of the appraisal. The appraisal and level of documentation will depend
on the complexity of the appraisal problem. All appraisals must contain sufficient
documentation, including valuation data and the appraiser’s analysis of that data,
to support the opinion of value.

The General Manager may release any interest CRW might have in a public
utility easement if the encumbered property is not served by CRW, the
encumbered property is within the limits of a city, and the General Manager
determines that CRW is unlikely to serve the encumbered property in the future.
No appraisal is necessary for the release of a public utility easement under this
subsection.

Legal References ORS 264.210, 49 CFR Part 24

Section 3.6

| A.

Section 3.7

Investment of Funds

CRW?’s policy is to invest— a maximum of surplus-available funds as is
reasonably prudent, while having available cash on hand to meet daily operating
needs.

TheFhe-General-Manager-or-designeeis-the Investment Officer for CRW will be
designated in the CRW Investment Policy adopted by the Board.

The Investment Officer shall adhere to the rules set forth in Oregon-Revised
StatutesORS 294.035,-ard ORS 294.040, and the-the CRW Investment Policy
adopted by the Board.

Diversification of investments will be in accordance with the CRW Investment
Policy.

The Investment Officer will provide the Board with a register of outstanding
investments on at least a quarterly basis. This report will include the name of the
financial institution, issue date, maturity date, principal invested, and the interest

rate, if applicable.
Legal References ORS 294.805 to 294.885, ORS 295.002 to; ORS 295.093

Borrowing

{04244875-8 } 6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024



A. Staff shall recommend, and the Board shall approve, the total amount of short-
term loans when borrowing is necessary.

B. CRW is authorized to contract for short-term loans for the purpose of meeting
current expense. These notes shall be signed by the Board President and
Treasurer.

C. CRW has authority to issue Revenue Bonds by resolution in accordance with

Oregon State Law.

Legal References ORS 287A.180, 287A.150

Section 3.8 Acknowledgement of Payments

Staff shall provide the Board with a monthly report of all expenditures. The Board will
review and acknowledge the expenditure report at its regular meeting in the month that is
two months after the month of the report. al-expenditures-made-forthepriormenth-at

Section 3.9 Accounting Policy

CRW’s financial and accounting procedures, records and reporting will be in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Government
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) authoritative guidance.

Section 3.10 Audit

The General Manager, or designee, will work with the auditor selected inr-pursuant to
Section 2.8 of these Board Policies each year to accomplish the objective of the annual
audit.

Legal Reference ORS 297.405 et. seq.

{04244875-8 } 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies Complete Revision 07/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 4 BUSINESS OPERATIONS

4.1 Personnel

4.2 Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies
4.3 Employment Classification of Commissioners

4.4 Safeguarding Assets

45 Use of CRW Property

4.6. Risk Management and Insurance Program

4.7 Insurance Agent of Record

4.8 Property Appraisal

49 Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property
4.10 Pension Plan

4.11 Records Management

412 Annexation, Merger, Consolidation

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 4.1  Personnel

CRW is committed to equal employment opportunity. Management is required to recruit,
employ, train, transfer, promote, pay, discipline, lay off, and terminate employees solely
on the basis of individual qualifications and merit and/or according to the standards and
policies outlined in its personnel and related policies. Decisions involving any aspect of
the employment relationship must be made without regard to an employee's race, color,
creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, marital status, physical or mental handicaps that
with reasonable accommodation do not prevent performance of the work involved, or any
other status or characteristic protected under any applicable federal or state law.

Discrimination or harassment based on any of those factors is totally inconsistent with the
Board's philosophy and will not be tolerated at any time.

Section 4.2 Preparation and Modification of Personnel Policies

The General Manager shall prepare and modify personnel and employment policies in
compliance with Oregen-state and Federal-federal law and general CRW Board —policy
applicable to personnel. The General Manager shall provide copies of any personnel
manual or policy and modifications to such manual or policies at-such-time-as-they-are
implemented-by-the General-Managerto a Commissioner upon request.

Section 4.3  Employment Classification of Commissioners

The District’s Commissioners, whether elected or appointed, are employees for tax
withholding purposes only. Commissioners are not entitled to any employment related
benefits as required by law or as otherwise provided in subsegquentsections-6FCRW’s
personnel policies or manual.

Section 4.4  Safeguarding Assets
The CRW Board of Commissioners fully supports a structure of policies and procedures
that systematically provide reasonable assurance that management will achieve its basic
objectives (operations, financial reporting, and compliance). This policy includes the
following five components:
1. Provide a favorable control environment;

2. Provide a periodic risk assessment;

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




3. Provide for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective control
activities;

4. Provide for effective information and communication; and

5. Provide for ongoing monitoring of the effectiveness of control-related policies
and procedures, as well as the resolution of any potential problems identified.

Source: Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting (GAAFR),
Stephen J. Gauthier. Copyright 2012 by the Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada, Chicago, IL, (p. 736)

Section 4.5

A.

Section 4.6

A.

{04244875-8 }

Use of CRW Property

Board Use of CRW Property: Fhe-Board-isCommissioners are required to
comply with Oregon Government Ethics Law the-ethiestaws-of Oregen-(ORS—
244.010 FO-to 244.047) in the use of CRW property in the execution of their
duties as a CRW-Beard-memberCommissioner.

1. Beard-MembersCommissioners are prohibited from loaning CRW property
without approval of the Board.

2. Itis the policy of CRW to loan equipment to other Bistriets-special districts or
Gevernmental-governmental agencies when it does not adversely impact
operations. The General Manager will determine methods of remunerations
and charges as defined in miscellaneous fee schedule.

Employee Use of CRW Property: CRW employees are required to comply with
the-ethiestaws-ef-Oregon_Government Ethics Law (ORS 2-44.010 to 244.047) as
well as Operations and Personnel Policies of CRW. The General Manager will
administer all policies related to acquisition, use, and disposition of CRW

property.

1. Employees are prohibited from loaning CRW property without approval of the
General Manager.

2. CRW property is defined as all tools, equipment, material, and facilities -
regardless of cost - owned or leased by CRW.

3. Inthe event of an emergency, employees are permitted to fead-loan equipment
to other governmental agencies and then report to the General Manager
following the emergency.

Risk Management and Insurance Program

The Board shall provide a program of risk management consistent with legal

3

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



requirements pertaining thereto and with the ability of CRW to finance the same.

B. CRW-staffThe General Manager and the Insurance Agent of Record will
recommend, and the Board will review and approve, the purchase of necessary
insurance or a self-insurance program sufficient to meet minimum statutory
requirements and provide for adequate insurance for all activities. Any self-
insurance program adopted by CRW shall provide for reasonably adequate
reserves. Coverage shall be adequate to protect:

1 Itself as a corporate body
2. Its Board of Commissioners
. individual

4.3. Its appointed officers

54.  Itsemployees

wantop-miscenduct+tThe above entities and individuals are to be insured against
financial loss to the extent required or authorized by law where the loss arises out
of a claim, suit or judgment by reason of negligence or other acts resulting in
accidental injury to a person or damage to property within or without CRW while
the above named insured are acting in the discharge of their duties within the
scope of their obligations as Beard-memberCommissioners or as employees
carrying our their duties. Normally, Beard-memberCommissioners will not be
held personally liable for the consequences of their actions and decisions in
fulfilling Board responsibilities. However, Commissioners will be held
personally liable in the event they have acted outside the scope of their duties (as
defined in Section 1 of Board Policy) or their conduct is not required to, or cannot
be, indemnified by CRW.

C. The Beard-District shall purchase insurance to cover or self insure:
1. All real and personal property of CRW.

2. Losses due to employee dishonesty, injury or death.

3. A program of benefits for employees to the limits established from time to
time by the Board.

{04244875-8 } 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




E-D. The General Manager shall develop and maintain procedures and regulations to
carry out this policy and may designate CRW employees to administer and
supervise the program.

1. The person(s) so designated shall be guided by the reasonable person rule
and shall:

i. ldentify and measure those risks.
ii.  Evaluate physical properties owned or leased by CRW.
iii.  Establish risk management records to reflect values of such property.

iv.  Establish procedures to maintain property and designate security
personnel to protect property.

v.  Establish procedures for good housekeeping, safe environmental
conditions for employees and members of the public.

vi.  Establish procedures for handling of risk management funds and
record keeping.

vii.  Utilizing the services of the CRW's insurance consultant and/or Broker
to determine which risks can normally be assumed as a proper
business risk and which risks shall be ceded to professional risk
bearers considering:

2.1.Frequency and magnitude of loss; and

3.2.The ability of the CRW to replace damaged property.

Section 4.7  Insurance Agent of Record

{04244875-8 } 5
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CRW will retain an insurance agent of record for casualty and property insurance,
bonds, and workers” compensation.

pmg%armeeemmended—by—wehagem—Anv appomtment shall complv Wlth
CRW’s Local Contract Review Board Rules Ihe%e#maf—sueh%en#aet—shau—be

The agent shall be responsible for assisting CRW with the development of a
sound risk management program and for writing and servicing all necessary
policies and statutory bonds.

Section 4.8

A.

Property AppraisalValuation for Insurance Purposes

CRW shall maintain an up-to-date appraisal-valuation of all buildings, including
improvements, fixtures, and fixed contents, as necessary to inform decisions on
property and casualty insurance.

ef—sueeessﬁ%e*pene%e—m—the—ﬁeld#h&app#a{sMA valuatlon may be

performed by CRW's insurance agent of record.

Section 4.9

A.

Section 4.10
A.

B.

{04244875-8 }

Disposal of Surplus or Outdated Equipment and Property

CRW shall dispose of surplus or unusable property in accordance with Oregon
Statutes-statutes and Local Contract Review Board Rules adopted by the Board.

Pension Plan
CRW is a Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) participating agency.

CRW also authorizes participation in qualified 457-type retirement plans.
6

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



Section 4.11 Records Management

A The Board directs the General Manager to develop policies that conform to the
Secretary of State Archives Division public records retention schedule applicable

to special districts.

B. Compliance with the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.4146-311 through
192.565478), including proper filing and retention of records in accordance with
these statutes, Oregon Administrative Rules 166-150-0005 to 166-150-0215 as
applicable, and CRW’s Record Management Policy, shall be required of all
employees and Beard-membersCommissioners.

{04244875-8 } 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 5 GENERAL MANAGER ROLE
5.1 General Manager as Administrator of CRW
5.2 General Manager Appointment and Terms of Employment

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 5.1  General Manager as Administrator of CRW

A. In accordance with the policies adopted by the Board, all administrative and
operational functions are delegated to the General Manager.

B. The General Manager shall create and maintain an organizational structure such
that staff is arranged for efficient and effective operation of CRW.

C. In all areas, the General Manager is delegated to develop and maintain the water
system at levels necessary to maintain CRW’s investments.

Section 5.2 Appointment and Terms of Employment - General Manager
A The General Manager shall be appointed and work at the pleasure of the Board.

B. The terms of employment shall be agreed upon by the Board and the General
Manager and be reduced to writing in the form of an employment contract
between CRW and the General Manager.

C. The Board shall review the position, the person, and the terms of employment
annually. The results of the review shall be contained in an annual evaluation.

D. The terms of employment shall include, but-rotnecessarihy-be-Hmited-tewithout

limitation: responsibilities of the General Manager, demonstrable skills, and
salary and benefit considerations.

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 6 PURCHASING/CONTRACTING
6.1 General

6.2 Responsibility, Authority, Standardization
6.3 Sales to Outside Agencies

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 6.1  General

CRW recognizes that effective purchasing policies can result in significant
savings. In accordance with ORS 279A.060, CRW has adopted Local Contract
Review Board Rules. Clackamas River Water’s Board of Commissioners is the
Local Contract Review Board and acts as such.

Section 6.2  Responsibility, Authority, Standardization

A.  The General Manager is responsible for the procurement of all goods and services
and for establishing procedures to sell goods and services.

B.  Standardization of supplies, materials and equipment is to be achieved whenever
possible.

C.  Only persons designated by the General Manager are authorized to order or
otherwise commit CRW for materials, equipment, supplies and services.

D. Beard-MemberCommissioners may not contact vendors, consultants or other
parties having an existing contractual relationship with CRW related to current
agency business or relationships without first being authorized for such contact by
a majority vote of the CRW Board.

Section 6.3  Intergovernmental Cooperation

A Whenever feasible, CRW will attempt to develop cooperative agreements with
federal, state, or local governmental agencies to promote the efficient use of
resources by sharing facilities and avoiding duplication of services. Charges Ne

service-charges-will-be-added-tofor goods or services sold to participating

governmental agencies will be limited to their direct and indirect costs.

B. All agreements between-with other government agencies will be in writing and
any agreement that-exceed-the-General- Manager’s-contractingauthority-will be
submitted to the Board for approval_unless the Board has delegated applicable
contracting authority to the General Manager.

{04244875-8 } 2
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

SECTION 7 COMMUNITY RELATIONS

7.1 Communication with the Public and News Media
7.2 Gifts and Donations

7.3 Public Records

7.4 Participation in Community Affairs

{04244875-8 } 1
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 7.1

Communications with the Public

Public involvement with CRW will-beis encouraged. In order to foster that involvement,
the General Manager shall keep the public informed of relevant polices and directives-ir

A. Nothing in this section shall prevent CRW employees from taking an active part
in community affairs.
B. Employees are entltled to enter mto polltlcal activity prowded itis eieatu-:LenJelcbe+|C
p%eakaeﬂmﬂe&alcem conformance Wlth ORS 260 432.
Section 7.2 Gifts and Donations
A CRW may accept gifts, grants, donations, and title to property from parties
desiring to convey property to CRW. Upon receipt, CRW shall have sole and
complete control of same. The Board shal-may recognize the receipt of gifts and
donations.
B. The Board shall recognize presentations of memorials or other awards without
such recognition being considered as a testimonial or endorsement by CRW.
Section 7.3 Public Records

Public records are to be created, maintained, retained and destroyed pursuant to

the definitions and requirements of ORS chapter 192.

Clackamas-River-WaterCRW shall comply with the Oregon Public Records Law,

ORS 192.410311-192.505478. Access to public records will be provided pursuant

to a Public Records Policy adopted by the General Manager and made available to
the public.

A-C. The Board designates the General Manager as CRW’s records custodian. The

{04244875-8 }

General Manager may delegate records custodian functions to CRW staff.

2

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



Notwithstanding this-CRW’s pPublic ¥Records pPolicy, the Board, from time to
time, may set policy and grant a waiver of fees with respect to public records
requests by Commissioners relating to agenda items under current discussion by
the Board.

FE.  Authorization Required for Removal of Original Records

1. An original record of CRW shall not be removed from CRW's files or the
place at which the record is regularly maintained, except upon authorization of
the Board.

H:F.  Unauthorized Alteration, Removal or Destruction of Originals

1. If any person attempts to alter, remove, or destroy any CRW record, the CRW
representative shall immediately terminate such person's review, and the
person shall be removed from CRW premises. Nothing in this peliey-Board
Policy shall prevent the destruction of public records as is allowed by Oregon

{04244875-8 } 3
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




lawthe-Seeretary-of State’s-statutesrules-or-guidelines relating to public

record retention and destruction.

{04244875-8 } 4
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




SECTION 8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

{04244875-8 }

5

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES

COST OF WATER SERVICE AND SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

Billing and Collection

Water Loss Policy

Meter and Service Installation Charges
Water Critical Customers

Service to Other Entities

Auvailability of Service

System Safety and Water Quality
Local Improvement District (L.1.D.)
Metering

Developer Installed Systems

Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024



Section 8.1  Billing and Collection

It is the policy of CRW that all customers pay for the costs of providing water to their
premises. The Board will adopt rules and regulations, water rate structures, and other
resolutions and ordinances that provide details on the conditions and costs for those

services. These will be periodicathy-reviewed periodically and updated by the General
Manager and submitted to the Board for consideration and adoption.
Section 8.2  Water Loss Policy

Recognizing the possibility of water leakage within the customer-owned system, leakage
is generally non-disputable and at the customer’s expense. If any adjustment is to be
made it will be consistent with the CRW Leak Adjustment Policy-adepted-by-the Board.

Section 8.3  Meter and Service Installation Fees

A The fees for meter and service installation will be set by the Board and reviewed
annually.

B. When the meter is purchased, the customer will pay the balance due, plus a
system development charge (SDC) as applicable.

Section 8.4  Water Critical Customers_[deleted]

{04244875-8 } 6
Clackamas River Water Board Policies

complete revision XX/2024

Commented [BS1]: In the alternative to deleting Section 8.4, the
following could be added:

“Nothing in this Section 8.4 shall be construed as the adoption of a
standard of care applicable to CRW. The Board, in behalf of CRW,
disclaims any and all liability, under any legal theory, based on an
alleged failure to take any actions specified in this Section 8.4.”




Section 8.5  Service to Other Entities

CRW may sell surplus water to other governmental entities upon Board approval and in
accordance with the requirements of ORS Chapter 264.

Section 8.6 Auvailability of Service

The Board directs the General Manager to establish policies to provide e4~CRW’s
customers with uninterrupted service.

Section 8.7 System Safety & Water Quality

The Board directs the General Manager to ensure there are appropriate policies and
procedures to comply with State and Federal mandates for location and protection of
underground facilities for the installation and maintenance of backflow devices.

Section 8.8  Local Improvement District (L.1.D.)

Upon petition by CRW customers, the Board authorizes the General Manager to begin
the procedure to establish a Local Improvement CRW (L.1.D.) under provisions of ORS
264.362.

Section 8.9 Metering

A Clackamas River Water reserves the right to determine the proper meter size and
configuration to be used to supply its customers. Criteria-to-be-tsed-in-such

B. Metering devices are to be installed in accordance with CRW rules and
regulations. Any exceptions are to be approved by the Board.

{04244875-8 } 7
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




Section 8.10 Developer Installed Systems

All new water mains will be installed in accordance with CRW’s water extension
procedures and CRW’s water system standard specifications.

{04244875-8 } 8
Clackamas River Water Board Policies complete revision XX/2024




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

BOARD POLICIES RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM

I am a duly elected Commissioner of the board of Clackamas River Water and hereby acknowledge
that | have been provided a copy of the Board Policies, and that it contains important information
regarding my role as a Commissioner. | have read and understand the policies contained in the
Board Policies and have asked the currently presiding board president or the general manager for
clarification of any information that | did not understand or had further questions regarding.

By my signature below, | agree to observe and comply with all policies and guidelines contained in
the Board Policies.

Commissioner’s Name (Print)

Commissioner’s Signature Date
CLACKAMAS RIVERWATER

BOARD-POLICIES

{04244875-8 }



Clackamas River Water

{04244875-8 }



{04244875-8 }




Agenda Item — 3

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Considet Approval of Resolution No. 08-2024 Approve Utility Billing
Bad Debt Write-off for FY 2023-24, Uncollectible Water Bills
DRAFT MOTION Move to apptove Resolution No. 08-2024 Bad Debt Write-off for
FY 2023-24, Uncollected Water Bills.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 30, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Consider Resolution No. 08-2024 to write off uncollectible bad debt on utility
REQUESTED billing (UB) accounts.
DOCUMENTS Exhibit A - Resolution No. 08-2024 with Bad Debt List Attachment
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW Board Policies - Section 3.9 Audit

At the end of each fiscal yeat, in preparation for the annual audit, staff
has the opportunity to recognize those receivables that are “doubtful”
and should be removed from the balance sheet.

The process for UB accounts with bad debts:

e Account is closed, final bill is sent.

e Based on the due date in the intent to collect letter, the account is
turned over to the collection company including all pertinent
information on the customer in the CRW files. If CRW receives
additional information, it is forwarded to the collection company.

e CRW has used Professional Credit Services for collections on bad
debt accounts since October 1, 2012.

e By law, CRW is not allowed to turn over or pursue bankruptcy

accounts outside of the formal bankruptcy process. There is one
(1) account in bankruptcy for bad debt write-off for FY 2023-24.

Bad debts are divided into three types or groups: bankrupt,
commetcial/industrial, and residential. Commercial accounts are business
accounts, while residential accounts are homeowner, tenter ot landlord
accounts. CRW does not pursue collection on an old bill from a new

June 13, 2024 Agenda Item 3 Page 1 of 2



June 13, 2024

~

ownet, landlotrd ot renter even if the water setvice was shut off for non-
payment. The water usage follows the former owner or tenant.

This year, staff is recommending $19,269.22 of write offs on 78 utility
billing accounts. CRW customer accounting staff works diligently to
pursue collection on outstanding utility accounts. All accounts greater
than $10 have been turned over to collections.

The petrcentage of bad debts for write off is just over 0.11% of total retail
water sales of nearly $17,000,000 for the FY24 period.

Accounts in the bad debt wiite off (accounts closed prior to ot on
06/30/2023) include:
e Bankruptcy — 3 accounts for $1,543.21.
e Commercial/Industrial — 2 accounts for $1,062.76.
e Residential — 73 accounts for $16,663.25

Although the number of accounts written off is higher than last year, the
total write off is less than the previous year. A primary factor for this is
that we returned to our normal collection processes which were in place
ptior to the pandemic. Prior to this year, the highest bad debt write-off
amount was $22,237.95.

Collection on CRW utility billing accounts remains high through repeated
notices requesting payment, direct phone calls, and tracking customers
within district boundaries. CRW will continue to putsue collections, and
work with a collection agency that works on behalf of CRW even though
accounts have been written off.

Agenda ltem 3 Page 2 of 2



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

RESOLUTION No. 08-2024

BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF FOR FY 2023-2024
UNCOLLECTABLE WATER BILLS

WHEREAS, each year those water customer final billings, for which collection
efforts have been unsuccessful, are identified and prepared for Board
consideration (see attached list); and,

WHEREAS, it is essential for audit purposes to clear old accounts;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Clackamas River Water Board of
Commissioners to write-off an amount not to exceed $19,269.22 for fiscal year
2023-24 as bad debts.

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners on this 13th
day of June 2024.

Sheryl French, Board President Tessah Danel, Board Secretary



€202/St/v  |96°986S JAV NY34 3S 650L VNIL ‘STNVT paso|d UHON [enuspIsay|  SO-¥ZZ0Z0
€207/TT/v  |0€°0LTS N1 N3QyVv9 3S 5188 J3ZNNAT8 900Vr “(D2) AINVH SU0I399]|0) YHON |enuapisay| €0-T9T8TO
€202/S7/T  |€6°9STS AAT9 %3340 NOSNHOT 3S 0€6L NIATN “YINIVY paso|d YHON [enuapisay| TT-08ESTO
7202/€/0T  |26°68TS 1S dOSLV1D 3S 0€T8 IND (22) 71 SU0I393]|0) YHON |enuapisay|  ZT-€06¥TO
€707/T/S  |TT'SOTS JAV H10Z 3S €€88 3SIN3QA ‘¥3ddNL paso[D UHON [enuSpIsaY|  90-E06ETO
€z0z/Tt/e  |LO°TTES 3IAV AOOMNIT 3S TT66 NILSNr ‘O¥3anos3 paso|d UHON [enuapisay| Z0-96TETO
€707/1€/€  |S6°LETS 1S vdNv13S 6059 ANV1L¥N0D ‘INTIN pasopD YHON |enuapisay| 90-¥862T0
7T0z/e/TT  |99°01ES 1S 31VH 3S £0L9 NINZZVT “(30) 8NV SU01399]|0D YHON |enuapisay| OT-6T6CT0
€20Z/91/¢  |6£7TSTS 1d HLZL 3ST8YIT 3NDVI ‘(22) NODVYANOW SU013939]|0) YHON [e13uspisay|  60-SOZTO
zeoe/ee/L |LLLYTS a4 ANOWYVH 3S TT9L 33THSY ‘(D2) ¥ANNNS SU01393]|0) YHON |enuapisay| €0-969TTO
€207/9T/€  |66°SLTS A VSSATY 35S TT60T V VINVL ‘(D) +%3N0D0Y SU0I323||0D UHON [enuapisay| 90-¥TETTO
TzoT/v/et |vESLTS ¥a ANTZ8 3S E€TTLT Adang ‘(22) ¥awvd Su0199]|0D YHON [enudpisay| 0T-88ZTEO
7202/T/TT  |69°8TTS 1D SAV( d 3S ¥STST 3A3LS “(DD) AINNDIDIN SU01193]|0D YHON [enuspisay| 00-196620
€20T/€T/T  |29°90TS JAV VAN3IYE 3S £209T AVHS ‘(22) ¥30N3dS SU0I193|0D YHON [enuapisay|  z0-920620
7707/S2/0T  [2v'TsTS 1D NNV NO13S 009ST 2143 “(22) IHLYY Su0I123||0D YHION |eljuaplisay|  ¥0-vZ¥920
eoz/e/et |99 TLTS T 1dV 3AV HLY6 3S ¥8TST IVHSNOV3IL ‘(DD) div4 SU01393||0) YHON |enuapisay| ZT-06L5C0
€zoT/v/Y  [T9°6YS a4 NOSNHOTr 3S ZESST d @1¥NOY ‘(D2) DNNOA SU0I399]|0) YHON [enuapisay| 80-808%20
€20Z/€T/v  |ST'TOES ¥a ANTZ8 3S LE9LT VHINVIAVYS ‘SYILTVM paso|d YHON |enuapisay| 80-ZESHZO
€z0z/eT/T  |YOVYTS 12 153¥243a1V 3S 0S¥9 1vOIgY ‘ANVINIA paso|) YHION [e13uapisay|  80-¥9LETO
7202/L/0T  |P9°TLS ¥d 1S340Y3IATV ¥3ddN 3S LOEYT YIHLST B MNVY4 (0D) YINLYYD SU01393]|0) YHION [e13USpIsay|  ZO-TTEETO
zeoz/te/TT  [85°S0TS 1D AYY3EdSVY 3S 0ETHT NVAY ‘(D2) ANVIHONVT SU0I1393]|0) YHON [enuapisay( 90-8€0€£20
7202/02/0T  |T8°€LS 1S 1SY3HIANV 35S 0¥00T INIYIHLYD B AYY3L “(0D) ¥3anH SU0I393]|0) YHON [el3uSpIsaY|  Z0-ZI¥TZ0
TT0T/T/TT  |8TYLIS 3NV SSFYUdAD IS S99~ 3NVI A ‘(D) ¥3T11N4 SU01393]|0D YHON |euapissy| 00-89TTCO
€20Z/2T/T  |90°60TS IAV HLSET 35927291 VYNILSIMHD ‘(22) Sa¥VHOIY SU0I399]|0) YHON |enuapisay| 60-6€66T0
ze0z/62/6  |89°18LS 1S 3YIHSTIM 3S 8569 VaN3¥g ‘(3D) HOTAVL SU01323]|0) YHON |enuapisad| TT-€¥SOTO
TT0z/Sz/oT  [ev'8TTS @y 1S3¥043a1v 35S 0€6S ANI13NVIVI 40 31V1S3 “(22) SSNV1D SU0I199]|0) YHON [enuapisay| €T-ZTZOTO
€e0z/eT/v  |E6'TTTS 12 990113 3S S0T9 LINNOWVLYD “(22) 2711 8T0T S31LY¥3d0¥d SU0I393]|0) YHON |enuapisad| 0-166600
€20z/eT/v  |80°0TTS A 3QISH3FYD 3S 09t¥T 37139vS! “(32) NITHONVYION SU0I393]|0) UHION [BRUSPISY|  ¥0-T96600
€z0¢/ve/s  |¥80TTS 1D NOLSNIA3gE 35 S9vPT YI4INNIM “YINLYIA pasopD YHON |enuapisad| 80-8T0600
€207/ST/v  |0L'89S @y NOSNHOTr 3S 0601T ALLVd ‘NOSYIN paso|d YHON |enuapisay| S0-0S£800
€207/8/9  [TE¥SS Q¥ SYINVYDVD 3S Tl VINVIA ‘YNVT13H0 paso|d YHON [e3uspisay|  ZT-L£9L00
TT0z/og/TT  [TL790TS 1S 1439701 35 0588 NOYVHS (D2) N3ISNVH Su01399]|0D YHON |enuspisay|  80-09£900
€z0z/Se/e  |LTYSS JAV HLSET 3S LOT9T 434INN3If ‘Z3N0ZVA paso|d ULION [eruapIsaYy|  60-Lt77900
€20¢/T/v  |pPTTTS 4a aNz8 3S 06€LT TYdY ‘NOSY3L3d paso|d YHON |enuapisay| TT-78Z900
7e0z/0g/6  |TETTISTS 1D ANV44IL 3S S¥88 NVOYOW ‘(22) ZONNIN SU01399||0) YHON |enuapisay| 0T-S£2900
9/°290'TS |B30] [BIDIBWWO)
TzoT/v/8  |L07968S 3AV HLY9 3S¥TT6 (02) AY ALID 3SOY SU01393]|0D |eJawwo)|  80-941820
zeoz/te/oT  [69°99TS JAV 139VIN 3S €289 22 S31LYId0Yd TVIDUININOD LSHIA SU0I1323]|0D Jded J3|iedL| 90-662TZ0
TTEVSTS (3dnnjueg) |ejo] jelawwWo)

TT0T/€/0T  |LE°L96S @y 3AISANNNS 3S 5806 LNVYNVLSIY ¥IdNNT NIVTD 1dnajueg |esawwo)|  TO-€LYTEO
TToz/e/oT  |¥1°S0TS QY 3AISANNNS 3S S806 ZYO# INVYNVY.LSIY YAdINNT INIVTD 1dnujueg alld|  TO-TLYTEO
€20T/Se/v  |0L°0LES 3AV ANZ8 3S SESTT ANOA3g ¥ H1vd a3d 1dnujueg alld|  €0-9LT9T0
a1e( paso|) |anp aduejeq JUNOIDY SSaJppy uoi1ed’07 awid awiepN 1snh) Alewilid| sniels Junoddy adA] 1uno2dy| # JUNOJJY




272°692°6TS |elol pueln

TE0S8°SS |e30L YInos |erjuapisay
T70T/S/0T  |¥6°09TS Q¥ A31Avyd SOVTLT AT43ENI “(DD) ¥3NTVd SU0I393]|0D yinos |enuapisad| TO-TELTEO
€202/LT/T  [€8'8¥TS QY ANV131S 0€6%7T ANVY8 VIYVIA 40 31V1S3 paso[D Yinos [enuapisay|  ¥0-¥9E0E0
770z7/92/6  |LO'8YS dID FHIHSTIM S LESST JINNV3( (22) MVVH $U0I323]|0D YInos [eiuapIsay|  90-0£6870
€z0z/1€/€  [86'9€T$ @y NVSI19 S 8008T N AIMLIAG ‘(D2) OXNFYNZYIN $u01393]|0) YInos [enuspisay|  80-v79L20
7707/0T/L  |L8°'€E8ES NTHILNVD S TL6LT V2ISS3r 8 MDIN “(22) ONINNVE $U0I303||0D 4Inos [enuapisay|  0T-658920
€202/1T/v [6T'6LTS Q¥ ANV1Q3Y S TIYST NVI¥g ‘(1/0) 3IONITH paso|d yInos |enuapisay|  ¥0-€£9920
7207/S7/8  |6t°08€S QY ANV1Q3Y S ¥TLYT 143904 ‘(D2) N3¥9401 SU01323||0D YInos |enuapisay|  60-206520
€207/L/T  |T0°90€S$ 10 ¥3NVILS S TTZI8T VNILSIYN “(0D) a33y SU01393]|0D 4Inos [enuapisay|  80-009TZ0
€702/S7/9  |#0'v0TS Q¥ INVT ITdVIN S OEPPT INAN ‘S31Y3443r paso|) 4inos |enuapisay|  0T-T90020
€202/TT/T  |evvTES Q¥ INVT ITdVIN S 0sPPT|  LNIWLSIANI MN “1/0 (22) 2711 SONIATOH paso) 4yInos [enuapisad|  60-T90020
7702/18/8  |vP 0TS @y INV1 I 1dVIN S 0EPHT V143904 ‘(DD) xxNI¥D407 SU0I303||0D 4Inos [enuapisay|  80-T90020
£70Z/¥/S  |9L'ESYS QY4 NOSNDYI4 S T8¥TT VNILSIYHD “T1IH paso|) 4Inos [elluapisay|  S0-82T900
7T0T/1€/0T  |¥8°0TLS 1D MIHLLVIA S 0LEST HDIZTAM “(DD) LSNOA SUOI393]|0D 4Inos [enuapisay|  60-T60S00
T20T/L/6  |ET'ESTS 1D VIS SSETLT 1AM '8 AINLYNOD “(22) ¥3LNVE-LHVH SU0I393]|0D 4Inos [enuapIsay|  ¥0-€805S00
€Z0Z/ST/T  |9L°TTTS @4 N3 HLNOS S 8986T VSSINVA ‘(22) va3aovs SU0I1393]|0) yinos |enuapisay|  TT-6£0S00
7z0T/S/0T  |pT'9TTS @y X33YDY3IAV3IL S T62TT NHOTr “(22) 13N SU0I303||0D yinos |enuapisay|  ¥0-886v00
€207/T/T  |vT'T6S 12 M3IAYYITD S 08+TC NIMYVYA “T13IMOd 2 UYInos |enuapisay|  60-TELY00
720T/ST/L  |8E°€ESTS a4y MOQTVM S 90T8T NONY3A ‘(22) ONIYYIH Su01323||0) UYInos [enuapisay|  ¥0-08L£00
TT0T/11/8  |6¥°0SES IAV SNATIYVIN S €€22T ANNVAO3D ‘(22) V¥QIAVYS SU01393||0D YInos [enuapisay|  ¥0-ESEE00
770T/9/TT  |V8'ETTS JAV SNATIYVIN S €E€2CT NMVYQ ‘(2D) sxHLINS Su013939]|0) 4Inos [eiuapIsay|  TO-ESEE00
€70Z/TT/¥  |TOTEYS @Y Y33YDYIAVIE S TSITT 11349 ‘(1/0) TvHLN3SOY paso|) 4anos [enuapisay|  ¥T1-6£9200
7702/ST/TT  |90°90SS Q¥ X33YDY3IAVIE S T6EE NHOT ‘(22) NIANNY SU01323]|0) Yanos |enuapisay|  S0-¥85200
7702/1/6  |8€°69S 4Q YIHOUY S TS99T HdTvY ‘(2D) SIYYON SU0133||0D 4yInos [enuapisay|  S0-Z6T000

¥6°218°0TS [e101 Y1ION |eljuspisay
€207/€T/T  |LT'TOSS JAV NY34 3S 29TL HYYVS ‘dINODTOH paso|) YHON [el3USPISRY|  TO-LLETED
€70Z/0T/€  |¥S'STIS 1S V14391V 35 1889 HLINNIN %8 FT0DIN “(22) ¥INdvd SU01393||0D ULON [elauapisay|  L0-06TTED
€207/8/9  |0S°8€9S 1S JOYNOW 3S 2TSL 19609 ‘SHD0 paso|d YHON |enuapisay| LO-6TTTEOD
7202/97/7T  |81°68TS 1S AVIN 35 0049 VANIT 8 X2NHD ‘(22) Q¥vNOTF1 SU01323||0D YLION |eRUSPIS3Y|  ¥0-68E€0€0
T702/T/TT |8T6LS 1S v4NV13S 0LE9 400V ‘(D2) N3gan SU0I393]|0D YHON [el3uspisay|  #0-T90.Z0
€zoz/ot/e  |0T'L8S 1S v¥NVv13S 0LES #7171 S31.43d0¥d 1SONYNOA paso|) YMON |eruapisay| TO-T90L20
€70Z/8T/¥  |0S°69TS JAY AOOMNIT 3S SE86 LIMVA ‘0SS3aom paso|) YMON |enuspisay| L0-8T6920
770T/ST/TT  |LY'LTTS JAY AOOMNIT 3S 6766 Y3HLV3H (22) aWOIM3N SU0I303||0D YHON [e3udpisay|  80-LELITO
€202/1/S  |STTES d4d NIMO 3S ¥£88 TIONY ‘VHOW paso|d YMON [el3USpIS?Y|  80-EEE9Z0
7T0T/€T/0T  [SP'TTTs 1S NVQa¥Or 35 06%9 NATOYVD 40 31V153 (32) ILIHM SU01393||0D UHON [enuapIsaYy| TO-€€TSCO
€202/8/T  |65°78ES JAV HI4 3S CTOL NOANVyg ‘(22) 3LIHM SU01393]|0D YMON |enuapisay| TT-ZSSECO
7T0T/T/8  [8TY9TS JAV H19Z 3S 2096 QyvHIIY “(22) S13INVa SUOID3||0D YHON [erauapisay|  60-06v7€20
€70Z/ve/y  |€T°T0TS 1S 31VOHLINOS 3S 60LL 3 NIUNVT ‘QYVTTIM pasopD YMON [enuapisay| 00-602€20
€202/LT/T  |TL'€8ES 1S ALLO 35S 008L AYYVT ‘(DD) SIAVYED SU01323]|0D YHON [e1luapisay|  60-ST8ZZ0
€Z07/TT/v  |€8°L8TS 1S ANVT1YIAO0 3S 0€6L INVS ‘VSHNLS pasopD ULION [enuapisay|  ¥0-€65020




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 4

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Consider Resolution No. 09-2024 Updating the Wholesale Water Rates
Chatged to North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)

DRAFT MOTION Move to approve Resolution No. 09-2024 updating the wholesale water
rates charged to Notth Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)
effective July 1, 2024.

EFFECTIVE DATE July 1, 2024

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager

PERSON

BOARD ACTION Considet adoption of Resolution No. 09-2024, updating wholesale water rates

REQUESTED charged to Notrth Clackamas County Water Commission

DOCUMENTS Resolution No. 09-2024

ATTACHED

Agenda Summary

BACKGROUND CRW’s wholesale watet supply agteement is with North Clackamas
County Water Commission (NCCWC). Section 4 of the agreement
ptovides for annual adjustments to wholesale rates based on either an
update to the wholesale rate model or by using the Consumer Price Index
(CPI-Ub/c).
CRW along with FCS Group developed a rate model for wholesale water
customers based on the M1 Manual of the American Water Wortks
Association (AWWA) to establish the initial rates. For this wholesale rate
update, the CPI-U b/c index for Annual 2023 is being used. That
petcentage change is 4.2%
July 1, 2024, the new wholesale water rates for NCCWC will be:

For water delivered at Mather Road/152™ Interties $1.1186/CCF
For water delivered at Otty Road Intertie $1.4138/CCF

Annual rate increases are calculated and take effect at the beginning of
each fiscal year, July 1, for water purchases on or after that date.

STAFF Adopt Resolution 09-2024 updating wholesale water rates chatged to

RECOMMENDATION Notth Clackamas County Water Commission

June 13, 2024

Agenda Item 4 Page 1 of 1



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
RESOLUTION No. 09-2024

Establishing Wholesale Water Rates Charged to
North Clackamas County Water Commission

WHEREAS, Clackamas River Water (CRW) has entered into a water supply

agreement with the North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC) effective July
1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the agreement provides that CRW is to adopt rates each year; and

WHEREAS, CRW conducted a rate study to evaluate wholesale water rates during
fiscal year 2021-22; and

WHEREAS, CRW has updated the cost-of-service model as prescribed in Section
4 of the water supply agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER THAT:

Section 1:  The following rates are per CCF and shall apply for water
purchased.

Section 2:  Beginning July 1, 2024, the North Clackamas County Water
Commission rates shall be:

For water delivered at Mather Road/152M Interties $1.1186
For water delivered at Otty Road Intertie $1.4138

ADOPTED by the Clackamas River Water Board of Commissioners this 13th day of
June 2024.

Sheryl French, Board President

Tessah Danel, Board Secretary



Agenda Item - 5

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Contract Extension with Madrone Technology for I'T
Suppott, Equipment and Subsctiptions Exceeding the General Managers
Signature Authority
DRAFT MOTION I move the Boatd authotize the contract extension with Madrone Technology
for Information Technology Equipment, Licenses and Support for a not-to-
exceed amount of $219,000 and authotize the General manager to sign the
extension.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Board is being asked to authorize the General Manager execute a contract
REQUESTED extension with Madrone Technology fot a not-to-exceed amount of $219,000.
DOCUMENTS Scope of Services
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW has engaged the setvices of Madrone Technology for information

June 13, 2024

technology (IT) equipment and consulting work. The District is allowed to
contract ditectly with a specific vendor for Communication and Information
Systems setvices and equipment under the Local Contract Review Board Rules

(LCRB 110-12 ((9)).

Madrone Technology is able to provide CRW with additional services allowing
the District to realize cost savings, improve coordination and consolidate
vendors. To accomplish this, the District would like to enter into a contract
with Madrone Technology to provide IT support, equipment, and software
licenses to CRW.

The District has budgeted for several IT related capital outlay project over the
next biennium. These projects will requite consulting/support services that can
be provided by Madrone Technology. In addition, Madrone Technology has the
ability to purchase equipment at competitive prices that will be necessary to
complete those projects. Besides equipment and IT consulting services, the
Disttict curtently has several IT licenses and subscriptions that we are required
to have and are purchased and managed through various separate vendors.
Under this contracting approach, the District can purchase those licenses and
subsctiptions through Madrone Technology at a cost savings and realize time
efficiencies by managing one vendor rather than multiple vendors.

Agenda Item 5 Page 1 of 2



STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

June 13, 2024

Madrone Technology is based in Clackamas County. Having a local IT support
provides timely response and limiting interruptions. Madrone Technology is very
familiar with CRW’s IT system and secutity issues and thereby limiting I'T
suppott to this one vendor, allows for the security of the system to be increased.

The cutrent contract with Madrone Technology allows CRW to extend the
contract period for an additional year. Staff desire to exercise this extension.

Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract extension with Madrone
Technology for a not-to-exceed amount of $219,000.

Agenda Item 5 Page 2 of 2



Madrone Technology Group - Scope of Services

Service Name

Service Description

Information Technology
Consulting

Assist IT Manager with Information Technology Services on a
regular basis, including:

Server monthly patch

Data backup management

Antivirus management

Device management

Firewall management

Operating Systems Management (Server & Client)
Assist in systems alert

SCADA Windows OS Management (Server & Client)
Assist with disaster recovery

Assist with security systems

Capital project

Computer, Peripherals & Software

As needed

Maintenance Subscription

Antivirus software

Data backup

Equipment maintenance subscriptions

Google email subscriptions

Microsoft Office365 subscriptions

Remote connection software subscriptions

Mobile device management subscriptions

Proxmox License subscription (for virtual environment)
Phone service (VolP-Systems)




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Agenda Item — 6

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Consider Approval of Intetgovernmental Agreement (IGA) Extension
Between CRW and Clackamas River Water Providets (CRWP) for
Emergency Management Coordination Services

DRAFT MOTION Move to approve the CRW /Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP)
Intergovernmental Agreement Extension for Emergency Management
Coordination Services

EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024

PRINCIPAL STAFF
PERSON

BOARD ACTION

REQUESTED

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED

BACKGROUND

STAFF
RECOMMENDATION

June 13, 2024

Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
Beth McGinnis, Emergency Manager

The Board is requested to approve the extension of the IGA for Services
provided to the CRWP.

Letter from the CRWP requesting an extension of the agreement.
IGA extension between CRW and CRWP

Agenda Summary

The Board is being asked to extend the current agreement with the CRWP
wheteby CRW would continue to provide assistance to improve coordination
among the CRWP members and Clackamas County in emergency planning. The
type of services to be provide with be outlined in a future scope of work that will
be developed by the CRWP members after their July meeting. As part of the
agreement, CRW will provide up to 0.2 FTE of assistance from CRW’s
Emergency Manager, Beth McGinnis.

Staff recommends approval of the IGA Extension for CRW providing emergency
management coordination services to CRWP

Agenda Item 6 Page 1 of 1



. Clackamas River
2o Water Providers

14275 5, Clackamas River Drive * Oregon City, OR 97045

May 15, 2024

Todd Heidgerken

General Manager

16770 SE 82™ Drive
Clackamas, QR 97015-2439

Dear Todd,

The Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) currently has an Intergovernmental Agreement
with Clackamas River Water (CRW) which provides the CRWP assistance on the coordination of
certain emergency management actives. The current agreement allows for the IGA to be extended
ance for an additional one-year period upon mutual agreement of the parties.

The CRWP would like to extend the current agreement for through June 30, 2025 to have access to
0.2 TTE of CRW staff time lo continue to work on coardination of emergency management
activities. Altachment A will be updated for the work 1o be completed during the FY 2024-25 fiscal
year.

Sincerely,

[l Sty
Kim Swan

Water Resource Manager
Clackamas River Water Providers

City of Estocada * City of Gladstare * City of Lake Oswega ™ City of Tigard * Clackarius River Water *
Ock Lodge Water Services * South Fark Water Board (Oreyon City and West Linn)
Sunrise Water Autherity (Happy Valley and Damascus)



CONTRACT EXTENSION AGREEMENT
between
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER and CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER PROVIDERS

This Contract Extension Agreement (“Agreement”), subject to the conditions stated herein, is
entered into by and between Clackamas River Water, a domestic water supply district organized
under ORS Chapter 264 and special district subject to ORS Chapter 198 (“CRW?”), and Clackamas
River Water Providers, an intergovernmental entity formed under ORS Chapter 190 (“CRWP?”),
and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”

The Parties have agreed to extend for one year the current Intergovernmental Agreement for
Services between CRW and CRWP. With this Agreement, the Intergovernmental Agreement for
Services will remain in full force and effect through June 30, 2025, as the current contract, with
the exception of the following changes:

Article I. CRW Services to CRWP. The current Article I will be replaced with the
following language:

CRW through its agents and employees, will provide CRWP with assistance on the
coordination of certain emergency management activities as provided in this
Agreement. The scope and schedule of services is set out in Amended Attachment
A (the “Services”). CRW will assign its Emergency Manager to perform the
Services for an average of 0.2 FTE (8 hours) per week. Attachment A may be
amended from time to time upon the written agreement of the CRWP Board and

the CRW General Manager.
Agreed to this day of , 2024.
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
PROVIDERS
By By
WYATT PARNO, SHERRY FRENCH,
CRWP Board Chair CRW Board President

Date Date

{04271746-1 }



DELETED

Agenda Item - 7
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Consider Approval of Contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Services
Exceeding the General Managers Signature Authority
DRAFT MOTION I move the Board to authorize the contract extension with S 2 Contractors
for Paving Services for a not-to-exceed amount of $90,000 and authorize the
General manager to sign the contract.
EFFECTIVE DATE June 13, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken, General Manager
PERSON
BOARD ACTION The Board 1s being asked to authorize the General Manager execute a contract
REQUESTED with S 2 Contractors for a not-to-exceed amount of $90,000.
DOCUMENTS none
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND CRW has contracted with S 2 Contractors for paving services since 2020 by
participating in established contracts through the City of Lake Oswego. CRW
has been happy with the quality of work provided by S 2 Contractors. The
contract provides Paving Services that are used for pavement repairs in concert
with scheduled and emergency system maintenance of the CRW water
distribution system. Staff is requesting that the General Manger be authorized to
sign a contract that allows continued participation in the cooperative purchasing
agreement established by the City of Lake Oswego.
STAFF Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract with S 2 Contractors for a
RECOMMENDATION not-to-exceed amount of $90,000.

June 13, 2024

Agenda Item 7 Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item — 8
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Management Repott

PRINCIPAL STAFF Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED
Table of Contents
The Management Report will have two sections: (A) an overview of GM

and Staff activity during the month; (B) informational articles (when
available)

A. Management Report

B. Informational articles or Materials- None at this time

June 13, 2024 Agenda Item 8 Page 1 of 4




Agenda Item — 8
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Management Report

PRINCIPAL STAFF  Todd Heidgerken
PERSON

BOARD ACTION None
REQUESTED

A. Management Report
1. Communications:
Monthly Report — The monthly report will be provided to the Board separately and
posted on the CRW Website.

2. Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) — Annually, CRW and other water providers
provide customers and the public with information and water quality results for the
ptevious year. CRW’s CCR (also referred to as a “Drinking Water Quality Report”) is
currently posted on the CRW website. Information regarding the report and how to
download it will also be included in the billing insert in addition to postcards being
provided. Many thanks go to Tracy Triplett, CRW Water Quality and Lab Administrator,
for compiling the information and putting it in a very readable and educational format. A
nice featute this year was the inclusion of photos of various staff who contribute to
providing our community with high quality, safe drinking water.

3. Regional Water Providers Consortium (RWPC) Board Meeting — The RWPC Board
met on June 5 to receive updates, elect officers, and review program reports. Steve Via,
Ditectot of Federal Relations for the American Water Works Association (AWWA)
provide the Board with an overview of Federal water issues, specifically updates on
regulatory activities associated with cybersecurity and PFAS.

The RWPC elected Renee Brouse of the City of Sherwood to serve as the Board Chair
and elected Gary Batth of Sunrise Water Authority to be the Vice Chair for the coming
year. Executive Committee members representing each County were also selected during
the meeting. CRW Commissionet, Naomi Angier will continue to represent water
providers in Clackamas County. Jim Duggan of Tualatin Valley Water District and Tom
Lewis of Rockwood Water PUD were reappointed as representatives for Washington and
Multnomah Counties respectively.

The Boatd also approved a resolution to carry over $41,000 of unspent funds from this
fiscal year to the next to be used to implement recommendations from the “Provision of
Emergency Drinking Water Supply Framework” and complete an educator focus group to
look at the RWPC youth education programming.

June 13, 2024 Agenda Item 8 Page 2 of 4



4. Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) — The June 5 meeting of the CRWP Board
focused on PGE water supply and operations outlook and updates on studies involving
cyanotoxins, earthquake risks, and cybersecurity (separate presenters).

The CRWP has an agreement with PGE to request the release of water stored in Timothy
Lake. Annually the CRWP meets with PGE to check in on the status of the stored water
and any operational changes. PGE has continued to be a valuable partner is sharing
information about algal blooms and monitoring information that they have contracted
with CRW to analyze.

The USGS’s, Kurt Catpentet, shared information about their cyanotoxin study progtess.
The earthquake risk discussion was focused on the impacts an earthquake would have on
the release of hazardous materials in the watershed. The cybersecutity item was led by
Wade Hathhorn of Sunrise Water Authority, providing an overview of their “unplugged”
exercise. The CRWP Board also received reports from staff regarding CRWP activities
and implementation of programs.

5. Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) Metro Breakfast — Various types of
special districts in the tri-county area met to receive an overview of the results from the
Oregon Legislatures most recent “short session” and identified items that will likely be
addressed duting the next legislative session. The overview was provided by the SDAO
Governmental Affairs team. In addition, SDAQO Executive Director, Frank Stratton,
shared recent progress on the federal level to gain recognition of special districts at the
federal level. There are 38,000 special districts in the US however thete is no definition in
federal law. This has been a barrier to special districts receiving federal funding that has
been distributed to other local governments. Given the success in the House, the focus is
now on the Senate.

6. Emergency Management Update - CRW participated in the CRWP Emergency
Drinking Water wotkshop #3. The focus was on developing reporting tools that all
members of the CRWP can use to report on the utilities ability to provide emergency
potable drinking water to a broader county effort for distribution post 9.0 magnitude
earthquake (Cascadia Subduction Zone).

7. Safety Update — As we approach a midpoint to the year, CRW has had no teportable
injuties so far in 20241 We are working on building upon our safety successes during the
previous two years. At all staff on May 22", the safety training focus was on active
shootet hazards. The June all staff meeting will include an overview of changes to the
CRW security policy. This is important given all of the security improvements that have
been made at the district.

8. Security Update-

e Alarm panels are the last item for the security upgrade project. We will be
replacing obsolete panels so our contractor can better monitor CRW facilities
for intrusion.

e We increased security patrols at Riverside Park to address some dumping and
fire risks that occurred in May. A daily Resource Officer presence for the park
began on Memorial Day weekend and will continue through at least Labor Day
with the possibility of longer if the park continues to experience heavy use.

June 13, 2024 Agenda Item 8 Page 3 of 4



e Recent work with armed security was a success in supporting employees
having to approach a customer residence regarding unpaid bills and blocked
access to the meter.

9. 2024 Children’s Clean Watet Festival

On Aptil 30" CRW Staff Jana, Alan, and Tracy spent the day with local school children
putting on The Great Plankton Race! It has been a festival favorite since 2013, teaching
kids about plankton and challenging them to build their own. They then race to see who
can sink the slowest. Thanks to the hard work and experience of the team, the day was a
raging success. The kids had a lot of fun — and learned a little in the process! Gratitude
for the team that made it happen, and CRW for supporting this outreach. Teaching our
youth to think about stewatrdship, ecosystems, and clean drinking water is a good

investment in the future. Thank you, Tracy, Jana and Alan, for helping to make learning
fun!!

10. Looking Ahead:
e CRW offices will be closed on Wednesday June 19 to observe the Juneteenth Holiday
e The agenda setting meeting for the July Board meeting will be held on June 27 at

9:00am

e CRW offices will be closed on Thursday July 4 to observe the Independence Day

Holiday

e The CRW Regular July Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 18 at 6pm

June 13, 2024

Agenda Item 8 Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item — 10
CILACKAMAS RIVER WATER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

June 13, 2024

SUBJECT Commissioner Reports and Reimbursement Requests
DRAFT MOTION NO MOTION REQUIRED
EFFECTIVE DATE
PRINCIPAL STAFF Board of Commissioners
PERSON
BOARD ACTION Commissioner Communications
REQUESTED
DOCUMENTS o Commissioner Reimbursement Requests
ATTACHED
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND

June 13, 2024 Agenda Item 10 Page 1 of 1



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissloner Request for Reimbursement

Month ( ,éI’Ju;L (30 &Q L/ Commissioner's Name S j’)@ I/Y‘/l{ ///lf 2N &A\J

: Please Print
Amount

Date ) Meetings /
CRW Reaular Board Meeting - _¥//( $_ o
CRW Work Sesslon _ <//z2 7 R . $__ 50
M!sgfﬂageo%s Meeting 7 2/ /)« dasthess ot Coun vy $§_5°C
A 4 . ’ i $ SO -
1716 —Falklodel. . $_a0)
!/// 24 YN OPAL — St (158 S0
Total $ _ 30
Date Meals
$
$
" §
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Motel/Hote! Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Miscellaneous ***
$
$
$
Total §
* Mileage $. per mile
* Lodging bills must be altached ih support of relmbursament request Total Expenses $
“s  Miscellansous expenses 10 be supported with bilts where possible Adjustments $

—

Amount Due Commissioners §

| hereby certify under penaitles of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records ?\ for officlal misconduct, the abova
request for relmbursement to be accurate and complete and further cerllfy that | a .aguttye’d to recsive reimbursement as part of
my authorized dutles as a CRW commissioner. ‘ % /

Respectfully submitted _¢— e

/ Commissloner's Signafure
For Accounting: .
Payroll: Taxable $_300 Non-Taxable $_ entered P/R_H. Quiogue
Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT# ()i .601.4108 AMOUNT § Entered A/P

Board: Relmbursement as of

FO Date

¥AAD-AdministiratiomAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Tnformation-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commigsian Relmbursement form-single
paee.doc

m\&&& 13709
ﬂ G




CLAC

montn Y\ (2.0 ACAY

'AMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Relmbursement

Commissioner's Name S hﬁ 124 QL{ ‘ Ffe o.n

ch

I hereby certify under penalties of parjury and other laws regarding falslfication of recordsnd
request for relmbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that |

my authorized duties as a CRW commlssloner,

Respectfully submitted

aufHorl

Please Print

Date Meetings Armount
CRW Regular Board Meeling 5//5/ $_59
CRW Work Sesslon =5/1¢" ' $_rO
Miscellaneous Meeting” =/~» C. ¢ $_s0d
Sle_stokeo b Courday $_ 50O
ST b ASdae. ! $ 5/
é/ 32 miﬁf = St tlon $ 50
- Total § 'Z
Dasega CL? %als S0
$
$
]
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date - Miscellaneous ***
W $
I $
$
< Total $
* Mileage $. per mile
w Lodging bills must be attached in suppont of relmbursement request Total Expenses
ah o Migcellaneous expenses 1o be supported with blils where possible Adjustments
Amount Due Co

$____
$
n)ssloners $Zi@a:/

offlclal misconduct, the above
d to recelve relmbursement as part of

“ ﬂMr/

Commissioner’s Signalure

For Accounting:
Payroll: Taxable $400

Accounts Payable: VENDOR #
Board: Relmbursemsnt as of

Non-Taxable $_
ACCT# 01.601.4105

/ entered P/R H. Quiogue
AMOUNT § Entered A/P

CFO

S .-30~ 'Z«O?f&
Date

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of Commisgloners\AD-03-08 General Information-BOARD\WReimbursements\Commission Reimburseinent farm-single v

haeadoe



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

Ao /) 7D iy ; 2 7 A /7 EAU »
Month '/(;/)%j/ } L/Q /(/}Ci?% Comnissioner's Name /C/«‘:S(;éff (// ‘V)?j!g()l{i‘(ﬂﬁ‘/

Please Print

Date Meetings ﬂ/’\[/no_pnt
CRW Regular Board Mealing — $ e
CRW Work Session. Sl
Miscellaneous Meeting $__
$
$
$
Date Meals
3
$
$
$
Total §
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Miscellaneous ***
$
$
$
Total $
* Mileage $.______ per mile by e e
i Lodging bills must be altached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses 3 /_”( ﬁ )»
“ Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments $

Amount Due Commissioners $

I hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records and/@‘/ffl’éial misconduct, the above
request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify 1ha&am‘“ uthorized /1‘ ‘recelve reimburagrp{nt as par?

my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner. . S

g

Respectfully submitted__£

R Commissioner's Signature
For Accounting; .
payroll: Taxable $_$100 Non-Taxable $_ entered P/R _H. Quiogue
Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT#.01.601.4105 AMOUNT § Entered AP
Board: Reimbursement as of

YAAD-AdministratiodAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General Information;BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.dac .

— \ =- \S»},oj)}{:

P A WA e P A e M S

s e e w

R R N O L

P Y Y

B N o T P AP A e




CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

Month Commissioner's Name

Please Print

MeeYings "

Date Amount
CRW Regular Board Meeting — , $ : N
CRW Work Session S/ 28/ 25F ‘g $ —_
Miscellaneous Mestin Al $ —
Ay a2 ‘ $
e Y < - NI A Y\ ey | $
<) N $
Total $
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Miscellaneous ***
$ .
 E— .
Total $ 66, %
* Mileage $. per mile ) —
w Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses M
¢ Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments $

Amount Due Commissioners §

and/or official misconduct, the above -~
4 o recejve relmbursement as part of

| hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of record 152
request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify thatf am a )r Orizg
my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner.

Respectfully submitted_

For Accounting: ;
Payroll: Taxabie $100 Non-Taxable $_ entered P/R H. Quiogue
Accounts Payable: VENDOR # ACCT#01.601.4105 AMOUNTS$_______ Entered A/IP
Board: Reimbursement as of ‘
m&m -3 200
CFO Date h

YAAD-Administration\AD-03 Board of CommissionerstAD-03-08 General [nformation-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER

Commissioner Request for Reimbursement

/| .- - S j . C“WD %- »
Month ‘/‘ 7/(',/5/,, o?ﬂw:zoé/ Commissioner's Name /{’.}?/')L/’V// 7\////4/‘ '~S(/2<'//A/

Please Print
Date Meetings . Amount
CRW Regqular Board Meeting — ') //Q/))"’s/ &, L0 (2797 $ A0 00
CRW Work Session S / 28,0 A=Y, $ S L0
Miscellaneous Meeting 4 $$
$
$
&)
Total $ _/ 2, ‘. 7 ¢
Date Meals
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Mileage *
$
$
$
$
$
$
Total $
Date Motel/Hotel Lodging **
$
$
$
$
Total §
Date Miscellaneous ***
$
$
$ 4
Total $
* Mileage $. per mile
- Lodging bills must be attached in support of reimbursement request Total Expenses $
=+ Miscellaneous expenses to be supported with bills where possible Adjustments S

Amount Due Commissioners $__//7,7.¢¢

| hereby certify under penalties of perjury and other laws regarding falsification of records and/or official misconduct, the above
request for reimbursement to be accurate and complete and further certify that I am aythorged to receﬁvzmb‘u sement as part of

my authorized duties as a CRW commissioner. B

Respectfully submltted g »1( Lt

l C()nﬁtssxoner s Signature
For Accounting: 100 T )
Payroll: Taxable $ Non-Taxable $ entered P/R _H Quiogue
Accounts Payable; VENDOR # ACCT#.01.601.5730 AMOUNT $ Entered A/P
Board: Reimbursement as of

FIANALL sz
“\  cFo Date

Y \AD-AdministratioNAD-03 Board of Commissioners\AD-03-08 General information-BOARD\Reimbursements\Commission Reimbursement form-single
page.doc



Agenda Item — 11

CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
June 13, 2024
SUBJECT Election of Board Officers
DRAFT MOTION Move to nominate for Board President
Move to nominate for Board Secretary
Move to nominate for Board Treasurer
EFFECTIVE DATE July 1, 2024
PRINCIPAL STAFE CRW Board
PERSON
Agenda Summary
BACKGROUND Section 2.2 of the CRW Board policies provides that in the event that there will

June 13, 2024

be no change in the Board’s membership on July 1 of a given yeat, the Board
may, at its discretion, elect officers during a regular meeting in June of that year.
The terms would be effective at the beginning of the first meeting in July. The
officers of the Board are President, Secretary and Treasurer. Duties for each of
these positions are described in Sections 2.3, 2.4, and 2.5 of the boatd policies.

Commissioners are nominated and elected to these positions by motion.
Currently, for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, the officets are:

Shetry French, President
Tessah Danel, Secretary

Bob Rubitschun, Treasurer

The board will elect officers for each position

Agenda Item 11 Page 1 of 1




e

Clackamas River Water

Clackamas River Water

Monthly Update

June 2024




Table of Contents

1Y ToT a1 o LYoo F=1 o PSP 3
Purchase Order
[0=T 00 ] o TSSOSO PP SRUPTPRTUPPTPN 3
(0] a1 - Tot 31 o T - PPNt 4
Y0 aLaa b= T A o] =Y | P 4
0] o] [ ol 2{=Tolo] e N 2= To [N K] Y=Y ol T V7Y o EO USRIt 4
oY ol = I 2(=T o Lo o £ PSPPI 5
] =1 1 1 oS PPSPPTSTOP 6
XL AV Y 2= o T o N 7
YV (=] O] o T=T = A Lo o [N 8
(0] 1] = 1 o] g I = L A1) [ oX- OO PPTUPPPPPN 8
oY [=Totf U oo - =T TP SPR 9-10
Water Resources & Water QUAlILY . .....c.uuii ittt e e e e et e e e ettt e e e sataeeesnsaeeeenasseeesnasseeeesnsreeeenn 11
Water DiStriDULION CRArtS ........oiiiiiieiieiie ettt ettt s bt e st st st et e e b e e beesbeesbeesaee et e enbeenbeenbeesanenas 11
FTa] o] =3 20T oo o 3PS 12
2O U1 ) o] Y PSRRI 12
NON-REGUIAEOIY ettt et e e et e e e s et e e e e st e e e e e abeeesesbeeeeeanbeeeeesseeeeessseeesesnseeeeasnseeeesnnsens 12
Y AZ<T o S (oY VYA @eT Vo [ uToT o T 1=T Lo o AU 13
Monthly Update June 2024 2|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Purchase Order Report- May 2024

Monthly Update

Purchase Order Report May 2024

Vendor: 00165 - UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC
PO # Description Total Amount
24-0151 55 Gallon drum of Drakeol #10 Mineral 1,773.10
Vendor: 00545 - UNIT PROCESS CO., BRAY SALES INC
PO # Description Total Amount
24-0152 BADGER METER FLOWMETER FOR GLEN OAK PS5 1,955.66
Vendor: 04320 - CHOWRN INC
PO & Description Total Amount
24-0150 PARK RESTROOM DOORS SECURITY ENHAMNCEMENTS 1,452.49
Vendor: 04602 - HOTROD DREAMWORKS
PO # Description Total Amount
240145 REFPAIR TO 23-100 3324 BT
Vendor: 04604 - KRUSE PLUMBING
PO # Description Total Amount
240147 FyY-24 BLANKET PO FOR PLUMBIMG SERVICES 10,000.00
Vendor: 04805 - ULTRABLOCK INC
PO # Description Total Amount
24-0148 ULTRABLOCK MODULAR BLOCKS 7.470.00
Monthly Update June 2024 3|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Contract Log

(Executed since last board meeting May 15, 2024)

Company Product / Service Rates Eff. Date Exp. Date | New/Amended/ Extended
Alexin Laboratories General Lab Services | NTE $50,000 5/1/24 4/30/25 Extended
On-call for Water
Carollo Engineers Treatment Plant
Projects NTE $40,000 5/6/24 10/31/24 | New
Right of way
Clark Land Resources | acquisition-Bradley
Pump Station NTE $15,000 5/14/24 4/30/25 New
Ecamsecure Security System Extended. Approved by the
equipment & labor NTE $215,381 9/14/24 6/30/24 Board Sept 2023
Executive Security Patrol Services Approved by the Board May 15,
Services (routine & Park) NTE $85,000 5/1/23 4/30/25 2024
Maintenance Extended-Cooperative contract
Grainger, Inc. Supplies 7/1/18 12/31/24 | participation
WTP Concrete repair NTE increase, approved by the
RH2 Engineering, Inc. | & seismic Imp. NTE 143, 329 11/9/23 3/31/25 Board Nov. 2023
Summary of Legal
May 2024
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick monthly retainer S 4,600.00
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick work outside of retainer/Client Cost $
Sub-contracted legal services S
Total Legal S 4,600.00
Public Records Request Received
Number of Records Requests Received in May 2024 1

Monthly Update

June 2024
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx

4|Page



Financial Activity

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

InS

$5,000,000

S0

B Debt Services

B CRWSC Activity

H CIP Bond Construction
CIP Expenditures

B GF-Capital Outlay

m GF-Materials & Services

B GF-Personnel Services

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

S0

B Other General Fund
CRWSC Revenue

mSDC

% Interest Other Funds

B Water Revenue

Expenditures through May

FY 2020
$1,251,025
$851,180
$4,141,907
$97,790
$317,482
$3,327,009
$4,882,347

FY 2020
$351,674
$181,134
$505,174
$99,930

$11,847,344

FY 2021
$1,258,250
$900,875
$79,025
$68,263
$693,064
$3,422,932
$4,508,949

FY 2022
$1,238,000
$859,974
S0
$59,640
$384,800
$3,693,751
$4,374,349

Revenue through May

FY 2023
$1,239,000
S0
S0
$375,262
$754,246
$3,954,428
$4,877,299

FY 2024
$1,238,300
S0
S0
$3,211,086
$960,846
$4,499,210
$4,994,212

FY 2021
$356,178
$59,826
$990,677
$86,479
$12,490,945

FY 2022
$552,342
$41,866
$613,729
$69,950
$13,797,695

FY 2023
$707,780
S0
$193,141
$235,506
$14,301,601

FY 2024
$595,055
S0
$250,841
$1,097,501
$14,616,285

1) SDC revenue picked up a few more applications in May. 2) Interest Other Fund revenue is higher primarily due to
increasing interest rates and a higher account balance. 3) CIP expenditure is high due to the completion of the Valve
Replacement project and increased activity on the Redland Rd project. 4) Unanticipated expenses in Contract Work in
Materials and Services are the main drivers for the higher-than-normal total. 5) There are no costs for CIP Bond or
CRWSC as those funds have been closed out but will be reported in the 5-year graph. 6) GF-Capital Outlay is higher than
prior years due to purchased equipment related WTP project.

Monthly Update

June 2024

5|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Statistics

(as of the end of May 2024)
Residential Customers are billed on even months, Commercial Customers are billed on odd months.
Bill Payment Methods (Quantity)
12,000
10,000
8,000

6,000

In #s

4,000

2,000

May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24

B Cash/Check  ® Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer

Bill Payment Methods (Amounts)

$2,400,000
$2,100,000
$1,800,000
$1,500,000

‘? $1,200,000
$900,000
$600,000
$300,000

$0

May-23 Jun-23  Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24
B Cash/Check © Credit Card Electronic Funds Transfer
Cash/Check — Received via Lockbox, Counter

Credit Card — Received via CRW Initiated Automatic Payment, Walk-ins/Phone Calls, and Website
Electronic Funds Transfer — Received via Bank-to-Bank Transfer, Automatic Checking Withdrawal (RapidPay)

3000 Shut-off Stats Customer Consumption (based on billing)
2500 800,000
2000 A 700,000
., B : * P e . ., 600,000
£ . ] : i 83! - [
7 23 S 500,000 /\
1000 3 t
AEERREREAR < aoo0
s iEERERNEND X
300,000 A\
0 e A
200,000
oY ot o o o ok !
7 W W? s R L X W et o W e e
B Late Notice Letter 2 Reminder Phone Calls B Total Shut-offs EY 2021 EY 2022 EY 2023 £Y2024

*Reminder Phone Calls are made during the even months. Shut offs occur the following month. **Jan/Feb late notice
number is an estimate *No late notices Sept-Dec. '20; reinstated February and sent in May 2021

Monthly Update June 2024 6|Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Activity Reports

New Meters Installed (in #s)

New Meters Installed (in #s)

(as of the end of May 2024)

New Services Meter Installations

35

30

N
(6]

N
o

=
(]

=
o

JUL  AUG  SEP OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN FEB.  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN
mFY 2022 mFY2023 mFY2024

No new services for Sept. FY21, April F22, Sept. FY 22, Sept. FY 23, Jan FY23, Oct. FY24, Jan FY24, Feb FY24

Replacement Meter Installations

120
110
100
90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20
10

JUL AUG SEP oCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

m FY 2022 HFY 2023 mn FY 2024

Annual 2024 Goal for Meter Replacement is 350- Year to date is 208.

Monthly Update June 2024 7|Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Operation Statistics

System Operations & Engineering

Leak Leak Meter Cross
Repairs X Valve After- Maintenance | Connection
Detection Hydrant Locate . .
Made . Maintenance hours Tasks Inspections
. Completed | Maintenance | Requests .
(all pipe . & Mapping Callouts
. (miles)

sizes)
Jan. 2024 3 0 38 311 4 28 60 5
Feb. 2024 0 0 109 340 116 3 0 13
Mar. 2024 1 0 4 397 7 3 86 16
April 2024 0 0 91 483 18 3 0 0
May 2024 1 0 21 469 35 4 44 15
June 2024
July 2024
Aug. 2024
Sep. 2024
Oct. 2024
Nov. 2024
Dec. 2024
Total to 5 0 263 2000 180 a1 190 49
Date
2024
Annual N/A N/A 905 N/A 600 N/A N/A 96
Goal

Note - Annual maintenance goals are established based on several criteria including; AWWA Best Management
Practices, identified system priority maintenance and repair focus needs, and internal/external project forecasts.

Monthly Update
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx

June 2024

8|Page




Project Updates

Private Development Projects

Capital Project Status Report — May 2024

5301 Trans/CRW Impact Projects $250,000 $7,774 $242,226
Utility coordination and adjustments at: Johnson Cr. Blvd at 79th Place Signals; ODOT 82nd Ave., Webster Rd.

5303 82"¢ Dr. Waterline Phase 2 $1,041,000 $73,070 $967,930 | In Design
Design consultant progressing. Evaluating alternative routes.

5291 [-205 Crossings: $1,119,000 $116.748 $1,002.252 In Design
Design consultant progressing. Evaluating alternative routes.

5306 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 2 $1,355,000 $697,048 $657,952  Construction
Contractor is demobilizing. Punch list items are ongoing.

5307 Redland Rd. PRV $1,003,000 $18,408 $984,592 In Design
Design underway. Survey in progress.

5308 Low Lift PS Improvements $749,000 S0 $749,000 = No Activity
No Activity.

5309 WTP Structural Improvements $1,000,000 $133,827 $866,173 Construction

Construction during valve replacement complete. Evaluating next steps.

5273 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 1 $666,000 $357,247 $308,753 = Construction
Waterline in service Construction punch list underway.

5270 Linwood Road Improvements $210,000 $99,384 $110,617 Construction
Punch list items are ongoing.

5278 Monroe Street Improvements $850,000 $50,103 $799,897  In Design
Design at 90% complete. Executed IGA with Clackamas Co. for construction tentative start summer of 2024.

5280 Pump Station Chlorine $142,000 $3,603 $138,397 In Design
Design at 30% complete. Construction tentative during summer of 2024.

5281 WTP Polymer Feed System $252,000 $938 $251,062  In Design
Designing space and layout of proposed feed system on first floor of WTP. Construction tentative beginning of 2025.

5282 WTP Filter Valve Replacement $1,302,000 $861,355 $440,645 Construction

Valve installation complete. Plant is functioning normal.

Webster Improvement at

2305 Bilquist School

SO $21,767 (521,767) In Design

Finalizing plan for service adjustments prior to Clackamas Co. Road project. Bid opening scheduled in July.

Johnson Creek Blvd .
5292 Improvements SO $2,004 (52,004) In Design

Coordinating utility conflicts for Clackamas County Road improvements.
5312 Thiessen Rd. Culvert Crossing SO $2,129 (52,129) ' In Design

Coordinating 8” waterline relocation to accommodate Clackamas County culvert replacement.

Monthly Update June 2024 9|Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Project Updates

Private Project Tracking — May 2024

Project S
No. Description
20-5262 Bonaventure 6” fire service and 3” . . .
. . L. Const. Site construction ongoing.
Private  Senior Living meter
21-5285 130%™ Industrial = 3-fire services
. . . Const. Complete.
Private = Park 3-commercial services
21-5289 224 Logistics  riiied Grocersite; 4 Punch List.
. fire & 4 Domestic Const.
Private Center .
Services
225295 Jannsen Multi- o fire and domestic
. . service for 8-plex Const. On Hold.
Private = Family
development.
22-.5298 Serre_s .F:_:lrms 7-lot of subdivision Const. Pending Construction Start
Private = Subdivision
23-5209 Prologis Park - '/arehouses with . .
. Fire and domestic Const. Pending Construction Start
Private = Clackamas .
service
23-5304 WES -T2 Relocate waterline at . .
Private = 30” Force Main four locations Const. Al TS E T
Monthly Update June 2024 10| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Water Distribution Charts

(in MGs)

CRW Water Treatment Plant

(as of the end of May 2024)

Total CRW - Water Produced and Purchased

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY SEPT

400

300

EREU i iR

2022 w2023 ® 2024

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown

North Side - Water Produced

LTI

JAN FEB MAR  APR  MAY  JUNE  JULY SEPT
2022 m2023 m 2024

Water Produced (in MGs)

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown

South Fork Water Board- Water Purchased

o 90
g
) 75
T2
%’ ;;: 60
g8 45
S S
§ 3 30 P"
° S
Gowmmnkl Haa
5 ; ‘ u » '
o 0
(7]

JAN FEB MAR SEPT

2022 m2023 ®2024

Monthly Update June 2024 11| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



Sampling Reports

(as of the end of May 2024)

Regulatory
All 73 samples collected and analyzed for the April monitoring period showed no presence of coliform/E.
coli bacteria.

In February we began sampling for the Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMRS5) in both
our North and South systems. The second quarterly sampling event occurred during May.

Cyanotoxin Testing
Microcystin and Cylindrospermopsin sampling of our raw water began in May and occurs every two
weeks for compliance.

No cyanotoxins were detected in our raw water in May.

Non-Regulatory
General water quality parameters (pH, temperature, chlorine, TDS, hardness, alkalinity) were collected for the
distribution system at 16 locations in the North and South systems.

Monthly watershed sampling was conducted at 4 long-term sampling locations for total organic carbon, nutrients
(nitrate/nitrite, total phosphorus, orthophosphate, etc.), coliform density, pH, dissolved oxygen, TDS, and
temperature.

Monthly Update June 2024 12| Page
H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



River Flow Conditions Reports

¢ As of June 11th, the Clackamas basin snowpack has melted. The current Clackamas River 7-day average
streamflow is 180% of normal (median).

¢ May precipitation in the Clackamas basin was 136% of normal. Precipitation since the beginning of the water
year (October 1 —June 10) has been 103% of normal.

¢ The June through September streamflow forecasts in the Clackamas River at Estacada is near 100% of median.
¢ The three-month outlook (Jun-Aug) from the NOAA Climate Prediction Center calls for an elevated chance of
above normal temperatures, and elevated chances of below-normal precipitation for all of Oregon.

Clackamas River near Oregon City, OR (14211010)
Data from U.S. Geological Survey, Jun-08-2001 to Jun-11-2024

I I 1 ] | | | I I I 1 I I | | | I l I I 1 l | | _ mif'l-ma.:(
7] 10-90 petl
4600 —] 25-75 patl
C | = median
4100 |E | —— 2021
| — 2022
- - — 2023
— n 2024
o] — Fad ¥
= 3600 N |
Q I _
o)) _
@ 3100 | -
= Y ]
O C _
0 L o
(] L -
S 2600 [— \ —
m = -
Q __— -
S L -
@ 2100 — ]
Q & .
M~ B -
1600 I -
1o \ A ‘ "‘
C - " _
C — . 7
600 L1 P T T R [ I (A AT T N N B R
§ 8 ¢ 5 8 2 8 ¢ & 5 & § 3z e §
b [ = = = = = o o o o o <L 4 als
£ 3 3 3 5 5 3 2 2 & & & 8 &6 &
Tue Jun 11 122327 2024
Monthly Update June 2024 13| Page

H:\ADMIN\Communications\Monthly Update\2024 Monthly Updates\2024-06 Month In Review.docx



	CRW 06.13.2024 Board Meeting Agenda
	CA 1 Gross Payroll and Accounts Paid
	CA 1 Earnings Statements
	CA 1 Monthly Check History Listing
	CA 2 Cash & Investment Ending Balances Report
	AG 1 Resolution No. 6-2024 A Resolution establishing retail water rates, system development charges, miscellaneous fees and charges for services
	AG 1 Exhibit A
	AG 1 Exhibit B
	AG 2 Consider First Reading, by title only, of Resolution 07-2024 amending Board Policy
	AG 2 Res. 07-2024
	AG 2 Redline of Board Policy
	AG 3 Consider approval of Resolutio No. 08-2024 Approve Utility billing Bad Debt write-off for FY 2023-24 Uncollectible water bills
	AG 3 Res. 08-2024
	AG 4 Consider Resolution No. 09-2024 updating the wholesale water rates charged to North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC)
	AG 4 Res. 09-2024
	AG 5 Consider Approval of Contract extension with madrone technology for IT Support, equipment and subscriptions exceeding the General Managers Signature authority
	AG 5 Scope of Services
	AG 6 Consider Approval of INtergovernmental Agreement (IGA) extension between CRW and Clackamas River Water Providers (CRWP) for Emergency Management Coordination Services
	AG 6 Letter Requesting extension
	AG 6 IGA Extension
	AG 7 Consider approval of contract with S 2 Contractors for Paving Services exceeding the General Managers Signature  authority
	AG 8 Management Report
	AG 10 Commissioner Reports and reimbursement requests
	AG 10 reimbursement requests
	AG 11 Election of Board Officers



